651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC ABENCY Roseville, CA 95678

I A phone (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693.
web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: September 29, 2017, NCPA Commission Meeting

Item #1 — Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Bob Ling| called the meeting to order at 10:25 am at the Silverado Resort, 1600 Atlas Peak
Road, Napa, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance are
shown on the attached attendance list.

Item #2 — Approve Minutes of the August 24, 2017, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Madeline Deaton and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to approve the
Minutes of the August 24, 2017, Commission meeting. The motion carried unanimously on a voice
vote of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Lingl asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

Item #3 — General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update
General Manager Randy Howard reported:

— Brief overview of the Annual Conference Program. Next year's meeting will be held in Monterey,
California.

— Thanked NCPA staff for their efforts during the state legislative end of session.

— Gave an update on the Hometown Connections discussions. Meeting was held last week with
interested parties.

— Gave an update on the 2018 Executive Leadership Program — A brochure was provided to the
Utility Directors. For more information on the program, contact NCPA HR Manager Vicki
Cichocki.

— Lodi Energy Center update: Signed gas distribution agreement with PG&E effective September
1, 2017. LEC online and running during September.



Item #4 — Executive Committee

Committee Chair Bob Lingl reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting.

Item #5 — Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met twice since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 13, 14, 18, and 21 on today’s
Agenda at the regular scheduled meeting. The Committee recommended Commission approval of
all items. The Committee met under a special meeting agenda on September 20 and discussed item
22 on today’s Agenda. A quorum of the Committee was not established, but those members in
attendance supported staff's recommendation.

Item #6 — Finance Committee

Committee Chair David Hagele reported that the Committee met once under a Special meeting Agenda
since the last Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 15, 17 and 19 on today’s
Agenda. The Committee recommended Commission approval of all items. The next Committee meeting
is on November 8.

Item #7 — Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting in closed session. No reportable action was taken on the closed session items.

Item #8 — Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Teresa O’'Neill reported the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee heard from a policymaker panel of staff members from the State
Legislature, California Energy Commission, California Air Resources Board, and the California
Independent System Operator. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on November 29 at
NCPA'’s office in Roseville.

Item #9 — Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

Brent Weaver, Redding, announced the appointment of Dan Beans as the new Utility Director at
Redding Electric.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. No
items were pulled for discussion.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Teresa O'Neill to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of Items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, and 21. The motion carried by a
majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.
BART was absent.

Item #10 - NCPA’s Financials for the Months Ended August 30, 2017 — approval by all members.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
September 29, 2017



Item #11 — Treasurer’s Report for the Months Ended August 30, 2017 — accept by all members.

Item #12 — Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property — note and file by all members the disposal of
insulation materials, safety relief valve spare parts, Rosemount housings, surveying equipment, 24 volt
battery load tester, key cabinet, and Yokogawa totalizers.

Fiscal Impact: This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

Item #13 — Resolution 17-76, Ethos Energy Power Plant Services, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement and Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Material and
Supplies; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA
and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement and Agreement for Purchase of
Equipment, Material and Supplies with Ethos Energy Power Plant Services, LLC, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,500,000 over five years and to issue purchase orders associated with the contract. For use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,500,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

Item #14 — Resolution 17-77, Ford Construction Company, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for maintenance tasks including earthwork, asphalt patch and paving, minor
concrete patching and tunnel maintenance; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA
Facility Locations (with exception of the Lodi Energy Center), NCPA Members, SCPPA and
SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Ford Construction Company, Inc., for
maintenance services to include earthwork, asphalt patching, utility easement work, minor road
maintenance and tunnel maintenance, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $3,000,000 over five years. This contract would be
available for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA (with exception of the Lodi Energy
Center), NCPA Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $3,000,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

Item #15 — Resolution 17-78, Agreement for Banking Services between U.S. Bank N.A. and NCPA
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into an
Agreement for Banking Services with U.S. Bank, N.A. for a three-year term with an option of two, one-
year renewals. The agreement includes fixed pricing for the term (up to five years).

Fiscal Impact: The three-year term will include a fixed pricing structure and most of the savings (or new
interest income) will be due to an increase in the ECR, the setting of a PEG balance, a decrease in
pricing of various expense items, and the creation of a money market ‘Sweep’ account. The result of
these actions is estimated to add at least $10,000 per month or $120,000 per year in new interest
income to Members and Non-Members and still offset the U.S. Bank banking fees.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
September 29, 2017



Item #16 — Resolution 17-79, Approval of Revisions to NCPA’s Energy Risk Management Policy —
adopt resolution by all members approving implementing and establishing a revised Northern California
Power Agency Energy Risk Management Policy.

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact as a result of the annual review or proposed revision to
the Energy Risk Management Policy.

Item #17 — Resolution 17-80, Approval of Finance Committee Charter — adopt resolution by all
members approving establishing a Finance Committee Charter, which will better define the roles and
responsibilities for the Finance Committee as described in the NCPA By-Laws.

Fiscal Impact: There is no direct dollar impact to approve a Finance Committee Charter.

Item #18 — Resolution 17-81, NCPA Headquarters Perimeter Security Fence and Gates Project —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Public
Works Agreement with FenceCorp, Inc., and to issue Purchase Orders associated with the Project for a
total not-to-exceed cost of $401,648 for construction of the NCPA Headquarters Perimeter Security
Fence and Gates Project.

Fiscal Impact. Staff's initial Project cost estimate in 2015 was $285,000. The cost of the Project is now
estimated to be $386,648, which includes the sum of $30,471 expended to date for review by the City of
Roseville, design and engineering costs, and related printing and title expenses. Based on the results of
the formal bidding process, which included two rounds of public bidding and subsequent negotiations,
the Project cost includes the cost for the fence construction of $323,467, electrical work, landscaping
alterations, permitting, and additional engineering work. Staff recommends adding a contingency of
approximately 4% for the remaining work in the amount of $15,000, bringing the Project cost to a total
not-to-exceed amount of $401,648. All funding necessary for this project has been budgeted for and no
new budgeted dollars are being requested.

Item #19 — Resolution 17-82, NCPA Financial Advisory Services — Three year Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement with PFM Financial Advisors LLC for Ongoing Financial
Structure and Debt Management Tasks; and Three year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement with PFM Swap Advisors LLC for Swap Advisory Services — authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with PFM Financial
Advisors LLC (PFM) for financial advisory services including ongoing financial structure and debt
management tasks for not to exceed $500,000 over three years; and to enter into a separate Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement with PFM Swap Advisors LLC for additional financial advisory services in
connection with the issuance or proposed issuance of swaps or derivatives for not to exceed $150,000
over three years; both agreements with any non-substantive changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, and including the option of two, two-year renewals for a maximum term of
seven years.

Fiscal Impact. PFM agreed to maintain the existing annual cost at the 2006 pricing level of a not-to-
exceed amount of $55,000 for financial structure and debt management tasks. That annual cost is to be
apportioned $50,000 to PFM Financial Advisors LLC for the financial structure and debt management
tasks and $5,000 to PFM Swap Advisors LLC. In addition, unlimited use of the SwapViewer valuation
tool software will be provided by PFM Swap Advisors LLC at an annual cost of $7,500. Both agreements
also include a not to exceed amount for annual travel expense costs.

The resulting cost for the agreement with PFM Financial Advisors LLC for the ongoing financial structure
and specific debt management tasks is not to exceed $168,000 for the initial three-year term. The first
year services in the amount of not to exceed $56,000 is included in the approved budget for fiscal year
2017-18. Should the Agency exercise the option to extend the agreement, both renewal periods would
be at the same annual cost as the initial three year term. In addition, the agreement’s not to exceed
amount of $500,000 allows for utilization of the vendor’s services by NCPA Members as needed. This
dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to PFM, but is merely a limit of
potential expenditures under the enabling agreement.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
September 29, 2017



The resulting cost for the agreement with PFM Swap Advisors LLC for the continuing review of and
recommendations concerning the Agency’s overall financial structure as related to swaps and
derivatives, as well as identifying areas which can be improved upon or enhanced and unlimited use of
the Swap Viewer valuation tool software, is not to exceed $37,500 for the initial three year term. The first
year services in the amount of not to exceed $12,500 is included in the approved budget for fiscal year
2017-18. Should the Agency exercise the option to extend the agreement, both renewal periods would
be at the same annual cost as the initial three year term. Further, the agreement’s not to exceed amount
of $150,000 also allows for utilization of the vendor’s services by NCPA Members as needed. This dollar
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to PFM Swap Advisors, but is merely a
limit of potential expenditures under the enabling agreement.

Transaction specific services including bond issuance transaction costs will be determined as such
services are needed and are typically paid from bond proceeds.

Item #20 — Resolution 17-83, Approve Appointment of Retired Annuitant to Serve In a Limited
Duration Assignment as Field Office Administrator at the Geothermal Facility — adopt resolution by
all members approving the interim and limited term appointment of retired annuitant, Pamela Bordi, to
serve as the Field Office Administrator at the Geothermal Facility, without reinstatement from retirement
or loss or interruption of benefits provided by the Public Employees’ Retirement System under
Government Code Section 21221(h).

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact for the appointment of retired annuitant, Pamela Bordi, to serve
as the Field Office Administrator at the Geothermal Facility, because the costs are included in the
approved budget for FY 2017-18.

Item #21 — Resolution 17-84, Approval of Extension of Natural Gas Pipeline Transportation
Contracts for the NGTL and Foothills BC Pipeline Transportation Systems — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager, on behalf of NCPA, to extend the natural gas pipeline
transportation contracts to maintain NCPA's natural gas pipeline transport volume rights on the NOVA
and Foothills transportation systems for five (5) years through October 31, 2023.

Fiscal Impact. Based on current transportation rates, the cost for acquiring natural gas pipeline
transportation capacity on the NOVA system is approximately $145,000 per year, and acquiring natural
gas pipeline transportation capacity on the Foothills system is approximately $70,000 per year. All costs
associated with acquiring natural gas pipeline transportation capacity on the NOVA and Foothills system
are included in the NCPA annual budget, and are treated as Project Costs and allocated to the STIG
project participants based on their respective project participation percentages.

Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, and Truckee Donner abstained.

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEM

Item #22 — Resolution 17-85, Provision of Services to Pioneer Community Energy — adopt
resolution by all members approving and authorizing: (i) NCPA to enter into a Services Agreement with
Pioneer Community Energy under which NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio
management services to Pioneer Community Energy, including any non-substantive modification to the
Services Agreement approved by NCPA’s General Counsel, and (i) delegated authority to the General
Manager of NCPA to negotiate the amount of compensation to be charged to Pioneer Community
Energy for NCPA’s provision of Services within a defined range, as further set forth herein.

Fiscal Impact: NCPA staff recommends that the Commission delegate authority to the General
Manager of NCPA to negotiate an amount of compensation for NCPA’s provision of services to PCCE
within the following range: $362,000 to $488,000.

The proposed compensation range stated herein was developed using the NCPA Power Management
Cost Allocation Spreadsheet Model (commonly known and the “Nexant Model”) as a reference. The cost
of service developed using the Nexant Model is based on a set of modeling assumptions that were

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
September 29, 2017



presented to and reviewed by both the Utility Directors and the Facilities Committee, including action
requested by the Facilites Committee to allocate certain directly assigned costs in proportion to how
such costs are allocated in the model.

In addition to compensation for services attributed to regular operations, NCPA staff also recommends
that the Commission delegate authority to the General Manager of NCPA to incorporate an integration
charge into NCPA’s offer made to PCCE, that would be separately stated, and may or may not be
included in the regular operations negotiating range stated above if such is deemed appropriate by the
General Manager, based on estimated costs associated with integrating PCCE into NCPA'’s business
processes.

NCPA’s administrative costs for development of a Services Agreement with PCCE will be allocated to
members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual
budget.

Tony Zimmer, NCPA staff, provided a presentation on the Provision of Services to Pioneer Community
Energy.

Motion: A motion was made by Bob Marshall and seconded by Liz Kirkley to adopt resolution approving
and authorizing: (i) NCPA to enter into a Services Agreement with Pioneer Community Energy under
which NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services to Pioneer Community
Energy, including any non-substantive modification to the Services Agreement approved by NCPA’s
General Counsel, and (ii) delegated authority to the General Manager of NCPA to negotiate the amount
of compensation to be charged to Pioneer Community Energy for NCPA’s provision of Services within a
defined range. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

BART was absent.

CLOSED SESSION

Non-essential Members and staff left the meeting for the closed session discussion.

Item #23 — Conference with Legal Counsel existing litigation pursuant to California Government Code
Section 54956.9(d)(1): Three cases:

a) Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville, and City of Santa Clara v.
the United States, Court of Federal Claims no. 14-817C.

b) PG&E TO19 Rate Case, Pacific Gas & Electric Company, Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, Docket No. ER17-2154-000.

¢) PG&E TO18 Rate Case, Pacific Gas & Electric Company, Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, Docket No. ER16-2320-000.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
September 29, 2017



REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated no reportable action was taken on
closed session items 23a, 23b and 23c.

NEW BUSINESS

Chair Lingl recognized those Members and staff that have a September birthday.

ADJOURNMENT

The August 24, 2017, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:55 am.

Respectfully submitted,

/]

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
September 29, 2017



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 29, 2017
COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER

NAME

ALAMEDA

WU@/@,@{,{ {: AQ(,M

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

&@}MJW

HEALDSBURG

LODI

LOMPOC

PALO ALTO

PORT OF OAKLAND

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

giu% W L\uz(\ |

REDDING

ROSEVILLE

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID

TRANSIT DISTRICT (BART)
SANTA CLARA /7% een 300,20
SHASTA LAKE \}JM SQ o
TRUCKEE DONNER ' M%y/




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 29, 2017

Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the

public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Dord Veade Wealddo
Teey Crowe £y = / HEaLos Suny

/@“H; l‘f’et’t //tf)qées!

C ‘L\ OPSKUC("LL C[qﬁﬁ

Je i ]?om//i}ma\

’,( /ﬂf\‘gm Li‘)lQ:C/cf"q

70»—}\.‘ 2/;4;4#1(4

MPA

D NP
-\2":@«\9 Ca/acmsh W P A
Je2. Horat T PVD
Slephon bl 1 TDPY)
ot buring (aS Spelgel 8 (climpres
m ué@. /@ yozp P/f?ﬁ =
Bk /Vla@l\al Psre
BAP l<euue:1 PSReEcC
.77 £ seulle
@” F;D/’S\m"[«e— ZDSC’-V///Q—
,!’)f O Z(A/ﬂ/ 'QD(&\I/ZZQ
Ravdy Bowerser Ne pA
R Ay ey eIy of ehduyy
Kew  Spel 10?4
Michetle. Aol Rosen e
}o’e' /WM(LW /@oseu.”? ;

ﬁﬁ}w D KA sl

Loos bn b WM /oty 7 L

Jan/ (v naovd/

7 4

NAN—




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 29, 2017
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Liz Ko/ Loty
/n?mc&\ﬂ/m«du,k L O Lod
Cin eo0n | Redding
%revv xR~ Redcln
TIYAN  STNGW Mm\lﬂ@co
Liidy Sauecs Uicial,
278 Lk
el [Lefacky WeH
[\’\eu\m Hanles NCpn
/ DIUrRC %H\J % L GG S
ED Sl s\ Do firo
ohied Papiecyx Cpto ATO
(Dol 1 / [ oonvi?e
WA L w2 NC/-S{’LA
Nice D@ws /Jr{“mcab.
Joie Jue Vst NCvA




ANCPA CONSENT CALENDAR

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL —_—
q-29 1 o
Commission Meeting Date: -l 7

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # to# Q“\

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:

# =5

NS

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS:

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent
Alameda 4 ;
BART ] Vv
Biggs Y
Gridley "\/

Healdsburg \/
Lodi Y’
Lompoc )4
Palo Alto 2| il
Port of Oakland 13 |4 2] K
Redding 7 f i Y
Roseville /
Santa Clara Y
Shasta Lake 4
Truckee Donner 2 Y
Ukiah Y
Plumas-Sierra N/
ATTEST: ( () Q@&Q“

CaryA P

Assistant Secretary to the Commission



Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE
Topic: \ X&W\ 9‘9“
VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda /
BART o X
Biggs i
Gridley Y

Healdsburg \[
Lodi Ef__

Lompoc \//
Palo Alto 2
Plumas-Sierra Y

Port of Oakland Y
Redding y
Roseville \/
Santa Clara y

Shasta Lake >/

Truckee Donner

J
Ukiah /

Passed and adopted this 29t day of September 2017, by the above vote on roll call.

JH O\ s -
BOBLINGL  —/ LY
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary




A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.: 9

Date: October 19, 2017
To: NCPA Commission

Subject: September 20, 2017 Facilities Committee Special Meeting Minutes and

October 4, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.






y

651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916)781-3636
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - Draft

To: NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: September 20, 2017, Facilities Committee Special Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Vice
Chair Mike Brozo at 2:02 pm. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via
teleconference and/or on-line presentation were Alan Hanger (Alameda), Mark Sorensen
(Biggs), Jiayo Chiang (Lodi), Monica Padilla (Palo Alto), Shannon McCann (Roseville) Steve
Hance and Kathleen Hughes (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are listed on the
attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Gridley,
Healdsburg, Lompoc, Port of Oakland, Turlock, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the
Committee was not established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

2. Approval of Provision of Services to Pioneer Community Energy - Staff discussed the
opportunity to seek extension of authority to engage in negotiations with Pioneer Community
Energy (PCCE) (formally known as Sierra Valley Energy Authority) to develop a Services
Agreement under which NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio management
services to PCCE, and to modify previously granted authority delegated to the General
Manager of NCPA to negotiate the amount of compensation to be charged to PCCE for
NCPA'’s provision of services.

Placer County has formed a JPA, PCCE, for the purpose of establishing and managing a
Community Choice Energy (CCE) program. PCCE has expressed an interest in taking
certain scheduling and portfolio management services from NCPA. NCPA is working on a
draft Services Agreement for PCCE, which is similar to the PCWA and MEID agreements.
Due to the possibility of the California Legislature passing certain legislation that may impact
CCA formation, PCCE would like to proceed with serving load within its service area as soon
as possible. PCCE is working to begin providing service to its customers January or
February 2018.

The proposed scope of services includes (i) scheduling coordination services for submission
of bids, outage coordination, and meter data validation, (ii) control center services, including
real-time monitoring and coordination, and (iii) portfolio management and optimization, with



pre-scheduling, forecasting, resource management, and risk management. The initial term
of services would be two years with an automatic extension.

NCPA staff have identified three (3) different options for providing services to PCCE, which
include: 1) NCPA to act as Scheduling Coordinator, 2) NCPA temporarily act as Scheduling
Coordinator, then transfer SC obligations to PCCE Scheduling Coordinator when fully
registered, and 3) NCPA act as SC agent on behalf of PCCE. NCPA staff recommended
option 2, and indicated that the draft Services Agreement has been updated to include the
proper level of protection to NCPA's liability associated with PCCE CAISO transactions.

Based on NCPA'’s further refinement of the scope of services contemplated in the Services
Agreement, staff are now recommending the cost of services to be approximately $425,000,
with a 2% escalation per year, and to grant the General Manager of NCPA authority to
negotiate a final amount of compensation within the range of plus or minus 15% of the
recommended amount.

Key integration activities include registration of new NCPA SCID in early October,
coordinated development of RA load forecast, submission of PCCE RA demonstration by
November 15, with an executed service contract, load registration, assignment and
association, by December 2017, and the scheduling services beginning in January 2018.

Since a quorum was not established, the committee asked those in attendance if they
supported NCPA'’s recommendation of (i) enabling NCPA to develop and negotiate a
Services Agreement under which NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio
management services to PCCE, as further described herein; and (ii) to delegate authority to
the General Manager of NCPA to negotiate the amount of compensation to be charged to
PCCE for NCPA'’s provision of Services, within a defined range as determined by the
Commission, and as further described herein. Those in attendance that support NCPA'’s
recommendation are: Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. A
staff report and resolution will be taken to the next Commission Meeting for approval on
September, 29, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 pm.

September 20, 2017 Facilities Committee Special Meeting Minutes



Northern California Power Agency
September 20, 2017 Special Facilities Committee Meeting

Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Lomue {0110 VL PA
f_\awxs f/’;w/vv /VC/DA
//2{( LY. ( P ’Q"’L’ rBEEC
By 57,5.,,»,44, i persd
Mok~ Vznles NCE A
?‘De{""" Co\.'c\c/tF{( A
Jawe Lurlhorit NCPA
Raoud , Pocsard W A
Dot Ooc%\«am NC A




Northern California Power Agency

September 20, 2017 Special Facilities Committee Meeting

Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER

NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI

LOMPOC

PALO ALTO

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

PORT OF OAKLAND

ROSEVILLE

SANTA CLARA

TID




V4

651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916)781-3636

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - Draft

Date: October 5, 2017

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: October 4, 2017, Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

1.

Call meeting to order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair
Melissa Price at 9:04 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference
and/or on-line presentation were Debbie Whiteman and Alan Hanger (Alameda), Mark
Sorensen (Biggs), Monica Padilla (Palo Alto), Khaly Nguyen and Steve Hance (Santa Clara),
and Willie Manuel (TID). Those attending in person are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in
Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Gridley, Healdsburg, Plumas-Sierra, Port of
Oakland, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was not established.

PUBLIC FORUM

No public comment.

Approve Minutes from the September 6, 2017, Facilities Committee Meeting and
September 20, 2017, Special Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes — These two sets of
minutes will be voted on at the next Facilities Committee Meeting, since there was not a quorum
established.

Geothermal Facilities — Sunshine Metal Clad First Amendment — Staff is seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a First Amendment to the five-year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Sunshine Metal Clad, Inc. for insulation services, increasing
the not to exceed amount from $300,000 to $550,000, for use at NCPA Geothermal facilities. All
purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual
Operating Budgets. (Commission Category: Consent; Sponsor: Geo)

** This item was pulled, and will be presented at the next Facilities Committee Meeting. **

Geothermal Facilities — EGS Consulting, Inc. Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement
- Staff recommended Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement with EGS Consuilting, Inc., for engineering and geologic services, including
conducting water injection studies, monitoring and reporting seismic activity, and well testing,
with a not to exceed amount of $500,000, for use at NCPA Geothermal facilities. All purchase
orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating
Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review.

An informal motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter



into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with EGS Consulting, Inc., with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $500,000 over five years and to issue purchase orders associated with the contract.
For use at the NCPA Geysers Geothermal Facility. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Roseville, Santa Clara, and TID. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto. The Committee
supports Commission approval.

5. All Generation Services Facilities — TRB and Associates First Amendment — Staff
recommended Commission approval of a First Amendment to the five-year Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement with TRB and Associates, for consulting services including
construction inspections and engineering reviews, increasing the not to exceed amount from
$200,000 to $500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. The Facilities
Committee also recommends Commission approval to increase the not to exceed amount to
$1,000,000 and open this agreement up to all NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members,
pending agreement from TRB Associates. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the
agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission
Staff Report was available for review.

An informal motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting services Agreement with TRB and Associates,
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years and to issue purchase orders associated with
this contract. For use at all NCPA Generation Plant facilities. The Facilities Committee also
recommends Commission approval to increase the not to exceed amount to $1,000,000 and
open this agreement up to all NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members, pending
agreement from TRB and Associates. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Lodi, Roseville, Santa Clara, and TID. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto. The Committee supports
Commission approval.

6. Revision to Commission Revenue Allocation Policy and Implementation Timing of
Revised Policy - Staff proposed and recommended a revision to the Commission Revenue
Allocation Policy, and timing for implementation of the proposed revisions based on the policy
discussion paper.

James Takehara reviewed the recommendations to revise the Commission adopted Revenue
Allocation Policy, as developed by the Utility Director sub-group, and a revised version of the
discussion paper at the Committee’s request. The key changes to the Interim Policy are: 1)
allocate 90% of revenues received, to both members and non-member participants of NCPA
Projects, using the Nexant cost allocation model; 2) allocate 10% of revenues received,
exclusively to members, in proportion to their contributions to A&G expenses; and, 3) apply
these changes to the entirety of FY18. James will make some clarifying edits to the revenue
allocation discussion paper, per members’ request, and list the recommendations clearly at the
beginning of the document. A redline version will be available to the Committee for review prior
to the Commission Meeting on October 26.

An informal motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval to update the existing revenue allocation policy as
described in the Revised Revenue Allocation Policy. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Palo Alto, Roseville, Santa Clara, and TID. The Committee supports
Commission approval.

7. Greenhouse Gas Accounting for CT2 (STIG) - Staff introduced a billing support file of the
NCPA All Resources Bill for CT2 (STIG) Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG). NCPA must
prepare a GHG inventory, and administer Compliance Instruments to the associated emissions.

October 4, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2



The GHG emissions from the CT2 Project, Lodi STIG, are covered emissions under the CA
Cap-and-Trade Program. Historically the emissions are very low.

NCPA Settlements plans to distribute a detailed accounting of the CT2 GHG emission in the All
Resources Bill support file, starting with the November ARB. The report period will be from
January 2013 to the current date, plus a 6-12 month projection, including generation (MWh),
GHG obligation (MT CO2e), compliance instrument balances (MT), and compliance instruments
retirements (MT).

Staff will be preparing a proposal to adopt a regularly scheduled monthly process that is
financially binding using this report. The goals are to reduce legal risk to NCPA for uncovered
GHG obligations, improve administrative efficiency, and conform to business practices across
the covered entities.

Planning and Operations Update —

- CT Update — The CTs have been operating for 30 years now. The CT1 Alameda needs a
115Kv bushing replacement. Hart High Voltage was awarded the bid to conduct the
electrical test, drain oil, internal inspection, and replacement of transformer bushings.
While restoring from back feed, the service station transformer “A” faulted due to
overcurrent on H1. A refurbished transformer has been located in Greenville, SC, and is
expected to ship on October 6. There were three bids for a refurbished transformer, with
the lowest being $26,820. The transformer swap will start October 23 and should be
completed by October 27. The transformer was tested last January and was working fine
at that time. The CT1 in Lodi needs a 60Kv bushing replacement as well. Hart High
Voltage was again awarded the bid to conduct the electrical test, drain oil, internal
inspection, and replacement of transformer bushings. CT1 Lodi is at 193.2 of the 200
operation hours. It can only be run during emergency situations now.

- TO18 & TO19 — NCPA will be a signatory on these proceedings, which will allow FERC to
check the rates and make sure they are OK. If not, then FERC can change the rates, as
these are managed by TANC and the CPUC.

- PG&E Order 890 — This is continuing along. The next meeting will be October 19,
regarding the proposed tariff. NCPA is disputing the resolution process.

- PCWA - Services for PCWA will start January 1, 2018. Dispatch staff had training
September 27-28. After these services begin, NCPA will determine whether additional
staff is needed for increasing demands.

- CAISO TAC Restructuring — There are transmission issues with the CAISO revenue
shortfalls being different than the tariff. NCPA participated in the transmission planning
process for this.

- MEID - Merced is very happy with the services they are currently receiving from NCPA,
and is exploring becoming a member.

- PCCE - The Commission approved and authorized NCPA to enter into a Services
Agreement with Pioneer Community Energy under which NCPA may supply certain
scheduling and portfolio management services to Pioneer Community Energy at the
amount of $425,000. Placer County is committed and very supportive of this
development.

- NCPA Connect — Power Management is in the process of building the reports library on
NCPA Connect. Members should request any specific reports they would like to see.

8. Schedule next meeting date — the next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for
November 1, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 10:42 am.

October 4, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3



Northern California Power Agency
October 4, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Cavnie Youw VLCPA
Me lissa Pirce Cod |
mcl\; @awmﬁ‘mﬁ NC A
€ (A, =€ L2007l
"blael  Saaameus, ) COa
é\'"\ﬁ\n o N P Cot e, Q\b SW\\\
TA\:W /[ S rurty Leld
fmes /,4//44 ra A P/é
it Sizmadd At
Tony Zimarcr NMCPA
Dowe Doe¥nown VLOPA
oy o Howay gl N A
e ~uthhhowrcl t vk




Northern California Power Agency
October 4, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER

NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI

PALO ALTO

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

PORT OF OAKLAND

ROSEVILLE

SANTA CLARA

TID

UKIAH







651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

N c PA phone (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CAUFDRNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693
web Wwww.Nncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.._ 6 _

Date: October 18, 2017

To: NCPA Commission

Subject: September 18 and October 17, 2017 Special Finance Committee Meeting
Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral
Committee report.



NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Minutes

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Date: September 22, 2017
To: NCPA Finance Committee
From: Trisha Zimmer, Administrative Assistant

Subject: September 18, 2017 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

Finance Committee Attendees:

Committee Members

David Hagele, Chair Healdsburg
Ann Hatcher Santa Clara
Melissa Price Lodi

Matt Michealis Gridley
Philip McAvoy Roseville
Member Staff

Tarun Narayan Palo Alto

1. Call Meeting to Order

David Hagele called the meeting to order at 2:07 p.m.

Attended:

call-in
call-in
absent
absent
call-in

call-in

Consultants in attendance-call
in:
Mark Bauer Orrick
Charline Bothelo PFM

NCPA Staff in attendance:
Monty Hanks

Sondra Ainsworth

Jane Luckhardt

Trisha Zimmer

2. Rolli call - Roll call was conducted as listed above. A quorum of the Committee was

established.

PUBLIC FORUM

Mr. Hagele asked if anyone wished to address the Committee on matters within the jurisdiction of
the Committee. There were no requests for public comment at the site or at any of the

teleconference locations.



September 18, 2017 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 2

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

3. Selection of Financial Advisor Firm and Award of Contract
Staff is seeking a recommendation to approve an award of contract and authorization to enter
into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with PFM Financial Advisors LLC for
ongoing financial structure and debt management tasks for a not-to-exceed amount of
$500,000 over three years; and a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with PFM Swap
Advisors LLC for swap advisory services for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000 over three
years. Both agreements include the option of two, two-year renewals for a maximum term of
seven years. The not-to-exceed amounts of both agreements allow for utilization of the
vendor’s services by NCPA Members as needed.

Motion: a motion was made by David Hagele and seconded by Philip McAvoy recommending
approval of the Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreements with PFM Financial Advisors LLC
as well as PFM Swap Advisors LLC. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = David Hagele
(Healdsburg), Ann Hatcher (Santa Clara), and Philip McAvoy (Roseville). The motion
passed.

4. Finance Committee Charter
Staff is seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Finance Committee Charter
in order to better define the roles and responsibilities of the Finance Committee as described
in the Agency Bylaws. In accordance with the Amended and Restated Commission Rules of
Procedure (aka — NCPA Bylaws) the Finance Committee’s role is to provide financial
oversight for the Agency and is described as reviewing and reporting all financial, accounting,
or auditing matters referred to it by the Commission, Executive Committee, the Chair, the
Chief Financial Officer of the Agency, or by the General Manager. The recommended
modifications were made to the Charter as directed by Finance Committee members at the
August 9" Finance Committee meeting. Staff presented the redlined version of the Charter
as well as a draft final version.

Motion: a motion was made by Ann Hatcher and seconded by Philip McAvoy recommending
approval of the Finance Committee Charter as presented. A vote was taken by roll call: YES
= David Hagele (Healdsburg), Ann Hatcher (Santa Clara), and Philip McAvoy (Roseville).
The motion passed.

5. Banking Services Agreement
Staff is seeking a recommendation to approve an Agreement for Banking Services with U.S.
Bank N.A. for a three-year term with an option of two, one-year renewals. This agreement
includes fixed pricing for the term (up to five years). The Agency is currently operating under
a Master Service Agreement and Deposit Account Agreement with U.S. Bank. A specific
contract setting forth the pricing structure for depository services, wire transfers, ACH and
related banking services did not exist. Following discussions with U.S. Bank, the bank has
agreed to decrease the per item pricing of several services and increase the Earnings Credit
Rate (ECR) from 0.22% to 0.60% for compensated balances in exchange for agreeing to a
three-year term.

Motion: A motion was made by Philip McAvoy and seconded by David Hagele recommending
that the Commission approve the Banking Services Agreement with U.S. Bank N.A.. A vote
was taken by roll call: YES = David Hagele (Healdsburg), Ann Hatcher (Santa Clara), and
Philip McAvoy (Roseville). The motion passed.

6. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause Audit Letter Acknowledgement
During the August 9, 2017 Finance Committee meeting, staff reviewed a letter from NCPA'’s



September 18, 2017 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 3

auditing firm, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause (Baker Tilly) covering their auditing standards,
requirements, and responsibilities as well as those of the Committee’s. Staff requested that
the Finance Committee members acknowledge that they have received, reviewed and
understand their responsibilities as the oversight Committee for the NCPA FY17 audit.
Finance Committee members David Hagele, Ann Hatcher, and Philip McAvoy acknowledged
receipt of the letter and that they understand their responsibility.

7. Next Finance Committee Meeting
The next regular Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for November 8, 2017 at 3pm.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 2:46 p.m.




NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Minutes

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Date: October 19, 2017
To: NCPA Finance Committee
From: Trisha Zimmer, Administrative Assistant

Subject: October 17, 2017 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

Finance Committee Attendees:

Committee Members
David Hagele, Chair Healdsburg

Ann Hatcher Santa Clara
Melissa Price Lodi

Philip McAvoy Roseville
Member Staff

Tarun Narayan Palo Alto
Bob Orbeta Alameda

1. Call Meeting to Order

David Hagele called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m.

Attended:
call-in
absent
call-in
call-in

call-in
call-in

Consultants in attendance-call

in:
Mark Bauer Orrick
Russ Hissom Baker Tilly

Mike Berwanger PFM

NCPA Staff in attendance:
Randy Howard

Monty Hanks

Sondra Ainsworth

Jane Luckhardt

Trisha Zimmer

2. Roll call — Roll call was conducted as listed above. Due to Brown Act posting requirements,
a quorum of the Committee was not established.



October 17, 2017 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
Page 2

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

3. Review of the June 30, 2017 Audited Financial Statements and Related Reports
Sondra Ainsworth provided a brief overview of June 30, 2017 financial statements including
the Agency’s combined statement of netposition and results of operation for the years ended
June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015. She then introduced Russ Hissom, partner from Baker Tilly
Virchow Krause (Baker Tilly).

Mr. Hissom reviewed the firm’s presentation with a report on NCPA's fiscal year 2017
financial audit. Mr. Hissom complimented NCPA staff on their preparedness and timely
responses to all of Baker Tilly’s audit inquires. Mr. Hissom reported that the audit revealed
no areas of concern and the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
Baker Tilly gave NCPA and associated corporationsfinancial statements an Unmodified
Opinion.

A quorum of the Finance Committee was not established, however, the members present did
not have any objections to staff's recommendations.

NEW BUSINESS

4. Other Items of Interest to Finance Committee
Monty Hanks informed the Committee that staff will seek approval of the appointment of
Robert (Bob) Orbeta, AGM of Administration, Alameda Municipal Power, as a member of the
Finance Committee. The appointment of Mr. Orbeta is due to a vacancy left by Matt
Michaelis, who is no longer employed at the City of Gridley.

Mr. Hanks also informed the Committee that our financial advisors, PFM Financial, have
drafted an RFP for prospective underwriters in preparation of the Hydroelectric 2008 Series C
bonds. The RFP will also request that the underwriters look into the possibility of refunding
the LEC and Geothermal bonds as well.

Mr. Hanks was also happy to report the recent Moody's credit rating upgrades to the
Hydroelectric Revenue Bonds from A1 to Aa2 as well as the Indenture Group A (Issue One)
LEC Revenue Bonds from A2 to A1.

7. Next Finance Committee Meeting
The next regular Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for November 8, 2017 at 3pm.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 2:34 p.m.



A PUBL

NC

G AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 18, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 26, 2017

SUBJECT:

September 2017 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

1O

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth Q_MMETHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o o
o 0o o 0O o O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify:

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o 0o o 0O o 4

SR: 212:17



September 2017 Financial Report (Unaudited)
October 18, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the October 26, 2017 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is
a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited September 2017 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

QW«)& [+~

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 212:17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements
(Unaudited)

For the Month of September 2017

Operations:
Geothermal $ 1,060,537
Hydroelectric 3,926,666
CT#1 Combustion Turbines 423,143
CT#2 STIG 642,933
Lodi Energy Center 4,527,359
NCPA Operating 19,641,232

Total $ 30,221,870




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 25%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,670,966 $ 4,030,432 15,603,994 26%

Debt Service (Net) 3,188,179 9,564,538 38,258,150 25%
Annual. Budget Cost 4,859,145 13,594,970 53,862,144 25%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,185,237 6,148,232 27,184,263 23%

Debt Service (Net) 411,312 1,233,936 4,935,743 25%
Annual Budget Cost 2,596,549 7,382,168 32,120,006 23%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 787,641 1,471,240 2,848,552 52% (a)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 149,896 302,790 834,641 36% (b)

Other Plant Cost 299,794 744,307 2,095,083 36% (b)

Debt Service (Net) 474,410 1,423,231 5,692,922 25%
Annual Budget Cost 924,100 2,470,328 8,622,646 29%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 2,429,887 6,021,104 14,877,170 40% ©)

Other Plant Cost 2,097,774 4,890,241 19,794,554 25%

Debt Service (Net) 2,201,387 6,604,160 26,416,640 25%
Annual Budget Cost 6,729,048 17,515,505 61,088,364 29%
Member Resources - Energy 4,657,347 15,335,440 53,389,034 29% (d)
Member Resources - Natural Gas 295,586 901,461 3,457,156 26%
Western Resources 1,996,567 6,658,206 30,119,880 22%
Market Power Purchases 1,471,258 4,998,630 19,318,025 26%

Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 24,383,494 39,588,052 233,822,294 17%
Net GHG Obligations - 175,400 445917 39% (e)
48,600,735 110,091,400 499,094,018 22%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 144,645 500,347 2,466,609 20%
Wheeling Access Charge 9,438,078 26,132,179 96,760,295 27%
Ancillary Services 256,274 619,627 2,639,380 23%
Other Charges 1,954,367 1,954,367 1,058,438 185%  (f)
11,793,264 29,206,520 102,924,722 28%




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 25%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 197,023 486,178 1,976,008 25%
Regulatory Representation 60,894 155,060 837,639 19%
Western Representation 48,652 112,747 829,636 14%
Member Services 34,135 85,539 436,078 20%
Judicial Action - 29,811 625,000 5%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 544,886 1,382,014 5,864,452 24%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 223,208 573,860 2,647,017 22%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 29,066 75,020 424,174 18%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 87,667 221,006 1,151,828 19%
Green Power Project 207 574 17,746 3%
Gas Purchase Program 6,411 15,234 88,131 17%
Market Purchase Project 9,141 22,317 130,141 17%
Energy Risk Management 5,837 27,123 206,836 13%
Settlements 50,799 138,126 774,377 18%
Integrated Systems Support 2,878 42,534 318,562 13%
Participant Pass Through Costs (11,399) 118,100 1,525,907 8%
Support Services 1,428 30,493 - N/A
1,290,833 3,515,736 17,853,532 20%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 61,684,832 142,813,656 619,872,272 23%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 14,326,673 35,203,018 70,367,243 50% (9)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 14,110,053 18,054,134 151,018,772 12%
Ancillary Services Sales 349,401 741,828 2,731,442 27%
Western Resource Energy Sales 3,500,041 3,500,041 18,026,100 19%
Other ISO Revenue 1,661,443 1,661,443 - N/A
Transmission Sales 9,198 27,594 110,376 25%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 941,577 3,352,960 15,712,788 21%
34,898,386 62,541,018 257,966,721 24%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 26,786,446 $ 80,272,638 $ 361,905,551 22%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 318% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/17. Fuel costs, CAISO

charges, and other variable costs have all increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 457% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/17. Fuel costs and CAISO

charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 127% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/17. Fuel costs and CAISO

charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(d) Variance due primarily to increased quantities of variable intermittent renewable energy purchases by Palo Alto and Port of Oakland.

(e) Purchases made several months in advance. Percent of budget used expected to level off throughout the year.

(f) The large budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(g) Variance due to higher than anticipated ISO energy sales for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro.




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other deposits and prepaids

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

September 30,

2017 2016

(in thousands)

20,098 §$ 38,040
61,756 29,751
431 -
1,126 469
247 226
9,799 9212
662 165
94,119 77,863
38,934 45,065
167,699 150,544
644 478
207,277 196,087
1,502,795 1,500,901
(950,449) (919,658)
552,346 581,243
151 243
552,497 581,486
235,406 248,865
24 44
1,089,323 1,104,345
44,992 52,330
13,506 9,093
58,498 61,423

1,147,821 § 1,165,768




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
September 30,
2017 2016
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 36,694 $ 23,147
Member advances 993 993
Operating reserves 20,599 19,140
Current portion of long-term debt 41,870 39,440
Accrued interest payable ' 9,612 10,260
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 109,768 92,980
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 64,589 57,774
Operating reserves and other deposits 142,280 133,735
Interest rate swap liability 15,433 23,260
Long-term debt, net 705,660 747,572
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 927,962 962,341
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,037,730 1,055,321
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 71,338 73,112
Pension deferrals 4,460 6,599
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 75,798 79,711
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (43,767) (44.,451)
Restricted 41,332 40,211
Unrestricted 36,728 34,976
TOTAL NET POSITION 34,293 30,736

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,147,821 $ 1,165,768




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Three Months Ended September 30,

2017

(in thousands)

90,450 $ 84,275
80,612 44,865
171,062 129,140
89,240 66,979
16,239 13,232
38,719 25,040
7,736 7,681
4,274 3,154
3,987 3,695
160,195 119,781
10,867 9,359
(11,389) (11,589)
2,334 (565)
1,229 6,276
(7,826) (5.878)
(839) (654)
(1,969) (54)
233 2,773
34,060 27,963
34293 § 30,736




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable
Participants
Other

Interest receivable

Inventory and supplies

Prepaid expenses

Due from Agency and other programs*
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other deposits and prepaids

TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

* Eliminated in Combination

September 30, 2017
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Transmission Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Eneruy Center No. One Tr ission Services Agency Combined

13 - 18 13 72 8 - -8 63 $ 19,960 S 20,098

- - - - s : - - 61,756 61,756

- = . - - 430 - 1 431

- - - - - - 866 = 260 1,126

- - - - - = 91 - 156 247

4,563 1,079 641 1,405 2,111 - - = - 9,799
126 117 9 13 104 - - 18 275 662
20,584 16,236 2,836 (641) 19,619 - 14,094 5,759 178,487) -
25274 17,432 3,487 778 21,906 - 15,481 5,840 3,921 94,119
42 3,663 2 1,641 = 6,210 - 27,376 38,934
25,257 37,628 2,533 - 30418 = 18,678 - 53,185 167,699
101 106 8 - 119 - - - 310 644
25,400 41,397 2,543 = 32,178 - 24,888 - 80,871 207,277
569,907 394,340 64,829 36,291 423,670 7,736 - 663 5,359 1,502,795
(532,885) (254,990} (46,710} (34,340) 170,594) (7,736) - (373) (2,821) 1950,449)
37,022 139,350 18,119 1,951 353,076 - - 290 2,538 552,346
- - - - 107 - - - 44 151
37,022 139,350 18,119 1,951 353,183 - - 290 2,582 552,497
200 144,599 12,035 - 22,193 - - - 56,379 235,406

14 - - - - - - - 10 24
87,910 342,778 36,184 2,729 429,460 - 40,369 6,130 143,763 1,089,323
1,831 42,179 982 5 = 2 5 2 : 44,992

. - s - 2 - 13,506 13,506

1,831 42,179 982 - - - - - 13,506 58,498
89,741 §$ 384,957 37,166 $ 2,729 § 429,460 § ¥ 40,369 §$ 6,130 § 157,269 §$ 1,147,821




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Member advances
Operating reserves
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability
Operating reserves and other deposits
Interest rate swap liability
Long-term debt, net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

September 30, 2017
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric No. One Energev Center Tr ission Tr issi Services Agency Combined

66 306 $ 2 3 2,543 8 - 3 29,988 § - 3,789 8 36,694

791 - - - - - 202 - 993
6,213 250 513 743 12,880 - - - - 20,599
4,910 22,610 3,995 - 10,355 - - - - 41,870
175 3,819 274 - 5,344 - - - - 9,612
12,155 26,985 4,782 745 31,122 - 29,988 202 3,789 109,768
- ! - . ; - - - 64,589 64,589
18,243 16,235 - - 1,714 24,979 238 80,871 142,280
- 15,433 - - - - - - - 15,433
24,520 309,946 30,363 - 340,831 - - - 705,660
42,763 341,614 30,363 - 342,545 = 24 979 238 145,460 927,962
54,918 368,599 35,145 745 373,667 - 54,967 440 149,249 1,037,730
19,223 3,902 974 2,065 41,914 - - 291 2,969 71,338
- : - - - - - - 4,460 4,460
19,223 3,902 974 2,065 41,914 - - 291 7,429 75,798
(3,837) (21,229) (4,156) - (15,382) - - - 837 (43,767)
6,101 17,283 2,268 - 15,678 = = - 2 41,332
13,336 16,402 2,935 (81) 13,583 - (14,598) 5,399 (248) 36,728
15,600 12,456 1,047 (81) 13,879 - (14,598) 5,399 591 34,293
89,741 384,957 8 37,166 2,729 8 429,460 3 - 8 40,365 § 6,130 157,269 § 1,147,821




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
Intercompany (sales) purchases, net*
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

* Eliminated in Combination

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2017

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES

Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Eneruy Center Transmission Transmission Services Asency Combined
1,177 114 1,683 204§ 11,441 8 71324 $ 4460 $ 47 90,450
8,670 11,973 811 1,135 13,763 44,162 98 80,612
9,847 12,087 2,494 1339 25,204 115,486 4,558 47 171,062
- - - - 1,283 - 87,957 - - 89,240
3,641 792 466 575 7,672 - 901 2,192 - 16,239
132 894 275 289 373 36,755 1 - 38,719
966 2,429 553 45 3,652 = - 15 76 7,736
1,074 1,773 154 423 835 > - 15 - 4,274
1,227 553 161 163 1,207 - - 1,455 (779) 3,987
(151) 60 15 24 68 - (16) -

6,889 6,501 1,624 1,519 15,090 125,613 3,662 (703) 160,195
2,958 5,586 870 (180) 10,114 (10,127) 896 750 10,867
(175) (5,860) (1,454) - (3,900) - - - - (11,389)
416 222 37 - 248 - 291 9 1,185 2,334

2 1 336 - 668 - - - 222 1,229
243 (5,637) (1,155) - 12,984) - 291 9 1,407 (7,826)
(534) (1,410) 564 - 541 249 - - (249) (839)
(140) 120 3 (1) - - (994) 2 (959) (1,969}
2,527 (1,341) 282 (181) 7,671 249 (10,830) 907 949 233
13,073 13,797 765 100 6,208 (249) (3,768) 4,492 (358) 34,060
15,600 12,456 1,047 81) $ 13879 S (14,598) § 5399 $ 591 34,293




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
September 30, 2017

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 1,557,165

PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 1,557,165

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2018.xIsxSep Rpt 2017



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NC

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 26, 2017

SUBJECT:

Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended September 30, 2017

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth ~— U METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members Cityof Lodi [J

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC

City of Biggs [ City of Redding [

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [

If other, please specify:

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o 0o o o o

SR: 213:17



Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending September 30, 2017
October 17, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $3,456,923 of which approximately $13,328 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $3,288 to Debt Service and $3,440,307 to Operations and
other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $285,023,255 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $283,526,636.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.172% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.188%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $164,210,000. September maturities totaled $8 million and monthly receipts totaled
$36 million. During the month $27 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 5 basis points (from 1.01%
to 1.06%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 8 basis points (from 1.23% to 1.31%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of September 30, 2017
are in compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and
investment maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

fi

General Manager

Attachment

SR: 213:17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value $

Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Cash & Investment Balance

September 30, 2017
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
2,023,241 $ 103,340,028 105,363,269 36.52%
1,414,236 - 1,414,236 0.49%
2,830 4,937,289 4,940,119 1.71%
3,288 19,973,250 19,976,538 6.92%
13,328 156,772,688 156,786,016 54.35%
3,456,923 $ 285,023,255 $ 288,480,178 100.00%
283,526,636

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
September 30, 2017
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR  (NOTEB) _ FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS

Operating $ 31,789,305 $ 12,712 $ 2,239,511 $ (17,253,638) $ (14,829,933) $ (8,922,008) $ (6,964,051)
Special Deposits 4,269,138 7 - (6,892,889) - 2,623,822 78
Construction - - - - - - -
Debt Service - - 1,792 - (6,059,291) 6,058,675 1,176
Special & Reserve - 253 5,850,072 - (6,089,836) 239,511 -

$ 36,058,443 § 12,972 $ 8,091,375 $ (24,146,527) $ (26,979,060) $ 0 $ (6,962,797)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Investment Activity Summary

September 30, 2017
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 14,829,933 $ (2,239,511) $ (1,604) $ $ - $ 12,588,818
Special Deposits - - - - -
Construction - - 228 - 228
Debt Service 6,059,291 (1,792) 12,919 - 6,070,418
Special & Reserve 6,089,836 (5,850,072) (9,957) - 229,807
$ 26,979,060 $ (8,091,375) $ 1,586 $ $ - 18,889,271
Less Non- Cash Activity
(1,586)

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

$ 18,887,686




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

September 30, 2017
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.241% 1.258%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.245% 1.200%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.343% 1.362%
Capital Facilities 1.820% 1.808%
Hydroelectric 1.360% 1.325%
Lodi Energy Center 1.693% 1.365%
INTEREST RATES
1.75
150 d_,wiwég%wg:fﬂ,ﬁ
KEY INTEREST RATES 125 —— __-.,._.gr"‘"'A
PRIOR 1.00 1
CURRENT  YEAR 075 -
0.50
Fed Fds (Ovrnight) 1.16% 0.40% 0.2 N
T-Bills (90da.) 1.06% 0.27% 0.00 ror | Mav o Ae s
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.01% 0.30% Pr & oan ) ua ep
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.31% 0.59%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.28% 0.60% ‘
T-Notes (3yr.) 1.59% 0.87% —+—TBILL(30DA)  —&—FED FUNDS
et TBILL (1YR) —o—TNOTE (3YR) |




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
September 30,2017
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ - $ 18,571 $11,117 $8,553 $ - $ 164,210 $§ - $ 202,451 70.62%
US Bank Trust Money Market 10 10 0.00%
Commercial Paper 30,122 30,122 10.51%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 52,046 52,046 18.16%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 2,029 2,029 0.71%
U.S.Treasury Bill 0.00%
Certificates of Deposit 10 10 0.00%
Total Dollars $ 84,217 $18,571 $11,117 $8,553 $0 $164,210 $0 $ 286,668 100.00%
Total Percents 29.38% 6.48% 3.88% 2.98% 0.00% 57.28% 0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we Lp:g0 L10Z/8LI0L
0 15002 LG00LSAS O 0000 3 0 €L0Z/L0/£0 0000 0 asn yueg sn
Lzg 61002 6L00LSAS 128 2000 3 128 €L02/L0/20 2000 128 208n ojjeD o dueg uotun
986'G/€'/2 20002 0000LSAS 986'Gl€'/T €260 L 986'.€'L2 €1L0Z/L0/1L0 €260 986'.€'LT 4ivi wiseAu] Aousby (200
aAlasay BunesadQ jesouan
182'ves'sT  § S0L'6SE'ET  $ 861’1 66Y 265°195'€Z  $ W'l z96'zes'sc  $ abeJaAy pue |ejol pund
000'260'G 28€92 B6ELEDOELE L/E'696'Y 0se'L Le0'L 0202Z/8Z/40  000'/60°G oL0g/8z/L0  0GE'L 000'/60'G o08n Bi feuolieN |esepad
000'860'S 0g€9e S6fODSELE  LbP'L90'S 0se'L 262 6402/82/0L  000'860'S 9L0Z/82/¥0  0SEL 000'860'S 208n Biin jeuoneN [esopad
GZE'eL6'E 18192 FLAODSELE LGL'296'E 69¢'t zzy 8102/L2/LL  0£9'000'y vlLozeLZL  s29L 000'296'c 208N By feuoiie |esepad
000'0LG't £229 ZISSYOELE ¥LL'S0S'Y 000'L 802 8L02//ZIY0  000'CLS'Y SL0Z/LZP0  000°L 000015t o08n eg UeoT oWoH [esepad
0 8500/ 8500/SAS 0O 0000 3 0 €L0Z/10/0 0000 0 asn sjueg sn
9l €2002 €Z00LSAS 9l $000 3 9l €L0Z/L0/0  S00°0 oL 208N oJeD Jo yueg uoun
9r6'558'y Zz00L ZZOOLSAS 9¥6'sS8'y £26'0 L 96558y €L0Z/L0/IL0 €260 9r6'sS8'Y v wyseAut Aoueby |200
3unodoy Bulduejeg vdos
62129 $ 62ZL'29 $ v26'0 l 62129 $ 260 622'29 $ abelaAy pue jejo) pung
62229 S¥00. SPOOLSAS 62.'29 €260 L 62229 €L0Z/LO/L0 €260 62.'29 wysaauy AousBy (e007]
300y uoidny OHO ddiN
80v'v69'te  $ zTIEr'e  $ 820°) 18¢ zeTLsLe  § forAN S1L'62918  § abesaAy pue fejo) pung
000202 £0¥9Z ZEAVOVELE  L/2'L0Z 0022 8.5'L TTOZ/IOZ/L0 000202 2102/08/L0 0022 000202 208n WA UeOT BWOH [elepad
000°005'€ S8€92 FHAVOVELE GLL'OZr'e 005'} zer'L LZ02/£2I80  000'00G'E 9l0z/Ee/LL  00S'L 000'005'€ 208N W UBQT] BWOH |elepady
¥S5°119'C S9YOT SUSHIEELE 616265 0z9'L v6E'L 1202192120 ¥8L'L19'T 2102/82/180  0ZL') 000'209'C 208an Upa1) wied |esepe4
orL'zel'L S5€92 08dSYOELE 966'8Y9°L LivL 902'L LZ0Z/6LIL0 80L'L8L'L 9L0Z/BLL0  OOv'L 000'68L°L 208n g UE0 BWOH |esopad
¥88'686'7 99r9z OMLEVOELE Z09'v96'Y o6t} 0z0'L 020ZILLIL0  €L£'086' £10zZ/82/80  009'L 000'626'7 208n eg Ueo allioH [esepay
119'216'6 1£292 LOAVILELE SE6'ZL6'6 ost'L 909 6L0Z/0E/S0  006'€86'6 SL0Z/60/90  0SZ'L 000°0.8'6 o08n WA UEGT BUWOH |BJopad
165'529'€ 08292 ord43eeie 819'619' 00€'L riv 8L0Z/BLILY  8¥6'rTe'e slozrziey 062 000'929'¢ o08n UPa1) wied [esepe4
1¥8L08'C rorez ZAJSBEELE  L10'205'T 90°L 85 21021821 YOv'e6P'T 2102/82/186  0L0'L 000°905'2 s08n eg UeoT sWoH |etepay
000'0L yOE0E POSOESAS 000'0L 0S0°0 9 2102/20/0L  000'0} 2102201106 0S0°0 000'0L asn Nueg SN
SP2'96F'e 95002 9500/SAS Sh.l'o6b's 0090 ! Sv.'98b'e 2102172180 009°0 Si2'96¥'e asn Aueg sn
6€2'€20'C 05002 0S00/SAS 6€£2'€20'C 1000 I 6ET'€20'C €L0Z/0E/90 1000 6€2'€20'C asn Aueg sn
€i8'e 71002 YL00/SAS €lL8'e 2000 L €18t €L0Z/L0/0 2000 gig'e o08an ojl[eD jo jueg uolun
816'v0p'P L 00002 0000/SAS 8L6'YOY'¥L €260 L 816 VOV yL €L0Z/LO/L0 €260 8L8'POF'YL Ellal wiseaut Aousby (2007
000'629'92 L0L0L LOLOLSAS 000'629'92 0580 L 000'629'92 vLOZ/I9Z/LL 0S80 000'629'92 asn W'N “ued sn
anjep Buifuen # JusuysaAu| dISND  anjep Jaxen PIAIA Aunep sjeq @oud ajeq ey anjeA pajels uelpo}sny / ddjsnaL Janssy
Ainbg o) sheq Kumey paseyaing aseyaind sadeju]
~puog
Bunesadg
L102/0€/60

| obed

Hoday sJainsealj
KAouaby 1amod eruiojijen uisyonN

AINIEY BI04 VINEOYI NUIHINON

VSN



902°258's8L  $

'505'052v8)

we |y:80

LL0Z/8L/0¢

Apauenb uays ‘'8T/9z/1 219eied JWTHA €0b9ZH JuswIsaAY]
Ajpaprenb uayl ‘81/92/1 31qel1eD JWTHA Z0Y9T#H Juswisanul
Apaprenb ajqejied JWTHA S8E9zZ#H IuBWISAAUL
Ajsanenb aiqejie) YNNG 89E9T# JuaWIsIAU|
Auapienb ajqejied  WINNG £SE9Zi udwisanu)

awnjAue 3|qe|jed
awAue ajqeje)
awgAue ajqe|ed
swAue ajqeje)

9044 9SE9TH JUaWSAAU|
91H4 SSEITH JUBWISAAU|
81H1 YSEITH JuUsWISaAU|
8244 SEEITH JuBUNSIAU|

Apsuenb ajqejied  VIAING ZEE9ZH BUNSAAY]
Auauenb ajqejjed  WIAING 0££9Z4 uduNIsAAU|
L102/0£/60 3O SE |euInof 19318 [leM 43 Woly seoud pig 4o SjuaLale}s ueIpolSNY /23)shi ) Wolj seoud uo paseq si anjep B Juaung

‘pPoyjaLt JoeX3 Uk 2sn S1alo jle ‘poyjaw ajewnxosdde ue asn Ajunew o) SYZUOW g UBY) SS3] YIM SJUBLUISDAUY
‘sad4} jje usamjaq uosiedwod Joj siseq e aptaoid o} Jeak Aep Gog e Uo paseq umoys si Ajunjepy o} piatA Jusjeainba puog,

$ 00Z'L z95 ove'o00'98L $ Syl £1Z'z89's8L  $ 1$TVLOL GNYVHO
z8L'095'08 § 65v'968°6L $ SZEL §9L 181'819'08  $ o€ Log'sgv'os  $ sbelaAy pue |ejo) puny
8ip'eeo’e 29v9T 69D6LEELE ¥8'L6S'E 09L'L €LY TTOT/OLI90  095'veg'e L102/82/80  STLT 000'525'€ o08n eg Ueo auWoH [esepad
000'29¢ 20v92 ZEAVOVELE PLE'SOY 00z’ 8.5') 2202T/92/L0 000'i9% 210Z/0€/L0 00Z'2 000'281 o0an A UBOT] BWOH [e1epad
000'629°0} GEEIT SHOO3EELE 90S°ZLS'0L 069'L ove'l LZ202/20/90  000'629°0L 9102/20/90  089'L 000'629°'0L o08an upa1) wie [esepe
000'00€'L 89€9C EMEEDIELE 662'V.Z'L 005’1 SEE'L LZ02/182/50  000'00€L 910Z/0€/80  00S'L 000'00€"L o04an By (euoneN (esepay
000'291's zee92 SINEDIELE 89Z'OKO'S SZ9'L zee') L202/52/S0 000'2Z9L'S 9L0z/52IS0 STO'L 000'29L'S 204N Bi [euoneN |esapad
698'€LL'9L ySe9Z 08d8VOELE 206'L2'OL Lyl 902l L20Z/6L/L0  OP9'LLLOL 9L0Z/6L/L0  00F'L 000'022'9L o04an Bg UBOT SWOH |eJopa4
958'182Z'y 95692 LdWNO3IEELE 9Z8'9LZY £97'L 02"} LZOZIBLIL0  SL2'082'Y 9L02/02/L0  Ovb'L 000582y 208N UpaI) uue4 [ejopa4
ZS1'610'S 9¥e9T TAZO9SELE TEB'000'S oev'L 982 6L0Z/92/LL  P9E'LPO'S 5L02/82/80  0SL'L 000286t 208n By (euoneN fesepad
089'L86'S 8819¢ PLAODSELE 19L'LL6'S oSyl [444 8L0Z//T/LL  102'600'9 LOZIETIZL  ST9'L 000°046'G 208n Bl |euonieN [elepad
anjep Buifiey # JUDLUISIAUY diSND  anjep el PIRIA Kunyey ajeq aoud aeq ey anjep pajelg uelpoIsny f ad)sni 1anssj
Ainbg 0} sheq Aunjey paseyaing aseyoung Jsasauf
puog
aAlasay BuneladQ jesauan
1102/0¢/60

Z abed

KouaBy Jamod eluioyjes uIBUUON

Joday sJainsear]

ATMIEY §3004 VINEDIATYD NHIRINON

VdON,



S8.L

€002

we z:60 LLoz/vo/oL

PEOOLSAS 682 Z000 L S8/ €L0Z/L0/20  TO0'0 =73 o08n ojiled Jo sjueg uolun
0St've 12002 1200LSAS 0SY'vE £€26'0 3 osy've €L0Z/LO/L0 €260 0S've El\al wyseAu] Aouaby |g007
aAl9say Buluoissiwwosag oen

000°005‘s  § 090'v6r'L  $ 051’k 1zy 000°005°L osk'L 000°005‘t  § abeloAy pue |ejoL pung
000°005'L 20692 OMISOVELE  090'v6Y | oSl (¥4 2L0Z/9Z/LL  000'00S'L oL0z/9zIZ0  0GL'L 000'00S‘} 208n W Ueo] sWoH |esepag
0 €9002 €900/SAS 0 0000 I 0 €L0Z/LO/L0 0000 ¢} asn ueg sn
0 51002 GLO0/SAS 0O 2000 1 ] €10Z/L0/L0 2000 0 208N ojile Jo ueg uoun
0 Z€00L ZE00LSAS © 95e0 I 0 €L0ZM0/L0  95€0 0 Elval wisanu| AousBy |B007
aAIaSaY [e1dadg jewiayjoan

ses‘oal § Li5'99L $ 1oL 88 ocy'a9l 660 ooo'z9L  $ abesaay pue [ejo) pung
G.8'ES 8.y9Z SMNG6/CLE  €98'€S 5960 88 L10Z/82/ZL  698'ES 110212160 0560 000'7S Lasn AinsesuL s
19875 01¥92 SMINGBLZLE  198'FS ¥00'L 88 LL0Z1822L  L18'%S L10Z/62/30 1860 000'sS 18sn Anseasl 's'n
£58'L5 £PYOz GriNgs/ZLe £58'LS 650'L 88 Loe-eieL vrl'ls 2102182120 6E0°L 000'8S 18sn Anseai] ‘s
SVIAIBS 1G9(Q VI910Z 099

686z $ 696z  § 990°L €6 609°2LE 901 000'v2e  § abeiaAy pue |ejo) pung
£/9'22L 1Lv9T VEOUSGBEELE 199221 1901 €6 8L0Z/Z0/L0 659221 1102//2160  OS0'L 000'€Z} Lasn eg UBO SWOH [esepad
£29°2ZL 69v9Z VEOUSEEELE  199'ZZL 0L €6 8L0Z/ZOL0  155°2TL 1102/62/180  OE0'L 000'€Zt 1asn eg UBOT BWOH |esepay
€921 oz VEOUSBEELE  L¥9'LTL 00L'L €6 8L02/20/L0  €6£'LCL 240Z/82/.0  080°L 000'8Z1 1asn eg Ueo SWOH [eiepa
92IAI9S 1937 VZ10Z 09D

180°20L  § £p0°20L $ £90°1 €6 99€'90L vro'L 000'60L  $ eBelaAy pue jejo pung
LIE'EET VT4 VEOUSBEELE YGE'EET 0L €6 8LOZIZO/L0  LSE'EET 2102122160 00’} 000'v€2 188N ef Uo7 SWOH |elepaj
08E'¥ET 89Y9Z VEDUSBEELE LGE'VET 6€0°} €6 8L0Z/IZ0L0  £5L'EC 110Z/82/80  120'} 000's€2 1asn eg Ueo aWioH [esepay
0£E'6E2 Loz VEDUGBEELE B8EE'6ET 0oL’} €6 8L0Z/Z0/L0  298'8ET 2102/82/.0  080'} 000'0¥2 Lasn eg Ueo sl |elspagy
92IAI9S 1g9Q jewliayjoan

681'8.8 $ 155'8.8 $ oL 0s ££9°228 0€0'L 000°088 $ sbeloAy pue [ejo) puny
681'8.8 29v9T 8XdSgEELE  255'8.8 160'L 09 LL0ZI0E/LL  £89'2.8 2102/82/80  0£0'L 000°088 asn eg UB0T] JWoH [eiopad
anjep builien # JUaWSaAY| dISND  9njep jadueN PIoIA Aunepn ajeq asugd ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsny j 39)snit lanssj

Anb3 01 sheq Aunjepny paseyaing aseyoing FEEYETTT
puog
pung uononnsuo) Loz 039
2102/0€/60

| abed

Kouaby Jomod elulogijen usayHoN

uoday sJainseal}

AINICV BI04 VINEOAOYD NHIHIHON

VdON /



181'z62's2  $

we sZ:60 LL0zivoloL

Asayienb uayy ‘gT/9z/1 31qel1eD JNTHA FOYIZH JUAWIsAAU|
Apapenb ajqejied  VINNA 69€9Z# Juswisanu|
Apspenb ajqejed  VINNS £E£9Z# JuawIsany|
Apapenb ajqejied JWTHA ZOEIZ# uUBWISaAU]

L10Z/0E/60 3O SE [BLINOC }12a1)S JJEM 3U) Wouy sasud piq Jo SJUSWIB)e}S URIPOIShY) /ea)sni) Woly sedsud Uo peseq SI anjes JoXIe JusLng

‘POYIBLL JOBXS U 3sN SI3L30 || ‘poLjotu sjewixoldde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SYIUOW g UeL) SSa} YIIM SJUSLUISIAU]
sadA} ||e usamjaq uosuedwod 104 siseq e opiacid o} Jeah Aep Go¢ B Uo paseq umoys s Alunjey o3 plaiA jua{eanbg puog,

'08L'vs0'sT  § z9eL 68L zze'srz'sz  $ Ve seT'vie’se $ :STVLOL ANVHD

626'YYS'L  $ sie'ols’t  § Sl9'L oleL 9.8'vps’L  $ rig'L 000°6¥5°L  $ abesaAy pue fejo] pung
000°2L5°L €€€9T GINEDOELE 686'Z8F'L 5291 zee't L20Z/SZISO  000'L1LG'L 9L02/5TIS0 STl 000°2L5'L lasn By jeuoneN (erepady
62622 0Sv9Z SMN96LZIE 62612 8501 88 £102/182/ZL  9.8'[T 2102/82120  O¥0'L 000'82 asn Anseal 'g'n
JUNOIY WSA VZLOZ 08D

L60'sv¥'e  $ (44242 SN ] osv'L 269 €55'seV'e $ 18e'L ooo'esv'e  § abesaAy pue [ejo ) pung
SZP'1L0ST 16192 SINAVILELE 685'00S'C 0ES'L LEL 6L0Z/20/0L  BES8'E8Y'T §L0Z/LTIR0 0STL 000'61L5'Z lasn WA UeoT SWoH [elepay
¥81'216 82292 LOAVIALELE SPE'0LE pSeL 909 6L0Z/0E/S0  988'0Z6 SL0Z/IZO/90  0SLL 000'208 18sn WA UBOT SWOH [elepad
888'0€ 692 or196.216 888'0€ 080t €ZL 8L0Z/L0/Z0  828'0E 2102182/20  090'L 000°L€ asn Anseall 's'n
109y 8AI9SaY 9IIAISG 198d OIO

666'929'9L  § vez'zar'al  $ €L’ $88 S5v'529°91L ¢ 29¢°L sez'ogg'ol  $ abeiaAy pue [ejo) puni
000°t¥6 YOr9T TEAVOPELE €09'2€6 00Z'C 86"t 2202/9Z/L0  000'L¥6 LL0Z/OE/L0  002'T 000°L¥6 208n N Ueo awoH [esepad
000'002'6 69£92 EMEEDIELE  LET'80G'6 0051 See'L L20Z/82/S0  000'00L'6 9l0Z/0E/80  00S'L 000'002'6 2080 By jeUOnEN [BISPaS
092'000'9 YLy LYdS8EELE  G9L'L00'9 Lyo'L ¥S Jl0ZmeILL 0Z2'666'S 210Z/ezI80 52O’ 000'04L0'9 208N eg Ueo) swoH [elspady
0 65002 6500/SAS O 0000 L 0 £L0Z/L0/20 0000 0 asn ueg sn
anjep Buikuen # JusunsaAu) dISND  anjep 1oxten PIBIA Aunmepy ajeq R ajeq ajey anjep pajels ueipoIsng / d8)SNLL ianss)

ambg o} sfeq Aunmepn paseyaing aseyoing jsasau|
»puog
oAlasey Butuolssiwwosag 03
L10Z/0€/60

7 abed

poday sainsealt
Kouaby Jomod ejulojijen uJsyuoN

AJNILY UIMDS VINEOIWI zzwchazxw

VdON /



we 5zZ:60 Lioz/voiol

BAI9S9Y |e1oadg OupAH

£51'169 $ zic'se  § 06LL 80Vl 168169 § 5/8°L 000689  § abesaAy pue |ejo) pung
£51°'169 FASCTA EVEEOPELE Z1E'£89 062'L 80F'L 1202/60/80  L6E°169 11021820 Gi8'L 000'689 asn I UBOT BWOH [e1epad
1UNO22Y 8Jeq3Y VZ10Z 0IPAH

800°05L's  § siv'ieL's  $ 699°L 1zoL gse'sel's ¢ o8l 000'€LL's $ obelsAy pue [ejo) pung
9.b'8€5'S £4292 6ZS3JECLE 096'GES'S 089'L 8€0°'1 0Z0ZIVOIB0  /8L'9KS'S S10Z/82/80  0SL'L 000'825°G asn 1pa1) wue [esepa
0L6'LyL L5¥9Z 9DENXEELE 666 LrL 0oF'L 8€9 610Z/L0/20  L09'ZYL 1102/82120  SiEV 000'sEL asn g UE0 SWOH [eJepe
zz9'sy €297 ZaN96.ZL6 919'6F £8l'L =154 810Z/vTISO  895'6Y 1102/62/180 6611 00005 asn Ainseaiy ‘s'n
V0L0Z AIS3Y 991AI98 199 04pAH

128'968'8  § 61£'968'8  § S90°L €6 669°288'8  § 0L 000'126'8  $ abelany pue fejoL puny
6L1'v56'C S.v9Z VEOMGBEELE GTY'ES6'T 0L €6 810Z/Z0/L0  08L'€S6'Z 1102/.2/60  0S0'L 000'296'2 1asn g UeoT] SWoH [esspad
LLL'2G6'T L1v92 VEOMSBEELE 218'956'T 8r0'L £6 8102/20/L0  LIE'YS6'T 1102/62/80 00’} 000'596'C 1asn eq Ueo SWOH fesepad
1v9'586'C vrroz VEOMSEEEIE 1€2'G86'C ooL'L €6 8L0Z/Z0/L0  808'6/6'C 1102/82/1/0  080'% 000'v66'Z 1asn 6 UBOT SWOH |e1epey
921MI9S 1920 CIPAH

108850  $ voo‘'svo'y  $ 50Z'L svp 8cS'cL0Y ¢ S8g’l 000°050°v abesoAy pue [e10) pung
£Y6'2h'T 00£92 LOAd3EELE Z5L'0EP'T 090°t 8Ly 6L02/22IL0  10S'0SH'Z 9102/20/20  0ST'L 000°2¥'T asn Wpa1) uLe [eispag
166'LES'L 68192 YIAQOSGELE 886°0€S'L osv't [444 8L0Z/LCILL  PT'EES'L vLozZrRWZL  S29'L 000'625'L asn By feuoneN [eiopad
198'e8 zv9z 93N96/TI6 ¥98'E8 6960 09 L10Z/0S/LL  £61°€8 LL02/62/80 €560 000'v8 asn finseest 'g'n
sanIve jeniu] opAH

9ce'ssL'ol ¢ £v6'voL'al  § SLL'L ozy 9c6's8l'ol  § SiLL oc6'ssl'oL § aBelaAy pue [ejo) pung
000°0Z€'S oresz SHAEO9ELE ZVE'E9Z'S ose't oz 6L0Z/0S/CL  000°0Z€'S 910Z/0€/90  OSE'L 000°0z¢'s 204n BIl [euoneN [elopad
000'122'e ¥0£9z OMIBDYELE SHZ'80Z'E osL'L 12y 810Z/92/LL  000'1ZZ'E 9L0z/62/20  0SL'L 000'LZT'E 208n N UBOT BWOH |esepad
000°€66'E 6£€92 08VEOYELE 0Zv'LE6'S 0560 (914 810Z/62/90  000'€66'S 910Z/62/90  0S6°0 000'€66'S 208n N UEO BWOH [eiopa4
0 25002 ZSO00LSAS O 0000 L ] €L0Z/10/20 0000 0 asn ueg sn
0 LE00. LE00ISAS 0 Z000 L 0 €L0Z/10/0 2000 0 208an opeD Jo sueg uolun
9€6'L59'E 82002 8ZO0LSAS 986'159'E €260 L 9¢6'159'e €L0Z/L0/I0 €260 9£6'159'c 41 wysau] fousBy (g0
anjep Buikued # Jusunsaau) dISND  anjep 1@xen PBIA Rumen ejeq adlid ajeq ajey anjep pajels UelpoISNY / 28)SNIL Jensst

Anb3 03 skeq Aunew peseyaing aseyaing ysauajuy
.puog
OJpAH aAtasay Aa( [epde)
2102/0€/60

| abed

Hoday sJainseas]

Kouaby 1omod BILIOIED WISYMON

’
AINIDY HIMDI WINBOITYD RUIHIHOY

VdON. /



we §2:60 L10Z/r0/01

Auanenb ajqejiel  VINING 6SE9T# udwIsAAY]
Auaysenb ajqejied YNNG ObEJZH usUISIAU]
Apaysenb ajqeqie) JNTHA 6£€9T# udUSAUY
Apapsenb ajqefe) JINTHS €0£9Z# uBWISAAUY

LL0Z/0E/60 JO SE [eLUNO(* J2213S [[BM 243 Woiy saoud piq JO SJuaajelg Ue|pojsny jea)snu ) Wwoiy sasud uo paseq S| anjep Jade jJuaung

"POYIaLL JOBXD UR 3sN SIALJO |je ‘poylaw ajewxoidde ue asn fjunjew O SYIUOWS g ULL) SS3| YIIM SIUBWISIAU]
‘sadf} |je usamjaq uosuedwod o) siseq e apiaoad o} Jeak Aep gg¢ e uo paseq umoys st AJunjely 03 PIoIA Jusjealinbl puog,

vse'sLT'ly  $ '£8C'68Z° LY $ sze'L vog 0SL'e6Z'Y  § 09€E'L 9ge'aLZ' Ly § :STVLIOL ANVYS
6L021Z'Y § olLs'vez'y  $ 5182 9Lsl oco'alzy $ Lez ooo'stz'y  $ abesoAy pue fejo) pung
1£T'126'S 7488z z8aQv3LELe £89'/66'C 08e'Z s95'L ZTOZ/ELILO  ZET'9TE'E ZL0Z/60/20  SLET 000'826'¢ asn WA UEOT BUWOH [iepe4
000'v6 65€9Z 16SED9ELE  080'L6 0gs't 96¢'L 1202/82/20  000'v6 9102/92/1.0  0LS') 000'v6 gasn BIN [eUOREN [BJ3pa4
06100} vvzoz 62533€ELE  PYL'00L 0894 8€0'l 0Z0Z/v0I80  62E'00L §10Z/92/80  0SLL 000°00} asn UpeI) wied feispay
259's6 T5vT 9r196.216 £59'S6 080t €71 8L0Z/L0/C0  69V'S6 210282120 090°) 000'96 asn fanseaul 's'n
vasSa z10zZ o4pAH
000°005‘L  $ 090'vY'L  $ osi'L £ 000'005‘s  $ ostL 000°00S°L obesaAy pue [ejo) pung
000°005'L £089Z OMMSOVELE 090'v6Y't oSkl Lz 8102/9z/LL  000'00S'} 9L0Z/92/20  0SLL 000°00S't 208N W UBOT SWOH [BJ9pa4
0 $9002 YO00LSAS O 0000 ! 0 €L0Z/L0/0 0000 0 asn Aueg sn
0 91002 9L00/SAS 0 2000 L 0 €10Z/L0/0 2000 0 208N oji[eQ jo yueg uolupn
0 £€00L €E00/SAS 0 96E0 L Q €1L02/40/20  95€°0 0 4V upseAu) Aoueby [e207
0 £000. 0000.SAS 0 LI£0 L 0 €L0Z/L0/20  1J€0 0 Elal wysenu| AousBy 12007
anjep buikuen #juaunsaaul dISND  anfeA el PIBIA Rumen areq 201d ajeq ajey enjep palels ueipoysny / e93snIL Jonss|
Amnbg o) sheg funmep paseyaing aseyaing Isaseu}
.puog
ansasay [e1oadg oJpAH
1102/0¢/60

¢ abed

Hoday s Jainsess)
Kouaby samod eluioyijen WdyUON

AINILY BIMDS VINEOIITYD NYIHIVON



99e'ees’s ¢

we gz:60 Liozwoiol

Apauenb ajqejied  VIAING 8SE9Z4# uausaAy|

Z10Z/0E/60 1O SE [ELUINOC 2348 {|eM 8} Wos) S8aud pig J0 SJU3WaJe]S URIpoISNY f99)snu] wolj saald uo paseq s anjeA JoXIep Jusung

‘poyIal JoBXa UB 3sN SJ1ayYjo [[e ‘poylaw ajewixoidde ue asn LUnjew o} SLRUOL g UBY) SSB| YJIM SIUBLIISIAU|
‘sadf] jje uasmiaq uosuedwod 1o siseq e aplaoid 0} Jeak Aep gag e uo paseq umoys si Ajunjep 0} PISIA Jusjeainby puog,

‘169'v8S'T  $ 808°L 616 99Z's€5'T ozg'L 000°s€S'C 'STVLOL ANVHO
ves'oss't  $ 99z'zis'L  § vz'e ¥2st SLT'eSSE  $ 90€T ooo'svs’t  $ abesaay pue [ejol pundg
SL6'vhY'L Sv8ST Zaava/ElE 665'89b'L ove'e 595t TT0ZIELIL0  OSV'ibb'L ZL0ZIELZ0  SIET 000'Stt'L asn WA Ueo") SWoH [esepad
000°L2 85£92 16SED9ELE 95289 0gs') 96e'L 1202/82120  000°LL 9L02/8T/L0  0£S'L 000°L2 asn BuN jeuoneN |esepay
L16'vE £5v92 STN9B.ZLE LI6'PE 650t 98 21021822, Sva'vE 1102/82/20  OVO'L 000°sE asn Ainsesit 's'n
BAI9SaY IAS Jgeg "oed "de)
Zrs'z8e § Lev'zee $ L0} ozl 166186  § €501 000986 § ebeleAY pue ejo] pung
6cZ'68Y 6.v9Z VINSSSEELE  PGL'68Y 890°L ford) 910Z/10/Z0  LgL'sey 110Z/.2/60  0S0'% 000°L6% 1asn g Ue0] 3WOH [esopa
£0€'e6h L9v9z ZOSSEEELE  L/Z'S6h v.0'L s 8l0Z/92/L0  018'Z6Y 1102/32/80  SSO'L 000°'56% 1asn B9 UEO BWOH [eispe
anjep, Builue) # JueujseAul dISND  enjepjaxyel PIRIA Kumey sjeQ e s1eq ajey sniep pajels uejpoIsny / 2ajsniL Janssy
AInb3 01 sheg fumep paseyaind aseyaing }sasau}
puog
821AI19G 192Q sanljioe de)
2102/0€/60

} abed

uoday sainseal]
Kouaby 1amod eluliojijen ulsypoN

ADNALY B3O VNS0V NBIHIBON .\

VSN



we gz:60 LL0Z/Y0/0L

soe'6re 8yyoT OAdSBEELE  GBE'BYE 880} 19 2L0Z/L0/ZL  689'8YE 2102/82/.0 0.0t 000'05€ 18sn eg Uea] aWoH |eJopad
zl€'T5E 6EVIT OAdSBEELE  68E'TSE 690'} 19 110210724 pLp'LGE 2L0ZI0E/90  0S0'L 000'€S€E 1asn eg Ueo SWoH |eJopa
LoP'8Pe 09v9Z 8XdSBEELE  BZY'BYE 150°L 09 LL0Z/0E/ L LEO'SPE 2102/52/80  080'L 000'6€ 18asn g UBO] SWOH [ejopad
8yl Z108L ZLOBLSAS 8YL 0010 L 8yl €L0Z/10/0 0010 8L asn IsnuL jueg sn
pundg sg 90102 ¢# a@nss| 231

Leo'ssLL  § sLi'sss’t  $ 6501 19 ov'esLt  § o'l ozi'esL’t  $ abeiaAy pue |ejol pund
SYT'eey z8v9Z OAdSSEELE  LYT'SEY 0£0'} 19 210Z/L0/2L  S6L'sEY 2\02/L2I80  SLO'L 000'6EY 14asn eg Ueo sWoH [eJepad
yoz'8EY 29¥92 9AJSBEELE  L¥Z'BEY 880°L 19 LL0Z/L0/ZL  9SE'iEY 2102/82/1.0 00} 000'6EY 18asn eg U0 SWoH [eJepad
vIZ' by 8EVOT OAdSSEELE SET'LYY 690} 19 L1L021L0/ZL  SL0'OFY 1L0Z/OE/90  0S0'L 000°Zhh 18sn eg Ueo] SWoH [eJeped
8y ey 65¥9Z 8XdS8EELE 28T /Y LyO'L 09 LIOZIOE/LL  ¥BL'9EY 1102/52/80  0€0'L 000'8EY 1asn eg Ueo SWoH [eJepay
ozL 11062 LLOBLSAS OTL 0010 L ozl €10Z/10/20  00L0 oz asn ISuL Ued SN
pung sa voioz z# enss| 031

coe'ol6’c  $ syp'olez 650°L 19 150°906'7  $ o't STY'SI6’T  § abeJaAy pue [ejol pund
csL'52L 18v9z OAJSEEELE 2ZvL'STL 0e0'L L9 LL0Z/L0/ZL  899'GTL LL0Z/L260  SLOL 000'222 Lasn g UB0T SWOH |eapad
8.9'/2L orveT OAdSBEELE 6€L'22L 880°L 19 LL0Z0/ZL  0L2'92L L102/82/20  0L0°L 000'622 18asn eg UeoT] SWoH [eJepa
869'0€2 LEY9T OAdSBEELE PEL'OEL 690°t 19 LL0ZIL0CL  ZLL'ezL ZLOZIOE/90  0SO'L 000'zEL 1asn &g UB0] SWOH [eJepad
252'seL 85v9z 8XdS8EELE  808'GTL p0'L 09 LLOZIOE/LL  286'veL 2102/52/80  QE0'L 000224 18sn eg Ueo SWoH teispady
ser ¥00BL ¥006.SAS G2v 0010 3 sty €L0Z/L0/Z0  00L'0 ST asn IsnuL sueg Sn
punij sa 90102 1# anss| 931

yri'zeL's  § z82'78LC  § 650°} 19 £80'82LC § Wo'L ovo'28LT $ abeiaAy pue [ejo) pund
908°269 08p9z OAJSESEELE 66.'769 0g0't 19 LL0Z/L0/ZL  82L'T69 2102122160 SLO'L 000'v69 18sn g UBOT] SWOH [eseps
8€L'769 Syvoz OAdGEEELE  9BL'VEY 880°} 19 JL0ZL0/CL  €6E'€69 L102/82120 00} 000'969 18sn eg U0 SWOH [eJepa
€62'669 9ev9T 9AJSBEELE 282669 690°} L9 LL0Z/L0/ZL  158'269 ZLOTIOE/90  0SO'L 000°10Z Lasn g U0 SWOH [eJeps
£08'€69 1Sv92 8XdS8EELE  098'€69 Lv0'L 09 LLOZIOE/LL  L20'€69 1102/52180  0E0'L 000'569 Lasn g U0 SWOH [eJepe
oro'L €006, €006SAS OFO‘4 0040 L 0v0'L €10Z/L0/20  00L0 oro'L asn IsniL sued SN
pund sa voL0zZ L#9nss| 237

eve'lL  $ eve'i. $ ¥26°0 3 eve'lL $ ¥260 Vel § abelaAy pue fejo) pung
€v8'LL 9v00L 9VO0LSAS €v8'LL €260 ! ev8'LL €L02/L0/L0 €260 ev8'lL ujsau] Aousby |eao]
anjep Guiluegy # JUSWIISBAU] dISND  anjep 1axel PISIA Aunjeny ajeq asug ajeq oyey anjep pajels uelpoisny / e9sni ) 19nss)|

Amnbg 03 sheq funyey paseyoind aseyaing 1saJapu|
puog
199y uondny HHO 031
2102/0€/60

| ebed

yoday sJainseas)

KauaBy 1amod elulojijen uidayuonN

KONIEY H3M0s VROV Nakzson

VAN



L10Z/OS/60 JO SE [eUINOf J0aNS leM 243 Woly seoud pig Jo s)

awnAue sjqe)ed

we 9z:60 Llozivoiat

8244 LEEITH WBWISIAU]

JEIS Uelp %Y, 1 wouy saoud Uo paseq S anfeA Je JuaLnD

‘poyjall JoeXa U ash SISYIO |je ‘poyiawu ajewxoidde ue asn AJLUnjew 03 SYIUOW g UBL] SS3) L)IM SJUBWIISIAU|

sadf3 yje \joq 104 siseq & apiaosd o} Jeah Aep 69t & O paseq Umoys s Ajunjely o} plalA Juajeainby puog,
068'880'Z¢ § '515'056°LE S9e'L 89L weeszi'ze $ £69'L 108'668°LE  $ SIVLOL ONVAD
we'loL'ly  $ pLY'90LLL  § 20¢'L zL 19L'002'tL  § Ly 199°9EL'LL § afe1any pue fejo) puny
000'000'€ [°T4 ZPNED9ELE  006'v96'C 008t £00'L 0Z0Z/0E/90  000'000'E 9L0Z/0E/90  00E'L 000°000'€ 208n By jeuoneN (eispay
Zro'v19'e orroz o0ravoele OpS'€09's 0ss'L 8.6 0202/50/90  296'€L9'E 2L0Z/0E/90  ObS'L 000°649'e asn eg ueoT aWoH (esepady
2€6'856'C 829 PYZ0OSELE LOE'6PE' 0ze'L 905 6L0Z/6LIZ0  TrL'866'C SL0Z/82/180  S.8'} 000'€€6°Z 208N Bi feuolieN |esspad
€ LP00L LPOOLSAS € 2000 8 € €L0Z/I8L/L0 2000 € oo8n ojeD 4o sueg uoun
#99'885'} 2002 LV00ZSAS +99'885°L €260 L v99'e8s’t £L0Z/L0/120 €260 #99'885'L unseau| Aoueby [esa
9AIasSay N ? 0 D31
£02'080°L  $ veLL0't  $ 16€°L 9€9 osp'ss0’l  $ voEy Lo § abeiaAy pue |ejo) pung
Loy’ 2L0'L 96¥9Z 9OENXEELE 20L'GL0' oov'L 8€9 6102/L0/20  804'T80' 210218210  SiEV 0006204 asn eg UeoT aWoH (eJapay
LT €L06L €L06.SAS ZvL'T ooL'a ! [4 x4 €L0Z/L0/120 004’0 ' asn isnul jueg SN
SAvE ¥Sa 9010z Z# anss| 2311
8ze'sbeT  $ yzo'iwz'z  $ 6€5°1L v86 6£9'952 $ €L8°€ sev'avi'c  $ abiesaAy pue jejo) puny
Sep'ere'z S5¥92 9EJ0LEELE  LEL'OVZ'Z ovs't S86 0Z0Z/ZLIS0  obL'SST'T 2002/82120  GIE€ 000's¥L' asn eg Ueo SWoH esape4
e6p'L 90062 9006.SAS €6V'L Q04’0 L g6t't €L0Z/0/20 0010 e6v't asn isnuy yueq sn
AsY sqng sgvd 90L0Z L#ss] 031
£11'829's  $ 981'09's  $ 80L'L 9151 212'629'8  $ €18'} cze'vie's  § abeleAy pue fejo pund
166'99L'y £9voz 69D6.EELE  661'9ZL'Y 0L’} gL'l Z20Z/0L/90  90e'8dL'y 2102/82/80  SZTL'T 000'004 't asn g UBOT SWOH |eJepad
£6L'9¥) ¥S¥oz 603VIALELE L8L'OPL 6691 L' L20Z/2180  8¥9'orL 10282110 sebL 00005+ asn WA UBOT BWOH |eispay
000'09€'y 1£€92 17893¢elE  Liv'8ZE'Y 659'L zee't 120Z/S2/S0  000'09E'v oL0Z/80/190  099'L 000°09€'Y asn 1paJ) Wued jesopay
€28y S006. G006/SAS €ZE'V 0040 3 foraed €L0Z/10/0 0010 €2E'Y asn IsniL yueq sn
pung ysa 0102 L# anss| 931
veo'see’t ¢ ssL'e6e’t  $ 650°L 19 wo'zes't  $ oL spLzZov't ¢ abelaAy pue [gjo} pund
86E'6VE £8792 OAdSEEELE  SBE'6YE 0E0°L 19 LLOZILOIZL  BSE'6YE 24021/2/60  SLO'L 000'05€ 18asn eg Ueo SWOH |elspad
anjep GulAue) # JuBuiSeAu) dISND  anjep jaxen [IETN Rumen ajeq adud ejeq ajey anfeA pajels uelpoysn) / aaysnd ) Jenssj
Anb3 o} sheq Kumen paseyaing aseyaing jsaseyu)
puog
pund sa 90102 Z# 9anss| 9371
2102Z/0€/60

Z abed

fouaby tomod eluiojijen usayuonN

Hoday sjainsealy

AINISY 3/A04 VINSDIITYI NEIHIBON,




NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORMIA POWER AGENCY

2018 Committee Meeting Calendar

Agenda Item 12

LEC PPC Executive
Faciliti mmi Publi i
gellii= N sk ce ublic _ Utility s L&R Affairs | Committee
Pooling 10:00 am Benefits Finance . Legal . 8:30 am
. . . Directors . Committee
Committees at Committee Committee 9:00 am Committee 12:00 bm &
9:00 am Lodi Energy 10:00 am 10:00 am : “op **Commission
Center 9:30 am
January 18
January 3 January 8 January 11 January 11 Sacramento
January 31 February 5 February 15 February 13 February 8 February 21 February 22
March 7/9
February 28 March 12 March 22 Retreat March 22
Healdsburg
April 4 April 9 April 19 April 12 April 26
May 2 May 14 May 17 May 8 May 10 May 23 May 24
June 6 June 11 June 21 June 14 June 28
Alameda
July 26
| | ly1 ly12
July 5 July9 July 19 July Murphys
August 1 August 13 August 16 August 14 August 9 August 22 August 23
September 26 | September 26 | September 28
September 5 | September 10 | September 20 September 13 eptember eptember eptember
Monterey Monterey Monterey
October 3 October 8 October 18 October 11 October 25
November 7 | November 12 | November 15 | November 13 | November 15 November 28 November 29
December 5 December 10 December 13 December 13 No Dece.mber
Meeting

*Legal Committee meets once a year during NCPA’s Annual Conference — Special Committee meetings may be held as required.
**Commission Packet mailed the Thursday or Friday prior to the meeting date.

Unless noted otherwise, Commission and Executive meetings will be held at NCPA’s Roseville office.
Commission meetings highlighted in blue will be posted as an “optional” conference call meeting.

221:17

NCPA 101 Presentation: January 16, 2018, Embassy Suites, Sacramento
NCPA Strategic Issues Conference: January 16-18, 2018, Embassy Suites, Sacramento
Capitol Day: January 29, 2018

NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference: April 16-19, 2018, Washington, D.C.
NCPA Annual Conference: September 26-28, 2018, Hyatt Regency, Monterey




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 16, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

October 26, 2017

SUBJECT: EGS Consulting, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement;
Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Geysers Geothermal Facility

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer

Department. Geothermal

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O

X

t

X

X

X

X

City of Lodi

X

City of Lompoc

City of Palo Alto

O 0O

City of Redding

X

City of Roseville

X

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

TID

O

o o xX K

X

SR: 217:17




EGS Consulting, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
October 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-87 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with EGS Consulting, Inc., for engineering and
geologic services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years. This contract would be
available for use at the NCPA Geysers Geothermal facility only.

BACKGROUND:

Provide engineering and geologic services, such as conducting water injection studies, drilling
program, monitoring and reporting seismic activity, steam and generation projections, well
testing, development drilling programs, etc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years, to be
used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place agreements with Full Circle
Utility Services and Sun Technical Services for similar services and seeks bids from as many
qualified providers as possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is
required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on October 4, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 217:17



EGS Consulting, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
October 16, 2017
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

% RN

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

e Resolution
e Mulii-Task Consulting Services Agreement with EGS Consulting, Inc.

SR: 217:17



RESOLUTION 17-87

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
EGS CONSULTING, INC.

(reference Staff Report #217:17)

WHEREAS, engineering and geologic consulting services, including water injection studies, drilling
programs, and monitoring and reporting of seismic activity, are periodically required at the Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA) Geysers Geothermal facility; and

WHEREAS, EGS Consulting, Inc., is a provider of these engineering and geologic services; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with
EGS Consulting, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for engineering and geologic consulting services, for use at the
NCPA Geysers Geothermal facility.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of ,2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



“l{iCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
EGS CONSULTING, INC.

This Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and EGS Consulting, Inc., a Delaware
Corporation with its office located at Waterfall Towers, Suite A112, 2455 Bennett Valley Road,
Santa Rosa, CA 95404 (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of

, 2017 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1..

SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,

Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

11

1.2

1.3

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) year from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day
period specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested
Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its
Exhibits.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 1 of 16



Section2. ¥ COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT
TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000) for the Services, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This doliar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Services performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’s Scope of Work identifies tasks,
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense,
with supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

2.4  Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 2 of 16



25

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested
Services. In the event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any
amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Services.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this

Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 16



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Consultant.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Consultant, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 16



4.6

Section 5.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Consuitant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmiess clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims that
arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful
misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of Services under this
Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate
to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”). Such obligations to
defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent
that such Liabilities are caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or
willful misconduct of the Agency.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 16



contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 6 of 16



6.4

Section 7.

Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71

7.2

7.3

Section 8.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency,
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section
9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 16



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 16



9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 9 of 16



Section 10.

by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 10 of 16



10.7

10.8

interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

EGS Consulting, Inc.
Woaterfall Towers, Suite A112
2455 Bennett Valley Road
Santa Rosa, California 95404

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

10.9

10.10

10.11

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 16



10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 12 of 16



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY EGS CONSULTING, INC.

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager PAUL BROPHY, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

NCPA General Counsel

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 13 of 16



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

EGS Consulting, Inc. (“Consultant”) will provide Engineering, Geologic Services and
Environmental Compliance services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency
(“Agency” or “NCPA”) at the Geothermal facilities.

In accordance with Section 6.3 of the agreement, NCPA requests certain services be
subcontracted, specifically Joe Beall for Geologic Services as outlined below, Al Pingol for
Engineering Services as outlined below, and Diane Tullos for Environmental Compliance
services as outlined below. NCPA will provide the work scope and direction for Consultant’s
services. Consultant’s services shall include, but are not limited to:

Geologic Services (Joe Beall)

e Assistance in conducting water injection studies on the NCPA lease
e Advising and development of drilling programs

e Assistance in monitoring and reporting of seismic activity

* Assistance in developing software for geologic purposes

Engineering Services (Al Pingol)

e Assistance in maintaining the NCPA Geysers Numerical Model
e Reservoir engineering services
o Steam & generation projections
o Well testing
o Development of drilling programs
o Assistance in developing software or processing data for engineering purposes

Environmental Compliance Services (Diane Tullos)

Title 5 Air Quality

Hazardous Material Removal

Water Disposal Reporting

Green House Gas

NERC, FERC and WECC Compliance

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 14 of 16



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount

set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and
an estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

HOURLY RATES:

Principal (Paul Brophy) $200/hr

Chief Geologist $180/hr

Project Geologist $105/hr

Field Technical Labor $110/hr

GIS Technician - Graphics $140/hr

DAILY RATES:

Principal (Paul Brophy) $2000/day

Chief Geologist $1800/day

Field Technical Labor $1100/day

SUBCONTRACTORS:

Al Pingol (Reservoir Engineer) $125/hr + 10% for EGS administrative costs = $137.50/hr
Joe Beall (Geologist) $125/hr + 10% for EGS administrative costs = $137.50/hr
Diane Tullos (EHS Consultant) $115/hr + 15% for EGS administrative costs = $132.25/hr
EQUIPMENT:

Equipment Rental Actual Cost + 10%

COMMUNICATIONS:

Telephone, Facsimile No cost to client

Overnight, Delivery Actual Cost

(OUTSIDE) COPY AND PRINT CHARGES: Actual Cost

TRAVEL COSTS AND MILEAGE:

Mileage shall be reimbursed at the IRS Rate.
All other travel costs Actual Cost

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member locations will be quoted at the time
services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 15 of 16



EXHIBIT C — NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-071
Northern California Power Agency and EGS Consulting, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 16 of 16



" A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 16 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

October 26, 2017

SUBJECT: TRB and Associates — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task Consulting

Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All facilities owned and/or operated

by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and

SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Department: Geothermal

FROM: Ken Speer 145

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager NA

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

O o o o O

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 218:17



TRB and Associates — First Amendment to Five Year MTCSA
October 16, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-88 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting services Agreement with TRB and Associates, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, and opening the agreement for use by all
NCPA Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with TRB and
Associates, effective June 1, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $200,000. The Agency has
utilized this vendor more often than originally estimated, and the Agreement has run low on
funds. This First Amendment will increase the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to
$1,000,000. This Agreement will be for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. TRB and
Associates provides design review, engineering review, and approval for Projects licensed and
permitted by the California Energy Commission. They also act as the building inspector for
projects. The CEC will select the contractor to perform this work.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on October 4, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on October 9, 2017 and was approved.

SR: 218:17



TRB and Associates — First Amendment to Five Year MTCSA
October 16, 2017
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
e Resolution
o Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with TRB and Associates
o First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TRB and Associates.

SR: 218:17



RESOLUTION 17-88

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH TRB AND ASSOCIATES

(reference Staff Report #218:17)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) facilities, its Members, the Southern California
Public Power Authority (“‘SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members periodically require consulting services, including
construction inspections and engineering reviews; and

WHEREAS, TRB and Associates is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and TRB and Associates entered into a five year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement effective June 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to increase the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $1,000,000; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting
services Agreement with TRB and Associates, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of ,2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



‘Q’I{iCPA

NGRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND TRB AND ASSOCIATES

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement is entered into by and
between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency’) and TRB and Associates (“Consultant”) (collectively
referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 2017,

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a five year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement dated
effective June 1, 2015, (the “Agreement’) for TRB and Associates to provide consulting services (Plan Review,
Construction Inspections, Engineering Review and Special Inspector Qualifications to Verify Conformance)
services at all owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total compensation
authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $200,000 to a ‘NOT TO EXCEED amount
of $1,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2—Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars
($1,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as
set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This
dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

2. Exhibit B- COMPENSATION SCHEDULE is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the
Attached Exhibit B.

3. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically set
forth herein.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates

Template 2-17-15
Page 1 of 3



Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TRB AND ASSOCIATES
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager TODD BAILEY, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

NCPA General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates
Template 2-17-15 Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT B

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed $1,000,000. The hourly
rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Schedule of Hourly Rates and Reimbursables

Position Rate

Principal/ Project Manager $175.00
Building Official $165.00
Senior Plan Review Engineer/Architect $165.00
Plan Review Engineer/Architect $150.00
Senior Plans Examiner $145.00
Plans Examiner $135.00
Permit Coordinator $ 85.00
Clerical/Admin £ 65.00
Civil Project Engineer $165.00
Civil Senior Engineer $155.00
Civil Associate Engineer $135.00
Health Safety Engineer $150.00
Building Inspection Task Leader $165.00
Supervising Inspector $145.00
Senior Inspector $125.00
Inspector $115.00

*Qvertime will be billed at the rates shown above plus an additional 25 percent (Note
that no overtime will be charged without client authorization)

*  Reimbursement for direct expenses, incurred in connection with the work, will be at
cost plus fifteen (15} percent.

¢ Reimbursement for employee-owned vehicles used in connection with the work will
be at the rate of $0.60 per mile.

e Other in-house charges for prints, reproductions and equipment use, etc. will be at
standard company rates.

Rates are in effect until December 31, 2017. At least thirty (30) days prior to that date, Consultant may
request, in writing, to pass through any changes to Agency, its Members, or by SCPPA/Members

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in excess
of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates
Template 2-17-15 Page 3 of 3



A PUBLIC AQESEY

CPA

NOATHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
TRB AND ASSOCIATES

This agreement for consulting services ("Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and TRB and Associates, a California corporation with its office
~ located at 3180 Crow Canyon Place, Suite 216, San Ramon, CA 94583 (*Consultant’) (together
sometimes referred to as the “Parties™) as of @ f | F , 2015 (“Effective Date") in Roseville,
California. e

Section1..  SERVICES: Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant is
willing to provnde to Agency the range of services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as
Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services").

| 11 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement.was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. . Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth
herein.

)

1.3  Assignmel
the Senvic

requests’ the rea35|gnment of any such personnel for cause, Consultant shall, |mmed|ately
upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

14  Request for Servnces .At such time that Agency determines to-use Consultant's Services
under this Agreement Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall
identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested Services"), may include a not-to-
exceed monetary cap on Requested Services and expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and a time by which the Requested Services shall be completed.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO
EXCEED TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($200,000.00) for the Services, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables (the “Estimate”), as set forth in Consultant's fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

{00589122.D0CX; 1} ' Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. ‘

6/25/12
1626712.1



23

21

22

24

25

Section 3.
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Services.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Services performed;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Services; _

» At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Consultant performing services hereunder.

= At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supportlng documentation;

Invoices shall be sent fo:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

- Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable

Montmy_ngment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for services satisfactorily performed,-and for-authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of
the requirements above to pay Consultant.

. Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely:responsible for the payment:of-all federal, state

and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any
services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a
Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested
Services." In the event Consultant fails fo submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts
due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to
collect its final payment for the Requested Services from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole

{00589122.DOCX; 1}

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 20f15

6/25/12
19267121



Section4.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

41  Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with fimits of not less than
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insuranc_e; :

421 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. ,

422 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for thie term of this Agreement covering any loss-or
liability, including the cost of defénse of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use, on or off Agency premises, of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, or, only.if Consultant hias no.owned
autos, of any hired and non-owned autos (symbols 8 and 9): Thie:policy-shall
provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000"per-each accident, with a selfinsured
retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide
contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent
coverage. may be excluded from general liability insurance.

4.23 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbreila policies as long as in
combination the limits equal-or exceed those stated. '

43  Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in connection with this
Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars (§1,000,000.00) and two million
dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the Consultant's errors and omissions. Any
deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars -
($250,000) per claim. ' :

{00589122.D0CX; 1}
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. _ Page 3 of 15

6/2512 -
1926712.1




4.4

4.5

4.6

Section 5.

51

All Policies Requirements.

441 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage.- Consultant shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or.
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits.- If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Consultant.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Consultant may acquire from Consultant-by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its employees, agents
and subcontractors:- '

Consultant's Obligation. . Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all

. equipment; vehicles and other items. utilized in the performance of Services are operated,

provided or otherwise utilized in a:manner that ensues they-are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as employees,

" agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'

compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. Agency shall first look to Consultant's
insurance policy and exhaust all available insurance proceeds prior to requiring Consultant
to indemnify and hold harmless. By execution of this Agreement, Consuitant
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element
of consideration. '

{00589122.DOCX; 1}

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and TRB and Associates. . Page 4 of 15

6/25/12
1926712.1



5.2

Section 6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmiess the Agency and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims that arise out of, pertain to
or relate to the negligence, reckiessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its
performance of Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs,
damages, expense and liability incurred by Agency that arise out of, pertain to, or relate fo
such claims (“Liabilities”). Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the
Agency shall not apply fo ihe extent that such Liabilities are caused by the sole
negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall Consultant bear
consequential damages, losses, expenses, costs or liabilities. ' :

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of
Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise,
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state,
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultantand any of
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitied to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit,-or any incident of employment by Agency, including-but not fimited -
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Refirement System(PERS) as'an
employee of Agency and entitlement fo any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant:shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its’
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing
the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of -
Consultant. '

Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have
no authority, express or implied, to acton behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

* Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates perSonal performance

by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's unique professional

{005891 22.00CX; 1}

Muli-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. . Page50f15

625112
1926712.1



competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and shall be responsible for all
work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

84 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

7.2  Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant.and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

73 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals-of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions. -

74  Work Requiring Payment of Prevailing Wages. If applicable, in accordance with
California Labor Code Section 1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which these services are to be
performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and
overtime work fixed as provided in the California Labor Code shall be paid to all workers:
engaged in performing the services under this Agreement.

Section8..  TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1 | Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consuttant shall be entitled to compensation for Services
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may

{00589122.D0CX; 1}
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northem California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 6 of 15

6125112
19267121




condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all '
records or documents, as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the

Survnval All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall

Options upon Breach by Consultant. [f Consultant materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's

8.4.2. Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not ﬁnlshed by Consultant

8.44 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs Agency reasonably incurs to
engage another California Energy Commission-approved service provider
comparable to Consultant to-complete the Services that are unfinished at the time
of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant
hereto if Consultant had completed the Services. However, in no event shall
Consultant be obligated to pay a difference greater than five percent (5%) of the

8.2
‘Parties.
83
survive the termmatnon of this Agreement.
8.4
\' remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
841 Immediately terminate the Agreement;
and/or -
Estimate.
‘Section9.  KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.
9.1

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Consultant agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents, except as required by law and pursuant to the process described in Section
9.4.3 of this Agreement.

{00589122.DOCX; 1}

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 7 of 15

6/25/12
19267121



9.2  Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3)
years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the
Consultant to this Agreement. -

93 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement. :

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

941 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge:(b) was -
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality

- agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section..

942 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose {"The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party”). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, fransfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

943 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
" such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures: ; '
{00589122.DOCX; 1} .
_ Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 8 of 15

6/25112
1926712.1




Section 10

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement. ‘

9.4.3.2 Disclosur’e in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California |
Public Records Act.

944 Handling of Confidential Information. Conclusion of Agreemént. Receiving

Party shall retumn to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential Information (including
all copies thereof) upon termination of this Agreement, if requested by Disclosing
Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain
copies of such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of
this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
‘Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement, except as permitted under
Section 9.4.3.

' MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief-to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin'a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastemn District of California. :

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this

Agreement.

{00589122.D0CX; 1}

Multi-Task Consulfing Services Agreement between
Northem California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 9 of 15

6/25112
1926712.1



104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

No implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term

of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of-this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply o and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative

Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Todd Bailey

TRB and Associates

3180 Crow Canyon Place, Suite 216
San Ramon, CA 94583

With a copy to:

Michael Krueger

Bowles & Verna LLP

2121 North California Blvd., Suite 875
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

{00589122.D0CX; 1}

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 10 of 15

6/25/12
1926712.1



With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

“General Counsel
Northem California Power Agency
Meyers Nave
555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation. '

10.10 |Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Consultant agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
‘ representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any.means within their-authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall eqdally bear the costs of any third party in any
: altemnative dispute resolution process. )

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either

{00589122.D0CX; 1} .
Multi-Task Consuiting Services Agreement between
Northem California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 11 of 15

6/25112
16267121




Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing -
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Consultant's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Consultant's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which -
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made SOIer for the benéfit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

~

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY ' TRB AND ASSOCIATES
Date (,/ f / (s ‘ Date_Mtar 15, 2015

——

RANDY'S. HOWARD, General Manager TODD , President

Approved as to Form:

Rssidtant General Counsel )
. 24173378
{00589122.DOCX; 1}
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
. Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates.  Page 120f 15
6/25/12 : .

1926712.1



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

TRB and Associates (“Consultant’) shall provide consulting services as requested by the Northern
California Power Agency (“Agency”).

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

e PlanReview

e Construction Inspections

o Engineering Review '

o Special Inspector Qualifications to Verify Conformance

{00589122.DOCX; 1}

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 13 of 15

6/25/12
1926712.1




EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expensés shall not exceed amount as set forth in

Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount
of expenses is as follows:

Schedule of Hourly Rates and Reimbursables

Position. Rate,.
Principal/ Project Manager $175.00
Building Official $165.00
Senior Plan Review Engineer/Architect  $165.00
Plan Review Engineer/Architect $150.00
Senior Plans Examiner . $145.00
Plans Examiner $135.00
Permit Coordinator $ 85.00
Clerical/Admin - $ 65.00
Civil Project Engineer $165.00
Civil Senior Engineer $155.00
Civil Associate Engineer ) $135.00
Health Safety Engineer ’ $150.00
Building Inspection Task Leader $165.00
Supervising Inspector $145.00
Senior Inspector ' $125.00
Inspector $115.00

*Overtime will be billed at the rates shown above plus an additional 25 percent (Noté
that no overtime will be charged without client authorization)

e Reimbursement for direct expenses, incurred in connection with the work, will be at
cost plus fifteen (15) percent.

¢ Reimbursement for employee-owned vehicles used in connection with the work will
be at the rate of $0.60 per mile.

s  Other in-house charges for prints, réproductions and equipment use, etc. will be at
standard company rates.

Rates are in effect until December 31, 2015. At least thirty (30) days prior to that date, Consultant may
request, in writing, to pass through any changes to Agency.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Intemal Revenue Service.

{00589122.00CX; 1} e

Multi-Task Consultmg “Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 14 of 15

6/25/12
1926712.1




- EXHIBITC
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Consultants

/ zep Bﬂ-/wY, Pﬂﬁsmﬁm

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
-and employment history of all employees of

TRB AND ASSOCIATES
(Company name)
for contract work at y |
LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODL CA 95242
(Project name and location) -

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

C@gua%u?e of officer or agent)
Dated this g™ dayof M4t ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT
SECURITY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE
FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE

. PROJECT MANAGER.

{00589122.DOCX; 1 }
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TRB and Associates. Page 15 0f 15

6/25/12
1926712.1




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NC

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Appointment to the NCPA Finance Committee

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Monty Hanks [\,UC&

Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [X Cityof Lodi []

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc []
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [] Plumas-Sierra REC

City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1

City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [

City of Healdsburg []1  City of Santa Clara []

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 216:17



Appointment to the NCPA Finance Committee
October 17, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

it is recommended the Commission approve the resolution ratifying the appointment of
Robert (Bob) Orbeta, AGM of Administration, Alameda Municipal Power, as a member of the
Finance Committee.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Amended and Restated Commission Rules of Procedure (a.k.a. By-Laws) provides for
a standing Committee, known as the Finance Committee. The Finance Committee considers all
financial, accounting or auditing matters referred to it by the Commission, its Chairman, the
Executive Committee, the General Manager or the Chief Financial Officer of the Agency.
Appointment to this Committee is made by the Commission Chairman, subject to ratification by the
Commission and is presently comprised of five members.

Current members of the Finance Committee are as follows:

David Hagele, Council Member, City of Healdsburg, Committee Chair
Melissa Price, Rates & Resources Manager, Lodi

Philip McAvoy, Electric Finance & Administration Manager, Roseville
Ann Hatcher, Assistant Electric Director, Silicon Valley Power

Matt Michaelis, Finance Director, Gridley

Matt Michaelis is no longer employed with the City of Gridley and this has created a vacancy within
the Finance Committee members. At the October 17" Special Finance Committee meeting, the
members discussed staff's recommendation of adding Bob Orbeta to the committee as a
replacement for Matt Michaelis. Bob Orbeta is the AGM of Administration for Alameda Municipal
Power and has been a prior member of the Finance Committee serving from 2004-2015. During
his tenure on the committee, he has been involved in several debt related projects for Geo and
Hydro. Bob has 39 years’ experience in the utility industry working in a variety of financial and
operational issues and will bring a wealth of knowledge and familiarity to the Finance Committee.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The requested action has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW.:

Staff's recommendation was discussed with the Finance Committee on October 17, 2017,
however, no formal action was taken due to lack of a quorum. The Committee members present
during the meeting voiced their support for the recommendation and no other meeting attendees
had any objections.

Respectfully submitted,

Lo & [

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment: Resolution 17-90

SR: 216:17



RESOLUTION 17-90

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPOINTMENT TO THE NCPA FINANCE COMMITTEE

(reference Staff Report #216:17)

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure for the Commission of the Northern
California Power Agency provides for a standing Committee, known as the Finance Committee; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee shall consider and report upon all financial, accounting, or auditing
matters referred to it by the Commission, the Executive Committee, the Chair, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Agency, or by the General Manager; and

WHEREAS, members of the Finance Committee, who may be either Commission members or other staff
or officers of Members, shall be appointed by the Chair, which appointment shall be ratified by the Commission;
and

WHEREAS, current ratified members of the Finance Committee include David Hagele (Healdsburg),
Melissa Price (Lodi), Philip McAvoy (Roseville), Matt Michaelis (Gridley) and Ann Hatcher (SVP); and

WHEREAS, on October 17, 2017, the Finance Committee considered staff's recommendation of Robert
(Bob) Orbeta, AGM of Administration, Alameda Municipal Power, and supported his appointment as a member
to the NCPA Finance Committee replacing Matt Michaelis; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the appointment of Bob Orbeta as a member of the NCPA Finance Committee.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



UELIC AGENTY

ANCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 13, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

October 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Approval of Revenue Allocation Policy

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

o

|

FROM: Dave Dockhamv

METHOD OF SELECTION:

AGM, Power Management N/A

If other, please specify

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring N/A
IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members Cityof Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [

Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC []

City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [] City of Roseville [] Truckee Donner PUD []

City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 220:17



Approval of Revenue Allocation Policy
October 26, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Commission adopt a Resolution that adopts the following revenue
allocation policy elements, and terminates the interim revenue allocation policy':

1. Allocate ten percent (10%) of revenues received, for the exclusive benefit of Members,
in proportion to their contribution to A&G expenses using data from the most recent
complete fiscal year (e.g. FY18 revenue allocated in proportion to final FY16 data);

2. Allocate the balance of revenues received to Members and “non-Member Participants of
NCPA Projects” using the existing NCPA Power Management Cost Allocation
Spreadsheet Model (otherwise commonly known as the “Nexant Model”), as such is
defined in the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement (PMASA);

3. Apply revenue allocation methods described in item 2 above to the portion of services
that are not under a fixed-rate pricing structure;

4. Direct NCPA staff to review the revenue allocation methodology periodically, in the same
frequency and timing that cost allocation methodologies are reviewed as such is defined
in the PMASA (i.e. every 5 years), or more frequently if necessary;

5. Apply these adjustments in policy to Fiscal Year 2018 and subsequent years; and

6. Develop additional policy recommendations that will reserve a greater proportion of
revenues for the exclusive benefit of Members in the event service contract proceeds
exceed the cost of services provided.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA will provide certain Power Management and Administrative Services to the Placer County
Water Agency (“PCWA”) and the Merced Irrigation District (‘MEID”), with services commencing
in NCPA Fiscal Year 20182 NCPA will invoice PCWA and MEID on a monthly basis throughout
the term of the service agreements.

The Commission adopted an interim revenue allocation policy (Interim Policy) in December
2016, which was based on the work product of the Review Group?, which met four (4) times on
this matter; the Facilities Committee, which met twice; and the Ultility Directors, which met once.
This policy was established with a one-year term to allow for further discussions on two
outstanding issues:

A. Determine whether a New Business Development category of costs and revenues
should be established, in lieu of allocating 10% of total revenues in proportion to
Members’ contributions to A&G costs, as described in the Interim Policy, and

1 See Resolution 16-90.

2 See Resolutions 16-50 and 16-70, respectively.

3 See Resolution 15-37. The Review Group consisted of volunteers from Plumas Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative
and the Cities of Alameda, Roseville, Santa Clara, and Palo Alto.

SR: 220:17



Approval of Revenue Allocation Policy
October 26, 2017

Page 3

B. Determine whether Non-Member Participants of NCPA Project should be allocated a

portion of revenues.

The Utility Directors from the Port of Oakland, and the Cities of Redding, Palo Alto, and Santa
Clara (UD Sub-Group) volunteered to address the two outstanding issues. The UD Sub-Group
met on four (4) occasions over six (6) months and developed policy recommendations that were
presented to the balance of the Utility Directors on June 15, 2017 and were unanimously
supported for Commission review.

Each recommendation is discussed at length in the attached discussion paper. A brief summary
of the discussion is provided below for recommendation numbers 1, 2, and 6.

Recommendation 1: Allocate 10% of revenues received to Members in proportion to
Members’ contributions toward A&G costs.

The UD Sub-Group recommends NCPA reserve a portion of revenues for the exclusive
benefit of its Members. This recommendation ensures that all Members of NCPA benefit
from the expansion of Power Management and Administrative service to third parties
and promotes membership in general. The UD Sub-Group explored alternative ways to
meet these objectives but determined they introduced a substantial amount of
complexity without demonstrating a clear benefit as compared to the recommended
method.

Recommendation 2: Allocate 90% of revenues received to both Members and Non-
Member Participants of NCPA Projects using the existing NCPA Power Management
Cost Allocation Spreadsheet Model.

The Utility Directors generally support reserving revenues for the exclusive benefit of
Members but unanimously support a limited exception to allow revenues to flow to Non-
Member Participants of the Lodi Energy Center and NCPA Geothermal facilities. The UD
Sub-Group reached this conclusion based on their analysis of the types of risks and
liabilities Members vs. Non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects incur, particularly
funding toward retirement benefits paid to NCPA personnel and toward Power
Management and Administrative Services costs as allocated through the Nexant Model.
The analysis shows the project agreements obligate all Participants, including non-
Member Participants, to pay their pro-rata share of all project costs, which includes the
cost of retirement benefits of plant and non-plant personnel. Moreover, Power
Management and Administrative Services costs are allocated to the non-Member
Participants of LEC and Geothermal using the Nexant model, in the same manner that
Power Management and Administrative Services costs are allocated to Members. Based
on this analysis, the UD Sub-Group, and subsequently the balance of the Utility
Directors, conclude non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects incur commensurate
risks as Members, and therefore should benefit from the allocation of a portion of
revenues.

Recommendation 6: Develop additional policy recommendations that will reserve a
greater proportion of revenues for the exclusive benefit of Members in the event service
contract proceeds exceed the cost of services provided.

SR: 220:17



Approval of Revenue Allocation Policy
October 26, 2017
Page 4

Under this concept, the portion of revenue corresponding to the “cost of service,” as
determined by the Nexant Model, would be allocated to Members and non-Members of
NCPA Projects, and the portion of revenues in excess of “cost of service” would be
reserved for the exclusive benefits of Members. Members express strong interest in
developing these policy elements but recognize that this condition does not apply today.
Therefore, Members and staff support deferring policy development at this time.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Replacing the Interim Policy with the recommendations above will cause a budget deviation for
FY18, as illustrated in the attached table. The cost associated with implementing this policy is
immaterial. Staffing levels are included in the FY 18 budget, and staffing levels are not expected
to change from implementing this policy. Total budgeted revenues in FY18 is $595,000. Ten
percent (10%) of revenues received will be allocated to Members in proportion to their
contributions toward A&G costs, and the balance of revenues received will be allocated to
Members and non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects using the Nexant Model.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on August 2, September 6, and
October 4. No formal action was taken due to the lack of a quorum. However, the attendees at
the meeting voiced their support for the recommendation above, and no other meeting
attendees had any objections.

Respectfully submitted,

§< N 1A

General Manager

Attachments:
e Resolution 17-91
o Revised Revenue Allocation Policy
¢ Revenue Allocation Policy FY18 Table

SR: 220:17



RESOLUTION 17-91

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF REVENUE ALLOCATION POLICY

(reference Staff Report #220:17)

WHEREAS, pursuant to NCPA Commission Resolution 16-90, in December 2016 the
Commission approved an interim policy for allocating revenues to Members resulting from NCPA'’s
provision of Power Management and Administrative services to non-member third parties; and

WHEREAS, utility directors from a subset of members deliberated and have formed
recommendations to address two outstanding issues related to (1) ensuring that all Members benefit
under the revenue allocation methodology, and (2) determining whether non-Member Participants of
the NCPA Projects should receive a portion of revenues allocated under the Power Management and
Administrative services cost allocation spreadsheet (Nexant Model); and

WHEREAS, Members invested substantial time and effort developing revenue allocation policy
elements with considerations documented in the “Revised Revenue Allocation Policy” discussion
paper, as attached to Staff Report 220:17; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in
the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency adopts and approves a policy for allocating revenues resulting from NCPA's provision of
Power Management and Administrative services to non-member third parties, which is based on the
following elements: (i) the policy will be applied to NCPA Fiscal Year 2018; (ii) the policy will be
reviewed in the same timing and frequency that Power Management and Administrative Services
Costs are reviewed as defined under the Power Management and Administrative Services
Agreement; (iii) ten percent (10%) of revenues received shall be allocated to Members in proportion
to their contributions toward Administrative and General (“A&G”) costs using data from the most
recent complete fiscal year; (iv) the balance of revenues received shall be allocated to Members
and non-Members Participants of NCPA Projects, using the existing Nexant Model; (v) revenue
allocation methods described in item (iv) shall incorporate model inputs for the proportion to services
received that are not under a fixed-rate pricing structure; and (vi) develop additional policy
recommendations that will reserve a greater proportion of revenues for the exclusive benefit of
Members in the event service contract proceeds exceed the cost of services provided.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the
following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST:  CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 17-91 -2-



REVISED REVENUE
ALLOCATION POLICY

DISCUSSION PAPER

This document contains a comprehensive set of recommendations prepared
by Members that address revenue allocation policies. These
recommendations include some proposed changes to existing NCPA policy,
particularly in how revenue allocation methodologies are applied to non-
Member Participants of NCPA Projects.

October 2017




Revised Policy Recommendations for Revenue Allocation

This document contains a number of Members’ recommendations on how allocate revenues received
for the provision of Power Management and Administrative Services (PM&AS) to third parties. The
recommendations listed in this document are comprehensive including contributions from the Review
Group?, Facilities Committee, Utility Directors (UDs), and UD Sub-Group. These materials are intended to
be a stand-alone document to serve as a replacement for the Commission’s Interim Revenue Allocation
Policy (Interim Policy). An itemized list of recommendations can be found in the next section “Policy
Recommendations to the NCPA Commission.” The “Introduction” section captures this issue in brief, and
identifies high-level findings that help to form specific recommendations. All subsequent sections,
starting with, “Discussion of Three Broad Findings of the Review Group,” on page 4, captures the
discussion of each point in detail and offer greater insight in how each group reached its
recommendations.

Policy Recommendations to the NCPA Commission

1. Allocate 10% of revenues received, for the exclusive benefit of Members, in proportion to
their contribution to A&G expenses using data from the most recent complete fiscal year
(e.g. FY18 revenue allocated in proportion to final FY16 data);

2. Allocate the balance of revenues received to Members and “non-Member Participants of
NCPA Projects?” using the existing NCPA Power Management Cost Allocation Spreadsheet
Model (otherwise commonly known as the “Nexant Model”}, as such is defined in the
Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement (PMASA);

3. Apply revenue allocation methods described in item 2 above to the portion of services
that are not under a fixed-rate pricing structure;

4. Direct NCPA staff to review the revenue allocation methodology periodically, in the same
frequency and timing that cost allocation methodologies are reviewed as such is defined
in the PMASA (i.e. every 5 years), or more frequently if necessary;

5. Apply these adjustments in policy to Fiscal Year 2018 and subsequent years; and

6. Develop additional policy recommendations that will reserve a greater proportion of revenues

for the exclusive benefit of Members in the event service contract proceeds exceed the cost of
services provided.

Introduction

This paper presents Members’ recommendations on how to allocate service proceeds that result from
expanding power management services to third party customers. In fiscal year 2018, NCPA will provide
such services to Merced Irrigation District and Placer County Water Agency. The NCPA Commission
approved an Interim Policy® on revenue allocation, which was based on the work product of a 5-

1 The Commission formed the Review Group under Resolution 15-37, and it was comprised of volunteer
representatives from Plumas Sierra, and the Cities of Alameda, Palo Alto, Roseville, and Santa Clara.

2The phrase, “NCPA Projects,” is not used as defined in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement. Instead,
the term is used in context to, “non-Member Participants to NCPA Projects,” which is described in detail in
subsequent sections of this paper.

3staff Report 228:16 and Resolution 16-90, reviewed and approved at the December 1, 2016 Commission meeting.
| e o, | (g i e s D) B = Eme dewie) s s T aimam e = &= ==l

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION



Member Review Group, the Facilities Committee, and the Utility Directors. The Interim Policy has a one-
year term and was applied to the NCPA FY18 budget.

Subsequent to the Commission’s approval of the Interim Policy, a subset of Utility Directors (UD Sub-
Group) convened to address two outstanding issues:
(1) Determine whether non-Member Participants of NCPA Project should be allocated a portion of
revenues, and
(2) Determine whether a New Business Development category of costs and revenues should be
established, in lieu of allocating 10% of total revenues in proportion to Members’ contributions
to A&G costs, as described in the Interim Policy.

Utility Directors from the Port of Oakland and the Cities of Redding, Santa Clara, and Palo Alto
volunteered to serve on the UD Sub-Group to discuss and address these issues. The UD Sub-Group met
on four occasions over six months. The UD Sub-Group’s recommendations were presented to the
balance of the UDs on June 15, 2017, and were supported unanimously for Commission review.

The recommendations of the Review Group, Facilities Committee, UDs, and UD Sub-Group are itemized
in the section, “Policy Recommendations to the NCPA Commission” above. Members base these
recommendations on a number of findings identified by the Members throughout their discussions, and
are itemized below. The Members support NCPA use the Nexant cost allocation model for allocating
PM&AS revenues. The rational for using the Nexant model is strong, including its many strengths in
advancing several principles the Members used to help guide its analysis and recommendations. The
Members support using two threshold tests to determine eligibility to receive new revenues, and
support a way to address transition issues when NCPA’s Membership changes. The Review Group
explored several detailed cases that test its support in these areas. These include applying new revenue
(a) to unfunded liabilities (personnel-related costs), (b) to NCPA Administrative and General (A&G)
expenses, and (c) to facilities that have non-Member participants. The UD Sub-Group unanimously
supports allocating revenues to both Members and non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects,
provided that additional policy elements be developed to that will reserve a greater proportion of
revenues for the exclusive benefit of Members if service proceeds exceed the cost to provide those
services.

The table below describes these findings that help form specific policy recommendations for
consideration by the Commission.

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS 2
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION



Finding Rationale, in Brief

Use the Nexant cost allocation modelto  The model maps revenues to the functions that are

allocate revenues producing that revenue; it is objective, repeatable,
auditable; there is relatively low incremental cost to
implement; it uses same drivers in allocating costs
and revenues.

Use membership status as a threshold It is a bright-line test, it represents a clear value

test, reserving revenues for Members, proposition for existing and prospective Members,
with exceptions made for non-Member and it recognizes investments of Members and non-
Participants of NCPA Projects Member Participants of NCPA Projects that have built

NCPA technology and staff development.
Use pricing structure as a threshold test,  This concept matches revenues with the type of
reserving revenues to Members and non-  price-risk Members take on under Power

Member Participants of NCPA Projects Management service contracts. Under fixed-rate
that take NCPA Power Management price structures, Members would be shielded from
services under a variable-rate price price increases. Allocating revenues toward these
structure, or portion thereof portions of Members’ portfolios create asymmetric

risk/reward and does not balance equity with
Members under a variable-rate structure (i.e. can
change year-to-year).

Do not support the use of revenues The Review Group evaluated whether revenues
toward unfunded liabilities {personnel- should be used to offset NCPA’s unfunded liabilities
related costs) (i.e. OPEB). The Review Group does not recommend

allocating revenue in this fashion and expressed
preference to allocate revenues to Members,
individually, and allow Members to direct the use of
these funds.

Support an allocation of revenues toward An overarching principle is to ensure that all

Agency A&G expenses (beyond what is Members benefit from the expansion of power

already allocated to Power Management) management services to third parties. Allocating a
portion of these service proceeds toward Agency
A&G expenses offsets costs that all Members pay.
Furthermore, staff has used historic data to allocate
current year revenues, and Members did not object
to this practice (i.e. using FY16 A&G costs to allocate
revenues received in FY18).

Develop additional policy elements to Develop additional revenue allocation methods in the

apply when service proceeds exceeds the future. Broadly speaking, the portion of revenues that

cost of service, reserving a greater exceed the “cost of service” would be reserved for

proportion of revenues for the exclusive  the exclusive benefit of Members to promote new

benefit of Members membership, support retention of existing
membership, and to add a clear value proposition of
membership.

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION



The general findings above are combined to form specific policy recommendations found in section,
“Policy Recommendations to the NCPA Commission.” The discussion that follows describes the broad
recommendations, applications in specific cases, and conclusions.

Discussion of Three Broad Findings of the Review Group

This section discusses three broad findings of the Review Group: (1) use the existing Nexant cost
allocation model to allocate 90% of revenues received?, (2) implement two threshold tests to determine
eligibility for revenue allocations, and (3) address transition issues with changes in Membership status
by using lagged data for revenue allocation.

Use the Existing Nexant Cost Allocation Model to Allocate Revenues

Multiple Members have expressed several concerns with the Nexant model, both in general and in the
context of allocating revenues. This includes, but is not limited to, the age of the Nexant study and time
in motion study that is used to translate NCPA budgeted costs into Members’ allocated costs, that some
Power Management activities may not be accurately captured by the Nexant model design (e.g. setup
costs when adding new customers and/or resources), and the inherent challenges with allocating large
fixed costs of shared resources using activity-based cost drivers. This matter was discussed at length by
the membership in multiple forums.

Despite these concerns, the Members support the use of the Nexant cost allocation model to allocate
revenues associated with the provision of Power Management services to new customers. This finding is
based on the analysis of the Nexant cost allocation model mechanics and an analysis of cost allocation
principles for revenue allocation, below.

ANALYSIS OF NEXANT COST ALLOCATION MODEL MECHANICS

The purpose of this analysis is to determine if the model’s design is suitable for allocating revenue. The
model was explicitly designed to allocate PM&AS costs to Members who subscribe to power
management services. It was not explicitly designed to allocate costs to third parties, nor was it explicitly
designed to allocate revenues.

The Nexant cost allocation model uses a multi-step process to allocate all PM&AS overhead costs to all
power management service-takers, specific to services provided®. This model first maps budgeted costs
to specific service areas (e.g. schedule coordination, real-time dispatch). Costs are then allocated to
members who take services in a service area, in proportion to appropriate cost allocation factors®.

The Nexant cost allocation model currently allocates revenue from additional services implicitly, using
the same logic and methodologies used to allocate budgeted costs. To date, providing additional
services to members and third parties has not changed NCPA's cost levels. However, the level of service,

4 The rationale for the 90% value is presented in section, “Applying the Review Group’s Broad Findings to Three

Specific Test Cases,” under subsection, “NCPA Administrative and General Costs.”

5 Some costs are allocated to Members via a direct assignment.

6 As determined by the Nexant study and as reviewed and approved by NCPA, Members, and/or the NCPA

Commission.

o o, s e e e S e e e e L —wemmm et
REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

4



or the activity represented by model inputs, has increased as services are expanded. The model is
allocating the same amount of costs to a larger number of customers. This resuits in an allocation of
costs to the new customer/service and a decrease in allocated costs to incumbents (i.e. existing
members). The allocation of revenue is implicit within the Nexant model, since revenues materialize in
the form of reduced allocation of costs. It is important to highlight that the allocation of cost and
revenue are using the same logic and allocation factors. This means that revenues for a particular
service are allocated to those who take the same service. Furthermore, it means revenues are allocated
to this sub-group of Members in proportion to their cost allocation factors, a proxy for how much of that
service area they draw upon.

For example, when Palo Alto and SVP brought new generation facilities to NCPA for scheduling services,
the Nexant cost allocation model was used to determine the cost of all associated Power Management
services. Each took a different level of service from NCPA for their respective facilities. SVP introduced
the Tri-Dams facilities and are allocated costs for SCALD’ (scheduling coordination and load dispatch),
only. SVP was allocated costs for these resources, which decreased the allocated costs to all other
Members who paid SCALD, which is nearly all of them. In a slightly different example, Palo Alto
introduced solar PV facilities and are allocated costs for SCALD; Forecasting; Resource Planning,
Optimization & Risk Analysis; Industry Restructuring and Regulatory Affairs; Contract Maintenance,
Negotiation and Administration and Litigation Support®. Palo Alto’s allocation of costs increased in all of
these areas, which decreased costs for all other Members who took services in these same areas.

When services are expanded to third parties®, the model will allocate revenues in this same manner.
Suppose a new customer is added and it takes services under SCALD only. Its costs are based on the
Nexant cost allocation model, and all Members who take services in SCALD will be allocated their share
of revenues in proportion to the cost allocation factors associated with SCALD. Since Palo Alto and SVP
contribute a substantial amount towards SCALD costs (nearly 60% combined), they would receive the
most benefit to a new customer who subscribes to SCALD services.

This analysis examined the Nexant cost allocation model structure to assess if there were any major
flaws if used to allocate revenues. The Members found no major flaws. In fact, the Nexant model
allocates revenue today. Thus, the Members find the Nexant cost allocation model could be used to
allocate revenues. To help determine if the Nexant model should be used for this purpose, the Members
expanded upon this analysis to assess whether the Nexant model promotes any of the cost allocation
principles, which is discussed next.

7 SCALD includes costs associated with dispatch & real time resource management, scheduling coordination and
real time portfolio balancing, system control and data acquisition, and NERC/WECC compliance.

& Provision of services is determined by the customer, members, and contracts with NCPA,

% NCPA has used the Nexant cost allocation model when preparing quotes for prospective customers. The
proposed scope of services is modeled as if for a Member, and the results are subject to review and revision
through NCPA'’s established approval process. The final contract rate may differ from the Nexant model output.

REVISED POLICY RECOMMFNDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION



ASSESSING THE NEXANT MODEL BASED ON COST ALLOCATION PRINCIPLES

The Review Group invested substantial time in developing cost allocation principles, which serve as
guideposts in assessing the numerous proposals and ideas deliberated by the Review Group, Facilities
Committee, and the UD Sub-Group. These principles represent the overarching goals and values
Members sought to promote with its recommendations. In this analysis, the Members find that the use
of the Nexant cost allocation model to allocate 90% of revenues received promotes most of these
principles, specifically: (i) Causation, (ii) Equitable Allocation of Fixed and Variable, (iii) Transparency,
(iv) Simplicity, (v) Durability, and (vi) Comparable Treatment. Each are be discussed below.

Using the Existing Model Support the Principle of “Causation”

The principle of “Causation” focuses on the underlying factors as to why costs (or revenues) are incurred
and finding the most appropriate way to allocate them. New revenue manifests when a service is
marketed successfully. Since the specific service is the cause of the revenue, the Members believe it
should be allocated to those Members who also subscribe to the service. Moreover, the allocation
should be made in proportion to Members’ allocation of cost in that service.

To illustrate that point, we return to the previous example where SVP was allocated costs for SCALD
services when it introduced the Tri-dam facilities. SVP was allocated additional costs in this area for this
addition. Would it have made sense for a portion of monies paid by SVP to be allocated to “Western
Representation and Advocacy” or “Pooling Committee”? The Members do not believe so. The revenues
are associated with the services provided in a specific service area and should be allocated to the
Members who subscribe to that same area. This raises a second issue: in what proportion should
revenues be allocated within a service area? The Members find the best allocator is the proportion of
costs paid by Members who subscribe to that service area.

The Nexant model allocates costs and revenues in the manner identified in this analysis. It contains logic
that isolates proportions of budgeted costs to specific services. Furthermore, the model contains model
inputs specific to each Member that can serve as a means to allocate revenue for a given service to
those who also take that service. Therefore, the Members find that using the existing Nexant cost
allocation model to allocate revenues promotes the principle of “Causation.”

Using the Existing Model Support the Principle of

“Equitable Allocation of Fixed and Variable Costs”

The principle of “Equitable Allocation of Fixed and Variable Costs” acknowledges that most of the costs
allocated by the Nexant cost allocation model are fixed in nature, and many of the staffing and
infrastructure of Power Management are shared resources (across multiple service areas and to several
service takers within a service area). Finding cost (or revenue) allocation factors can be challenging,
subjective, and open for prolonged debate. NCPA and its Members suffered through such a prolonged
debate that eventually produced the Nexant cost allocation model.

Despite the many concerns Members have expressed with the current Nexant cost allocation model, the
Members find that using the existing Nexant model to allocate both costs and revenues from new

REVISFD POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUF ALLOCATION

6



services would promote the principle of “Equitable Allocation of Fixed and Variable Costs.” The Review
Group evaluated “equitable” as (a) consistent treatment of cost and revenue from case to case, and (b)
an objective means of executing an allocation. The Nexant cost allocation model promotes both. As
described above, the Nexant cost allocation model allocates both costs and revenues simultaneously
each time a new service is added, whether that is for a Member or a third party. These allocations are
based on defined inputs identified in the Nexant study, are reviewed by NCPA and Members, and are
ultimately approved by the NCPA Commission each budget cycle and with each proposal for new
service. The process follows the same general process each time new services are rendered.

Using the Existing Model Support the Principle of “Transparency”

The principle of “Transparency” addresses the ease in which one can review the allocation methods, the
repeatability and predictability in the relationship between inputs vs. outcomes, and the openness of
the review process when the model is updated. The Members believe using the existing Nexant cost
allocation model to allocate revenues promotes this goal, albeit with the caveat that the model may
need updating and restructuring in some areas. Despite these concerns, the model can be used to
generate simulations, outcomes can be repeated, and the methodology is laid out in a spreadsheet all
Members have access to.

The process under which the Nexant model is updated and implemented each year is open and
collaborative. The model inputs are provided to Members each year and all parties have an opportunity
to review and comment before materials are sent to the Commission for final review and approval.
There are a number of examples where this review process has identified issues and led to corrections
or changes to methodologies.

For these reasons, the Members find that using the existing Nexant cost allocation model to allocate
revenues supports the principle of “Transparency.” Model inputs are provided to and reviewed by
Members each budget cycle, its formulae are visible and available in spreadsheet form, it can be used
for simulation modelling and results are repeatable.

Using the Existing Model Support the Principle of “Simplicity”

The principle of “Simplicity” addresses the Members’ general preference to avoid cumbersome
algorithms unless greater complexity adds measurable value. The Review Group and UD Sub-Group
discussed a number of different ways in which NCPA could allocate revenues from new service, some
that are hybrids of others, and concepts that move beyond revenue allocation and into designating use
of funds.

(a) Use the existing Nexant cost allocation model

(b) Equally dividing revenue to each Member (i.e. 1/n)

(c) Using other allocation metrics, such as JPA percentages (i.e. load)
(d) Peak demand for a defined time period

(e) Proportionate share of a fiscal year budget

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
IOR REVENUF ALl OCATION



(f) Allocating a portion of revenue broadly (e.g. 1/n) and allocating the balance of revenues using
the Nexant model

(g) Reserving a portion of revenue for a designated use, such as business development or new
infrastructure.

As noted above, the principle of “Simplicity” encourages the use of straight forward methods unless
there is value to adding complexity. Several possible methods contemplated above are simpler than
using the Nexant cost allocation model, since few would characterize the existing Nexant model as
simple.

Nonetheless, the Members discussed the merits of using the Nexant model to allocate 90% of revenue
and finds it would promote the principle of “Simplicity.” First, the Nexant cost allocation model is used
to allocate revenues today. Continuing to apply the model in this way adds no additional cost or effort
to NCPA or Members staff. Second, the additional complexity introduced by the model, compared to the
other allocation drivers listed directly above, add greater precision to the allocation of cost and revenue.
Third, it is highly likely that the Nexant cost allocation model will continue to be used to allocate costs,
even if a separate method is adopted to allocate revenue. Adopting an alternative method to allocate
revenues would introduce a second allocation model/method to operate and maintain.

Using the Existing Model Support the Principle of “Durability”

The principle of “Durability” addresses the Members’ general preference toward algorithms that are
robust and can withstand changes in the industry, NCPA membership, etc. The Review Group does not
believe using the existing Nexant cost allocation model is a long-term solution. However, it is a strong
solution until Members’ concerns can be addressed. The Nexant cost allocation model has proven to be
the most durable cost allocation method used in NCPA’s history. It is an objective means to allocate cost
and revenues, it has proven to be sufficiently flexible and adaptable to cope with significant industry
changes, it is has become an integral part of NCPA’s budget approval process, and it serves as the basis
for NCPA’s responses to RFPs for power management services. Also, the Nexant cost allocation model
currently allocates revenue for services. No changes would be required to use the Nexant model to
allocate revenues. To the extent the NCPA Commission approves changes to the Nexant model as has
occurred from time to time, changes could be limited to one set of allocation algorithms (i.e. same
algorithms used to allocate cost and revenue), increasing durability.

Using the Existing Model Support the Principle of “Comparable Treatment”

The principle of “Comparable Treatment” addresses the Members’ general preference for consistency.
Members should be treated like other Members, generation resources should be treated like similar
generation resources, etc.

The Nexant cost allocation model has been used to allocate revenues from Member services and the
Review Group believes these same methodologies should be applied to revenues associated with
revenues from third parties. Members have changed their portfolios numerous times since the Nexant
cost allocation model was implemented. In each case, new inputs were added according to the model

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

8



structure, the Nexant study, NCPA contracts with Members, etc. In each case additional costs were
allocated to the Member(s) who introduced the new workload and cost allocations were reduced for
other Members who (a) participated in the same service area, and (b) were not adding new work. The
Nexant cost allocation model was used to generate new revenue from Members who introduced new
work to NCPA. The Members find revenue from third parties should be allocated using a comparable
method, or the Nexant cost allocation model, in accordance with the principle of “Comparable
Treatment.”

ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES

In contrast to using the Nexant model to allocate 90% of revenue, the Review Group examined a
number of alternatives to allocating 90% of the revenue received, listed below. The Members find the
existing Nexant model best promotes the guiding principles.

Method Strengths Weaknesses
Existing Nexant
Model to
allocate 90% of
See above
revenues
received
(recommended)
Uniform
allocation (1/n) . . - Fails to meet several cost
- Relatively simple and easy to . . .
JPA percentages implement allocation principles; particularly
Peak Demand for i . . causation, equity, transparency,
. . Predictable, replicable
defined time and comparable treatment
period
Contribution Same as above Mapping to specific programs
toward In proportion to contribution and activities is weaker than
Budgeted Costs toward cost using the model directly
- Stronger relationship to activity- | - Small incremental effort to use
based allocation of Nexant the model for greater precision
model since it’s already in production
Hybrid 1%
i Umforr-n - Ensures recipients receive some | - Portion allocated between the
allocation ) S
base amount of revenues two methods is subjective
- Nexant
Model

1% These hybrid models would be applied to the 90% of revenue received. Thus, 10% of would be allocated in
proportion to A&G costs (see section, “Policy Recommendations to the NCPA Commission”), leaving 90% to be
allocated via some other means. These hybrids would allocate some proportion of the 90% via a direct allocator
(e.g. 1/n) with the remainder allocated using the Nexant model.

W e e sl TR Rl T TR R T e ST e et S IS S e e

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

9



Method Strengths Weaknesses

Hybrid 2: - NCPA prefers actions such as
- Business - Recognizes the current budget business de\./elf)pmen't come
development from Commission policy and
and Nexant model do not . . .
fund address BD functions actions with funding
- Nexant considerations held in those
Model forums.

Threshold Tests to Determine Eligibility for Revenue Allocations

The second broad finding is to implement two threshold tests to determine whether an entity is eligible
to receive revenue and to what extent. The first test is based on Membership status, while the second is
based on the pricing structure under which the Member is receiving Power Management services (i.e.
variable or fixed rate pricing structure).

MEMBERSHIP STATUS

The Members generally support a first threshold test be based on Membership status, reserving
revenues to NCPA Members, with an exception made for non-Member Participants to NCPA Projects.
Reserving revenues for the benefit of Members creates a clear criterion in determining eligibility for
revenue allocation, it is a clear and measurable benefit to NCPA Membership when marketing to
potential new Members, and it reflects the investments and commitments that today’s membership has
made in forming and continuing to fund NCPA. The exceptions made for non-Member Participants of
NCPA Projects recognizes the strong financial commitments these entities have made to NCPA through
their respective project agreements.

Types of Non-Members

The Review Group classified non-Members into 3 distinct groups based on their types of interactions
with NCPA. First, there are service contracts with non-Member entities that individually subscribe to
Power Management services. This includes entities like PCWA (Placer County Water Agency) and MEID
(Merced Irrigation District), each of whom recently signed an agreement to take PM services on a
contract basis. Second, there are non-Members who are part of a multi-party power purchase
agreement that also includes NCPA Members. This is a hypothetical case since none exist in the NCPA
portfolio. However, this case may materialize as Members increase purchase activity for RPS
compliance. Third, there are generation asset(s) owned and operated by NCPA that include at least one
non-Member Project Participant (a.k.a. non-Member Participants to NCPA Projects), which may
represent an exception to this threshold test and will be addressed under “NCPA Generation Facilities
with Non-Member Project Participants ”.

Service Contracts with Non-Members. The Members finds no reason to systematically allocate any
portion of revenue to Non-Members that individually subscribe to Power Management service
agreements. The relationship between NCPA and these third parties is finite. It is defined by contract
and risks, benefits, compensation, and service rates are defined. These parties negotiate with NCPA for
services under a defined price structure for a define period of time, and these contract terms should be

adhered to for the applicable term of the contract.
D e e e s o= e

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS 10
FOR REVENUE ALIOCATION




Multi-Party Contracts with Members and Non-Members. The Review Group discussed the scenario
where (a) NCPA Members work with non-Members to jointly purchase RPS-eligible products, and (b)
NCPA wins contracts to provide Power Management services for some of these resources. The Review
Group deliberated to assess how these types of resources and purchasing arrangements may affect
revenue allocations. A key assumption to this analysis is that the resource is owned by a third party and
the Members and Non-members purchase the output of the resource via a Power Purchase Agreement
(i.e. the resource is not owned and operated by NCPA).

Under this construct, the Review Group finds no reason why the Non-member entity should
systematically be aliocated revenue that NCPA may produce by expanding Power Management services.
Said differently, the service rates that NCPA charges to these Non-Members should not be affected by
additional revenues that offset costs of the Power Management program. The Non-Members’
investment in NCPA is finite and defined under the terms of the contract that facilitates scheduling
services. For all intents and purposes, these Non-Members’ relationship with NCPA is similar to those
Non-Members that contract for Power Management services on an individual basis.

The complicating factor for this situation is the presence of NCPA Members. The Review Group finds
that it may be appropriate to use these resources’ model input factors in allocating revenues. Recall that
this Review Group’s overarching finding is to use the Nexant cost allocation model to allocate revenues.
Thus, any resources added to the Nexant cost allocation model will impact the allocation of both costs
and revenues. The Review Group finds that it is appropriate to use the resource’s operating
characteristics (i.e. Nexant model inputs) associated with the Member-controlled portions of these
jointly-owned facilities to allocate revenues to NCPA Members, with one caveat. The Review Group
believes that the type of pricing arrangement that the resource, Member participants, and Non-Member
participants use when contracting for Power Management services should also be used to determine
eligibility for revenue allocation, which is discussed next.

PRICING STRUCTURE FOR POWER MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Review Group supports a second threshold test that considers the pricing structure under which
Power Management services are provided. Today, all services provided by NCPA Power Management to
Members are priced under a variable-rate structure that allows each Member’s and/or Participant’s
allocation of cost to increase or decrease from year-to-year. Members have sought Power Management
services under a fixed-price structure to avoid risk of increasing costs. The Review Group’s analysis and
recommendations focus on the symmetry of risk Members face under these two broad categories of

pricing structure.

This discussion is intended to recognize the type of pricing risks Members take on when contracting for
Power Management services with NCPA. Those that take services under a variable-rate structure are
exposed to increases and decreases in costs between budget years. Those that take services under a
fixed-rate structure are not exposed to the same fluctuations, by design. The Review Group finds that
the asymmetric risks that service-takers bear under these different pricing structures should influence

revenue allocation. The chief argument is that revenue decreases Members’/Participants’ net costs and
(e T e R SR i P e s e e By SR i SRR

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUFE ALLOCATION

11



should be reserved for those that take on risks for future cost increases (i.e. variable-rate pricing
structure). Those under a fixed-rate pricing structure do not take on risks of such increases.

Thus, the Members recommend excluding Nexant model inputs associated with any fixed-rate services
from the revenue allocation process (i.e. apply this test to the portion of revenues allocated using the
Nexant model). For example, suppose a Member purchases output from a resource and contracts for
Power Management services under a fixed-rate service agreement for that resource. Any model inputs
used to include and/or create the price for that specific resource would not be used in allocating
revenues using the Nexant model. NCPA staff has evaluated this proposal and has determined it is
feasible to implement.

Allocation of Revenues to New Members

The third broad finding of the Review Group is to considered how revenue allocation may be impacted if
the NCPA membership level is changed. Before the current policy, it was generally understood that new
Members would receive an allocation of cost and revenues like any other Member, effective upon
Membership. The Review Group believes this creates a small transition issue. The current Members
have provided the commitment and investments to build the capabilities that are being marketed today.
The Review Group recommends that these historic investments receive some consideration when
allocating revenues to Members that join NCPA from this point forward. This could be as simple as using
a previous year’s Nexant model run to allocate revenues. The use of historic data is intended to capture
legacy investments. While imperfect, it helps to address this transition issue.

This proposal introduces other issues. Lagged data are used elsewhere in the Nexant cost allocation
methods and have come under scrutiny in recent years (e.g. schedule counts and contract counts).
Historic data may not reflect current or future conditions particularly in changing conditions. The
transition issue identified above is by definition a “changing condition.” However, absent better data,
the Review Group finds this to be a suitable concept that offers a small recognition toward legacy
investments.

Alternatively, the Review Group briefly discussed other means of recognizing legacy investments made
by the current membership. This included concepts along the lines of buy-in fees. However, the Review
Group does not believe these to be appropriate at this time. Introducing additional barriers to
expanding services would not promote NCPA'’s current strategic objective, especially if those costs are in
no way tied to the proposed services to be provided.

The Review Group also discussed how the allocation of revenue to new members would make less
revenue available to the existing member base. Discussions included limited (assumed) cases where the
allocation of revenue could result in an increase in the allocation of net costs to current members, giving
the appearance of a cost increase. The Review Group does not believe these are a source of major
concern that warrants specific action. One can assume that if a new Member joins (and takes Power
Management services), their contribution toward Agency costs will be sufficient to offset any impact to
the allocation of revenue.

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS 1
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION



Staff has adopted these concepts!! when preparing the FY18 budget, which included NCPA’s newest
Member, the City of Shasta Lake. Staff allocated 10% of expected FY18 service proceeds in proportion to
Members’ contributions toward A&G expenses, per the Interim Policy*2. Staff used FY16 A&G cost data
as a revenue allocator since it was the most recent and complete data available (i.e. net of end-of-year
true up). However, using this approach will preclude any new Member from receiving any portion of the
10% of revenue allocated via A&G for two years (i.e. when FY18 actual data are used for the FY20
budget).

Applying the Review Group’s Broad Findings to Three Specific Test Cases
The Review Group applied its broad findings to three specific cases, which follow:

1. Applying new revenues toward unfunded liabilities related to personnel costs;

2. Applying new revenues toward NCPA’s Administrative & General costs, beyond what is allocated
to the Power Management program; and

3. Applying new revenues to NCPA Projects that have Non-Member Participants

Unfunded Liabilities Related to Personnel Costs

On March 31, 2016, the NCPA Commission approved a formal Long Term Funding Plan for the Long-
Term (NCPA) Retiree Medical Plan3. A component of that plan was to “consider [the use of] revenue
[from new members or new services] to reduce the additional funding requirements [pending] a policy
about allocation of revenue...by the Commission”*4,

The Review Group agrees it is prudent to consider using new revenues to help prevent additional costs
billed to Members. The Review Group believes this concept should be refined to allow each Member to
direct how it may use its allocated portion of new revenue toward their allocated obligations
contemplated under the long-term funding plan. In doing so, individual Members control their exposure
to increased costs associated with this set of costs.

The Review Group shared a number of concerns over concepts that would direct new revenues to offset
these costs without proper Member-by-Member accounting. These concerns stem from several
inconsistencies with the Cost Allocation Principles that guide cost/revenue allocation analyses. These
principles can be found in this paper, above, in section titled, “Assessing the Nexant Model Based on
Cost Allocation Principles.”

In summary, the Review Group believes an accurate accounting of both the costs and new revenues are
paramount to ensure equity within the NCPA membership. To help build upon the work of the Finance

11 policy elements addressing transition issues with new Members were not specifically addressed in the

Commission Staff Report associated with the Interim Policy. However, these concepts were included in the

technical document that was included by reference in the Commission Resolution.

12 This activity is reflected in the FY18 budget. Final allocation of revenue is subject change in the end-of-year true-

up.

13 please see NCPA Staff Report 132:16.

14 |bid, at 3.

| e S S e T el S N RO [ T s e e e |
REVISED POIICY RECOMMENDATIONS
F'OR REVENUE ALl OCATION

13



Committee, this Review Group offers additional criteria for the Commission’s consideration when
developing a policy that determines how new revenue will be allocated. The Review Group’s
contributions are as follows:

1. Revenues and costs should be accounted for on a Member-by-Member basis and in ways
discussed in other areas of this paper,

2. Each Member be given control over its allocated share of new revenue, including the ability
to direct any {or none) of its portion of new revenue to offset the Member’s allocated share
of obligations contemplated under the Long-Term Funding Plan.

NCPA Administrative and General Costs

The concept of allocating 10% of revenues received in proportion to A&G costs was introduced by the
Facilities Committee as a simplified method to ensure all Members benefit in revenue allocation. This
concept received scrutiny by the UDs, but it was ultimately included in the Interim Policy. Certain UDs,
particularly Redding'’s, expressed interest in exploring the matter further to determine if there is a more
accurate and/or equitable means of ensuring all Members benefit from the new activity.

There were two options discussed by this UD Sub-Group: continue to use the interim policy method (i.e.
10% via A&G), or adjust the way in which NCPA budgets and allocates costs for “new business
development” particularly for personnel in A&G. The UD Sub-Group relied upon the principles of
“Simplicity” and “Causation” to guide their evaluation of discussions, which are summarized briefly
below.

¢ Simplicity: Members prefer straight-forward means of allocating costs / revenues but accept
greater complexity when it offers greater accuracy or equity.

e Causation: Costs / revenues ought to be tied to the activity creating the cost or to the
Member/Participant receiving the benefit, evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

The UD Sub-Group discussed but decided against adjusting the budgeting and cost allocation practices
for A&G personnel. The concept would require A&G personnel to estimate the amount of time they
would spend on developing new business, possibly correcting for forecast errors after the fact, and
developing a cost allocation methodology for this new budget category. As discussions progressed,
NCPA staff and the UD Sub-Group became concerned the proposal would introduce great complexity
and a substantial amount of additional work without a clear value proposition to justify it. Thus, per the
Simplicity Principle, the group opted to abandon this approach and focus their attention on the method
contained in the interim policy to determine its suitability.

The UD Sub-Group recommends by a 4-0 vote that 10% of revenues continue to be allocated to
Members in proportion to their contributions to A&G costs. This recommendation promotes two
overarching principles: (1) Membership should have its benefits, and (2) all Members should benefit
from the expansion of PM&AS services. Reserving a portion of revenues for the exclusive benefit of
NCPA Members promotes the acquisition and retention of Members and it is consistent with the way in

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

I'OR REVENUE ALLOCATION 1



which other owners of firms are rewarded with dividend proceeds. Separately, the group discussed the
merits and basis of the 10% figure itself, and determined it is consistent with “return on equity” figures
found throughout the industry. Therefore, this UD Sub-Group recommends that (a) 10% of revenues be
reserved for the exclusive benefit of NCPA Members, and (b) allocate this portion of revenue in
proportion to Members’ contributions to the A&G costs to ensure all Members receive a benefit.

NCPA Generation Facilities with Non-Member Project Participants

Members recommend non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects receive an allocation of revenue, as
part of the allocation made through the Nexant model, provided that the revenue allocation policy be
developed further at a later date to reserve a greater proportion of revenues for Members under certain
conditions (see Section “New Concept For Future Discussion” below).

The Commission’s Interim Policy was based on recommendations of the Review Group, Facilities
Committee, and the full set of Utility Directors. The UDs were briefed that the Review Group and
Facilities Committee recommended revenues be allocated to non-Member Participants of the Geo and
LEC projects, as part of the allocation made through the Nexant model, and that these
recommendations were not unanimously supported in either committee. The UDs were also split on this
issue during their November 2016 meeting. The UDs expressed interest in discussing this matter further
and recommended that the Interim Policy not allocate revenues to non-Member Participants of NCPA
Projects allow time for the UD Sub-Group to address this topic.

The Review Group and UD Sub-Group focused on different aspects before making their respective policy
recommendations. The Review Group explored (R1) whether NCPA was contractually required to
allocate revenues to LEC under the LEC governance agreements, (R2) the implications the pricing
structure has on LEC Participants (i.e. a variable-rate pricing structure), and (R3) the general notion of
Members having exclusive rights to revenues is appropriate for these facilities. The Review Group
focused its discussions on the LEC because of its large proportionate size in both cost and potential
revenue allocation®>. The UD Sub-Group discussions were related to the types of risks and liabilities that
face NCPA Members vs. non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects. The group sought to map revenues
to those who take on those risks and liabilities, which can be classified into 3 categories: (U1) Price Risk,
(U2) Project Risk, and (U3) Risks Associated with NCPA Failure. There were similarities between each
group’s discussion items and these are combined in the subsections that follow. in particular, R3 is
combined with U2, and R2 is combined with U1.

LEC GOVERNING CONTRACTS (R1)
The LEC is owned and operated by NCPA, it has a total of 13 Project Participants, 4 of which are not

Members of NCPA, and the participation share!® between NCPA Members and non-Members is nearly

15 LEC contributed more than 10% of the Power Management & Administrative costs in FY 2016 and 2017. LEC
would be allocated over 10% of revenues if the Nexant model is used to derive those figures.

6 The LEC governing documents use a defined term “Generation Entitlement Share” or “GES” to assess allocation
of any and all liability, costs, and benefits.

= e~ S see e o o b wReRes o e o R e L e T e T SRt B WS p |

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS 15
F'OR REVENUE ALLOCATION >



50/50%. The LEC is not a traditional “NCPA Project” as defined in the Facilities Agreement. Membership
status is a prerequisite in NCPA's standard contracts. Thus, the LEC was established using different
governing contracts®®,

The LEC is allocated costs using the Nexant cost allocation model using the same methodologies applied
to any other resources in the NCPA scheduling portfolio. Section 7.2 of the PSA notes, “NCPA shall use
the same allocation method for allocating each category of NCPA Administrative Costs®® to the [LEC] as
for other NCPA projects and programs.” NCPA General Counsel was asked to review the PMOA and PSA
and to opine if NCPA is contractually obligated to allocate revenue to the LEC. General Counsel has
concluded that the contract language does not obligate NCPA to allocate revenues to LEC. The contract
contemplates project costs extensively but does not contemplate revenues. Thus, the question of
whether to allocate revenues to LEC using the Nexant cost allocation model methodologies is a policy
and business matter.

ALLOCATING COSTS TO LEC / PRICE RISKS (R2 & U1)

The language in the PSA exposes the LEC Participants to a variable-rate structure for Power
Management services and is a direct function of Power Management’s total budged costs. One specific
example was raised in both the Review Group and UD Sub-Group discussions: How would it affect the
allocation of costs to LEC (and Geo) if NCPA increases its staffing levels in the scheduling functions in
response to the expansion of Power Management services? In this case, total costs have increased in
areas where the LEC and Geo receives Power Management services, so the allocation of cost to LEC &
Geo would increase. This point highlights how the pricing structure applied to NCPA Projects can result
in an increased allocation of cost without a commensurate increase in work performed on behalf of the
NCPA Projects. It should be noted that the same mechanism applies in reverse: if the Power
Management costs were to decrease, the allocation of costs to LEC and Geo would also decrease,
presuming the decreases occur in areas where the LEC and Geo receive services. The allocation of
PM&AS costs to an NCPA Project are classified as “Project costs,” and are subsequently allocated to
Project Participants in proportion to their Generation Entitlement Shares (regardless of membership
status).

The same mechanics can be seen in the application of the Nexant cost allocation model today. As noted
above, SVP and Palo Alto have brought additional resources to NCPA for Power Management services
{among other Members). Once these resources were added to the Nexant model, all costs were
reallocated. SVP and Palo Alto, respectively, would be allocated a larger share of costs because of the
increased level of the various activities that drive the allocation of cost. As a result, the allocation of cost
to LEC decreased in direct proportion to the relative activities that drive the allocation of costs. The

7 NCPA Members’ combined GES is 50.332% and non-Members combined GES is 49.668%.

8 The “Project Management and Operations Agreement” or “PMOA” and the “Power Sales Agreement” or “PSA.”
19 The Section 6.1 of the PMOA refers to Section 7.2 of the PSA for the purposes of cost allocations and includes
reference to Power Management costs.

S T S e Ta e mam s GRS R STl S Fin S e RS S T e un

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

16



same will be true if Members remove resources from NCPA's portfolio. Assuming other things constant,
all remaining service takers’ costs, including LEC, would increase.

LEC’s Non-Member Participants also pay a JPA assessment in an amount they would otherwise pay if
they were NCPA Members.

THE THRESHOLD TEST OF MEMBERSHIP STATUS / PROJECT RISKS (R3 & U2}

The Review Group and UD Sub-Group examined this issue using its principles regarding membership
status. To reiterate, the Member representatives of both groups strongly believe revenues should be
reserved for NCPA Members. Membership should have its privileges. During these discussions, the
Review Group & UD Sub-Group tested this principle as it relates to the LEC (and Geo) non-Member
Participants to identify what differentiates Members and non-Members with respect to the plant. NCPA
Members take on substantial operational, environmental, labor, general liability, etc. risks when
investing in NCPA generation assets. In these respects, the non-Member LEC Participants have taken on
a commensurate level of risk as NCPA Members. The governing documents have the same force and
effect as NCPA Third Phase agreements on other NCPA-owned generation assets. It is a significant
commitment and investment in the generation asset and NCPA.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH NCPA FAILURE (U3)

The UD Sub-Group discussed certain scenarios that contemplate risks if (a) NCPA fails to perform its
scheduling tasks resulting in market costs or penalties, (b) LEC Participants vote to separate from
PM&AS services from NCPA, and (c) NCPA fails as an organization (i.e. no longer exists). The underlying
concern common to all 3 scenarios is to determine if any action or event absolves non-Member
Participants of NCPA Projects from paying their allocated share of costs, leaving the liability for
Members to cover. In this context, “cost” is considered broadly to include direct project costs and
indirect costs of NCPA. NCPA staff researched the LEC governance documents and the “Membership Exit
and Withdrawal Agreement” between NCPA and TID and presented its findings with the UD Sub-Group
in a separate discussion paper. The LEC contracts highlight the strong financial commitments LEC
Participants make to NCPA related to all project costs, which includes specific reference to costs of
retiree benefits. The “Membership and Withdrawal Agreement” highlights how NCPA and its Members
interpreted similar language when TID withdrew from the JPA and ended its membership in NCPA. TID
agreed to issue payment to cover its pro-rata share of unfunded pension and retiree medical expenses.

REVIEW GROUP & UD SUB-GROUP FINDINGS FOR LEC

In the end, the Members voice unanimous support for allowing revenues to flow to non-Member
Participants of NCPA Projects as part of the allocation made through the Nexant model. However, the
UD Sub-group adds a caveat to its recommendation. Specifically, the UD Sub-Group supports the
concept of allowing revenues to flow to non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects, for the reasons
noted above, but only up to the portion of revenues represented by the “cost of service” to provide
those services to third parties.

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

17



Prior to the adoption of the Interim Policy, the Review Group did not arrive at a unanimous position with
respect to LEC. Alameda, Plumas, SVP, and Roseville favor a position that would allocate revenues to the
LEC, and subsequently to non-Member participants of LEC. Palo Alto favored a position that would
allocate revenues to the Members that participate in LEC, but not the non-Member participants of LEC.
The Facilities Committee also supported allowing revenues to flow to non-Member Participants of NCPA
project, with one dissent. The Utility Directors suggested the Interim Policy be narrowed to allow
revenues to flow to Members only to allow the UD Sub-Group to discuss the matter.

The UD Sub-Group determined that non-Member Participants to NCPA Projects appear to carry
commensurate risks as Members in price risk, project risk, and in the event of NCPA’s failure, which
satisfied the principles of Causation and Comparable Treatment. Palo Alto’s representatives introduced
the concepts outlined in the next section, “New Concept For Future Discussion,” which would reserve a
greater proportion of revenue for the exclusive benefit of Members. These concepts satisfy principles
related to Member benefits. For the reasons outlined in the discussion above, and with the
understanding that the revenue allocation policy will be developed further, the UD Sub-Group supports
by a 3-0-1 vote? that the Interim Policy be changed such that the portion of revenues allocated via the
Nexant model be expanded to allow revenues to flow to non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects.

The Members covered a large number of topics when deliberating on this issue. The strongest
arguments supporting the two main outcomes are reiterated below.

The main arguments in support of allocating revenues to LEC?, including to non-Member Participants,
are as follows:

1. LEC Participants have taken on a substantial level of risk and liability, for the life of the project,
through the LEC governance contracts. The liabilities are commensurate with NCPA owned and
operated facilities, including the CT1, CT2, Geothermal, and Calaveras Projects. In this sense,
non-Member LEC Participants differ very little compared to Members. The level of risk exceeds
that of other resources contracted for by Members through bilateral arrangements (i.e. owned
and operated by third parties, purchased though a PPA).

2. LEC Participants are subject to an allocation of cost that can change from year to year. The
change in cost can be independent of any service provision of activity level caused directly by
LEC (e.g. increase staffing levels because of the expansion of services).

3. Current customs and practices allow LEC's allocated costs to increase or decrease when service
levels are changed elsewhere in the NCPA portfolio (e.g. when Palo Alto and SVP introduced
solar projects and the Tri-dams facilities, respectively).

20 Barry Tippin (Redding) was not present at the June 6, 2017 meeting and has not opined on the Subgroup’s

recommendation at the time of this writing.

21 The discussion and text below focused on LEC, but the same concepts and findings apply to Geo.

Rl S T i e S T | [ e i R i WS e g
REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS 18
FOR REVENUE ALI OCATION



4. The project economics of LEC were attractive, but participation levels from NCPA Members
were insufficient to build to the proper scale to achieve those economics. Thus, NCPA expanded
its participation base to include non-Members to increase participation levels.

The main arguments in support of limiting the allocating revenues to LEC, to Members only, are as
follows:

1. Membership should have a clear benefit in order to promote the Agency. Allocation of revenues
can serve that purpose.

2. NCPA General Counsel has opined that NCPA is under no contractual obligation to allocate
revenue to the LEC. Also, to this Review Group’s knowledge, there was no expectation that
revenues would be allocated to LEC Participants at the time contracts were executed.

3. Scope creep: The same logic applied above (i.e. for allocating revenues to non-Member
participants) can be applied to other NCPA Projects (i.e. Geothermal and TID) and future
projects organized in similar fashion.

4. Causality: Members are ultimately responsible for directing and funding Agency activities,
including building Power Management programs and developing staff capabilities. These
activities are the services being marketed to non-Member agencies and any returns from the
successful marketing should be returned to Members.

New Concept For Future Discussion

The UD Sub-Group introduces an idea that addresses how revenue allocation could be applied if NCPA’s
cost of service is less than the market value of comparable services and potentially reserves additional
revenue for the exclusive benefit of Members. NCPA uses the Nexant Model to estimate the “cost of
service” when responding to RFPs for power management services, and it considers this information
when determining its proposed contract price to third parties. It is generally understood that NCPA’s
cost of service to provide PM&AS services is above market. Therefore, it is difficult for NCPA to include a
margin to its cost of service when submitting proposals. However, the UD Sub-Group notes that this cost
vs. market relationship may reach a crossover point if NCPA continues to be awarded contracts (because
its average fixed cost decreases). To that end, the UD Sub-Group introduces the following concept as a
framework for additional policy development.

Suppose NCPA is approached by a third party seeking PM&AS services, NCPA’s cost of service for this
third party is $400,000, and the market for comparable services supports a price of $500,000. Further
suppose NCPA bids its service at the “market rate” ($500,000) instead of its cost of service (5400,000)
and is awarded the contract by the third party. This creates $100,000 in “margin” (i.e. revenue less cost).
How should NCPA allocate this $500,000 in revenue between Members and Non-Member Participants
to NCPA Projects?

The interim revenue allocation policy and proposed revisions to the policy do not differentiate portions
of revenue (because revenues are equal to cost of service). Under the current policy, 10% of revenues
received, or $50,000, would be allocated to Members in proportion to their contributions of A&G costs

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE Al L OCATION

19



and 90%, or $450,000, would be allocated to Members and non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects
using the Nexant model, which includes $50,000 of the “margin.”

The UD Sub-Group takes issue with allocating any portion of “Margin” to non-Members. This concept
was shared broadly within the Membership during subsequent meetings of the Facilities Committee and
the Utility Directors and these ideas received strong interest from the balance of the Members. Stated
differently, no Member was in favor of the opposite position (i.e. allocating Margin to non-Member
Participants of NCPA Projects).

The following list summarizes the main points of this policy idea identified to date. The Members
strongly recommend future revenue allocation methods follow these concepts, but recommend
deferring policy development activities until NCPA and the Membership determine the effort is timely
(e.g. when NCPA produces “margin” over its cost to provide power management services to third
parties).

e Cost of service should be determined using the Nexant model, or its successor, consistent with
today’s practices.

e Revenue would be allocated in two or more parts, differentiated by the portion attributable to
cost of service vs. the portion attributable to margin.

e The portion attributable to the cost of service ($400,000) should be allocated to Members &
non-Members, using the Nexant model, or its successor. This ensures non-Member Participants
to NCPA Projects continue to receive benefits, consistent with their variable-rate pricing
structure.

e The portion attributable to the margin ($100,000) should be reserved exclusively for Members.
This adds to the value proposition of membership at NCPA.

e The practice of allocating 10% of the total revenue may continue. Doing so has certain
implications subject to further discussions.

Implementation

There are 3 areas Member discussions addressed implementation details. These are (1) effective date of
the policy recommendations above, (2) identifying how the Nexant model will be used to allocate
revenue, and (3) periodic review of the revenue allocation policy.

The UD Sub-Group recommends the policy recommendations presented in this paper become effective
for the beginning of Fiscal Year 2018. Staff used the Interim Policy to develop the FY18 budget, and the
policy recommendations presented in this paper modifies the allocation by allowing revenues to flow to
non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects. Thus, if this effective date is approved, it will create a
budget variance that NCPA staff recommends be addressed at the end-of-year true up. Staff estimates
the budget variance to be relatively small, with approximately $32,000 of revenue being allocated to the
5 non-Member Participants of NCPA Projects and Members’ allocated share of revenues decreasing by
the same amount.

As noted above, all members in all forums agreed to use the Nexant model to allocate revenues, in
general. The Review Group explored 3 ways to implement this and recommended using a method that
e = e e e e == - = o Ly

REVISED POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

20



would require full model runs of the Nexant model. This concept did not receive full support, with
Plumas Sierra dissenting. The Utility Directors also reviewed this issue on November 10, 2016, and also
supported the full model run. This did not receive unanimous support receiving 7 supporting votes out
of 12. Staff prepared the FY18 budget based on a full model run of the Nexant model.

The recommendations presented above are intended to remain in place, with periodic review. Staff
recommended that the period review be tied to the same frequency and timing that the Nexant cost
allocation model (i.e. power management cost allocation methods) are required to be reviewed as
described in the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement, which is approximately
once every 5 years.

Summary & Conclusions

NCPA has successfully marketed its Power Management services to third parties, with substantial
services and associated proceeds commencing in fiscal year 2018. NCPA and Members have invested
substantial time and effort developing findings and recommendations to allocate those revenues to
Members. Findings are documented throughout this paper and specific recommendations, which can be
found in section, “Policy Recommendations to the NCPA Commission.”

REVISED PGLICY RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR REVENUE ALLOCATION

21



Estimated Change in Revenue Allocation
Current vs. Proposed Policy (FY18)
Interim  Proposed
Member Policy Policy] Difference
Santa Clara $222,864 $209,331| S (13,533)
Palo Alto $73,066 $68,288 | S (4,778)
Lodi $49,825  $46,685|S  (3,140)
Alameda $42,533 $39,812 1S (2,721)
Roseville $33,510 $31,339 S  (2,171)
BART $34,303 $31,752 | S  (2,551)
Ukiah $19,917  $18,662 | $  (1,256)
Port of Oakland $16,124 $15,140 | $ (984)
Plumas Sierra $14,411 $13,465 | S (945)
Lompoc $13,314  $12,480|$ (834
Healdsburg $8,041 $7,533|S (508)
Gridley $4,651 $4328|$  (322)
Biggs $2,941 $2,758 | S (183)
TID S0 $8,648|$ 8,648
CDWR SO $17,050| S 17,050
MID S0 $5,453 | S 5,453
PWRPA S0 51,358 | S 1,358
Azusa S0 $1,418 | S 1,418
TOTAL $535,500 $535,500| S (0)

Notes:

1 Total expected revenue for FY18 is $595,000.

2 "FY18 Budget" shows each Member's allocated share of revenue according to the Interim Revenue
Allocation Policy adopted by the NCPA Commission in December, 2016.
3 "Proposed Policy" shows each Member's allocated share of revenue according to the policy proposal

submitted to the NCPA Commission in October, 2017.

4 Ninety percent of expected revenues ($535,000) is allocated using the Nexant cost allocation model,

shown above.

5 The allocation of the remaining ten percent ($59,500) is not shown since the allocation methodology is
not changed under the proposed policy. This portion of revenue is allocated to Members in proportion to

Administrative & General (A&G) expenses.




A PUBLIT AGENCY

NCPA

MORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Adoption of Amount of Employer Contribution to CalPERS Medical Plans for

October 26, 2017

Calendar Year 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

[ A

1

Department. Human Resources

FROM:  VickiL. Cichocki \/~-/

Division: Administrative Services

Human Resources Manager N/A

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o o o o d

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

o o o o o o

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

O O 0O o o O

SR: 219:17



CalPERS Medical Plan Contribution Amount 2018
October 17, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 17-89 setting up to $1,647.27 per month, but not less than the amounts
prescribed by Section 22893 (a) (1), plus CalPERS administrative fees and Contingency
Reserve Fund assessments, as the maximum Agency contribution for the CalPERS Medical
Plans for employees and annuitants and their dependents for calendar year 2018; and approve
specific CalPERS Resolutions for each employee and/or employee/annuitant group including
Resolution Nos.17-89 A for IBEW Local 1245-Group 200, 17-89 B for HEA-Group 300, 17-89 C
for Unrepresented Staff-Group 400, 17-89 D for Power Generation Employees-NPERS Group
701, 17-89 E for Unrepresented Administrative Members-NPERS Group 702, 17-89 F for HEA-
NPERS Group 703, 17-89 G for IBEW Local 1245-Group 002, 17-89 H for HEA-Group 003, and
17-89 | for Unrepresented Staff-Group 004.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA provides medical coverage for its employees through CalPERS. During the 2015 union
negotiations, NCPA agreed to pay a maximum medical contribution of 90% of the Sacramento
Kaiser family rate per month in 2018 for IBEW Local 1245 employees and retirees, HEA
employees and retirees, and wishes to provide the same benefit to its unrepresented employees
and retirees.

In 2018, the employee and annuitant groups will continue to receive an employer contribution
for CalPERS Medical Plans that is subject to the maximum dollar amount approved for

payment, but not less than the 100/90 formula plus CalPERS administrative fees and
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments, for those retiree medical plans subject to Government
Code (GC) 22893. In order to fix NCPA’s contribution maximum amount, a CalPERS resolution
is required for each employee group.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the Agency’s contribution for the CalPERS Medical Plans for employees and
annuitants is included in the current fiscal year approved budget. The recommended monthly
maximum contribution for employees of $1,647.27 for 2018 is an increase of $31.79 per
employee from the approved amount of $1,615.91 in 2017. Under GC 22893, the maximum
monthly retiree contribution for family coverage in 2018 is $1,766.00, which is an increase of
$39.00 from $1,727.00 in 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

spectfully submitted,

:w-/b\$ H’/\

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

SR: 219:17



CalPERS Medical Plan Contribution Amount 2018
October 17, 2017
Page 3
Attachments:
¢ NCPA Commission Resolution 17-89
¢ CalPERS Resolutions 17-89 A through 17-89 | (9 separate resolutions for each
employee Group)

SR: 219:17



RESOLUTION 17-89

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADOPTING THE AMOUNT OF THE AGENCY CONTRIBUTION FOR CALPERS
MEDICAL PLANS FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR
2018

(reference Staff Report #219:17)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is an employer participating in
the CalPERS medical plan program under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act
for its employees and annuitants; and

WHEREAS, NCPA desires to change the employer’s contribution toward the cost of
employees’ and annuitants’ medical coverage to an amount equal to or greater than prescribed by
Section 22892(b) as authorized by Section 22892(a) and 22893 of the Government Code; and

WHEREAS, NCPA is fixing its maximum employer contribution under the CalPERS medical
plan at an amount previously negotiated with its labor organizations, IBEW Local 1245 and HEA,
for employees and is providing an equivalent benefit to its unrepresented employees and retirees;
and

WHEREAS, the Agency’s employer contribution for each employee for calendar year 2018
shall be a fixed amount up to $1,647.27 per month for the enroliment of the employee and his/her
dependents, plus CalPERS administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and

WHEREAS, the Agency’s employer contribution for each annuitant for calendar year 2018
shall be a fixed amount up to $1647.27 per month, but for those plans covered by Section
22893(a)(1), not less than the amounts prescribed (100/90 formula), plus CalPERs administrative
fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments, for the enroliment of the annuitant and his/her
dependents; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect
change in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065
the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency adopts the fixed amount of $1,647.27, but not less than the amounts prescribed under
Section 22893 (a)(1), per month, as the maximum Agency contribution for the CalPERS Medical
Plans for employees and annuitants and their dependents for calendar year 2018; and approve
specific CalPERS Resolutions for each employee and/or employee/annuitant group including
Resolution Nos.17-89 A for IBEW Local 1245-Group 200, 17-89 B for HEA-Group 300, 17-89 C for
Unrepresented Staff-Group 400, 17-89 D for Power Generation Employees-NPERS Group 701,
17-89 E for Unrepresented Administrative Members-NPERS Group 702, 17-89 F for HEA-NPERS
Group 703, 17-89 G for IBEW Local 1245-Group 002, 17-78 H for HEA-Group 003, and 17-89 | for
Unrepresented Staff-Group 004.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ____ day of , 2017, by the following
vote on roll call:




Vote
Alameda

Abstained Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 A
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22893
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, (1) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”) for participation by members of IBEW Local 1245 (Group 200); and

WHEREAS, (2) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency has filed a resolution with the
Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to provide a
postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire for service
in accordance with Government Code Section 22893; and

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be the
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of
family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, but
not less than the amounts prescribed by Section 22893(a)(1), plus Administrative fees
and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further,

RESOLVED, (b) Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Northern California Power
Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and reserves the right to
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer; and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct, the
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.
Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commiission at Roseville, CA, this day
of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:

Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 B
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22893
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, (1) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”) for participation by members of Hydroelectric Employees Association
(Group 300); and

WHEREAS, (2) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency has filed a resolution with the
Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to provide a
postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire for service
in accordance with Government Code Section 22893; and

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be the
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enrollment of
family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, but
not less than the amounts prescribed by Section 22893(a)(1), plus Administrative fees
and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further,

RESOLVED, (b) Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Northern California Power
Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and reserves the right to
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer; and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct, the
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.
Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this day
of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

VESTING 22893 - CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 C
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22893
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, (1) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”) for participation by members of Unrepresented Staff (Group 400); and

WHEREAS, (2) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency has filed a resolution with the
Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to provide a
postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire for service
in accordance with Government Code Section 22893; and

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be the
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of
family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, but
not less than the amounts prescribed by Section 22893(a)(1), plus Administrative fees
and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further,

RESOLVED, (b) Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Northern California Power
Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and reserves the right to
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer; and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct, the
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.
Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this
day of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 D

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS, (2)

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED,  (a)

RESOLVED, (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED, (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Power Generation Employees (NPERS Group 701); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enrollment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, plus
administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under
the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this day
of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 E

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

(1)

(2)

(3)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Unrepresented Administrative Members (NPERS Group 702); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enrollment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, plus
administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of Northern California Power Agency-all functions required of it under
the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this day
of , 2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 F

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS,  (2)

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED, (a)

RESOLVED, (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED, (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Hydroelectric Employees Association (NPERS Group 703); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enrollment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, plus
administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under
the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this day
of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 G

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

(1)

(2)

(3)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of IBEW Local 1245 (Group 002); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, plus
administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under
the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this day
of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

CHANGE ~- BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 H

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS, (2)

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED, (a)

RESOLVED,  (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED, (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of 003 Hydroelectric Employees Association (Group 003); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, plus
administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under
the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Rosevillw, CA, this day
of , 2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

CHANGE — BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-89 |

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

(1)

()

(3)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Unrepresented Staff (Group 004); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enrollment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of $1,647.27 per month, plus
administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,

the General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to
perform on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under
the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, CA, this day
of ,2017.

Signed:

Bob Lingl, Commission Chair

Attest:
Cary A. Padgett, Commission Assistant

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



INSTRUCTIONS

This resolution form is the approved form designated by the California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS). It should be used by a contracting agency subject to Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act
(PEMHCA) when the agency desires to change the monthly employer health contribution for employees and
annuitants in accordance with Government Code Section 22892.

The resolution is effective on the first day of the second month following the month in which the resolution is
filed (date stamped as received by CalPERS; See address below).

WHEREAS, (1) should be completed with full name of the contracting agency and recognized employee
organization.

RESOLVED, (a) should be completed to specify the amount of the employer contribution toward the
cost of enrollment for active employees and annuitants. The amount specified must be
an amount equal to or greater than that prescribed by Section 22892(b).

Commencing January 1, 2009, the employer contribution shall be adjusted annually by
the Board to reflect any change in the medical component of the Consumer Price Index,
and shall be rounded to the nearest dollar.

RESOLVED, (b) should be completed with full name of the contracting agency.

RESOLVED, (c) should be completed with full name of the contracting agency.

RESOLVED, (d) requests the position title of the individual who handles the PEMHCA resolution for the
contracting agency.

RESOLVED, (d) should be completed with full name of the contracting agency.

Because resolutions serve as a legally binding document, we require the original resolution, certified copy
with original signatures, or a copy of the resolution with the agency’s raised seal.

For resolution processing, deliver to the following:

Overnight Mail Service Regular Mail

California Public Employees’ Retirement System California Public Employees’ Retirement System
Health Resolution & Compliance Services, HAMD Health Resolution & Compliance Services, HAMD
400 Q Street PO BOX 942714

Sacramento, CA 95811 Sacramento, CA 94229-2714

The certification shown following the resolution is to be completed by those individuals authorized to sign for
the contracting agency in legal actions and is to include the name of the executive body; i.e. Board of Directors,
Board of Trustees, etc., the location and the date of signing.

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 26, 2017

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and
Letters for the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Monty Hanks (Z\X\ METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A

Division: Administrative Services

Department: Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah T[]
Bay Area Rapid Transit [J City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify:

SR: 214:17



Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and Letters
October 17, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff and the Finance Committee recommend that the Commission accept and file the
Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and Letters for the years ended June
30, 2017 and 2016.

BACKGROUND:

On October 17, 2017, the Finance Committee held a meeting to review the Northern California
Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations (NCPA) Financial Statements and
Associated Audit Report and Letters for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. The audit
partner from the Agency’s audit firm, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, reviewed the highlights of
the financial statements and answered questions from the Committee. The financial report was
given an unmodified or “clean” opinion by the auditors. No evidence of fraud or illegal acts were
noted in the course of the audit. In addition, the auditors presented a PowerPoint (copy is
attached) which includes required communications by the auditor. Additional auditor reports
include an internal control letter, negative assurance letters for bond indentures and the Agency
investment policy. Copies of these letters are attached to this report. Nothing of significance
was noted in any of the letters.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This is a financial report for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, which has no direct
budget impact to the agency, but merely reports on the fiscal impacts for the last fiscal year.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

Staff's recommendation was discussed with the Finance Committee on October 17, 2017,
however, no formal action was taken due to lack of a quorum. The Committee members
present during the meeting voiced their support for the recommendation and no other meeting
attendees had any objections.

Respectfully submitted,

e

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

- Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

- Baker Tilly dated October 17, 2017
o Required Communications by the Auditor to Those Charged with Governance
o Compliance with Bond Indentures Letter
o Compliance with Investment Policy Letter

- PowerPoint Presented to Finance Committee by auditors on October 17, 2017

SR: 214:17



A A PuBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AND

ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Reports on Audit of Combined Financial Statements
and
Supplementary Information

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Reports on Audit of Combined Financial Statements

Table of Contents

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Page
Independent Auditors’ Report............cccooociiiiiiiiiniiniiieeeeenee e
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited).................ccccoocevnviivinnnnnnnnnn. 3
Combined Financial Statements:
Combined Statements of Net Position .........ccceevevvvevieeieniennenenenerececeeeeeeen 12
Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net POSItion .........ccccceceeeeeeeeieececice e 14
Combined Statements of Cash FIOW ........cccecvrrierirviiniinincienieseneeeee e 15
Notes to Combined Financial Statements............coccevverieeeeieeveereerenenenesenennen 17
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ............. 46
Schedule of Plan Contributions..........cc.eveeeciereereeneesierrresreseeeevee e ereesesaene e 47
Trend Information for the OPEB Plan
and Funded Status of the OPEB Fund ..........ccccooveveiiieiniinecieieeececeeee, 48
Combining Financial Statements — For Purposes of Additional Analysis
(Unaudited):
Combining Statement of Net Position FY 2017 .......cccovevenveivneniiieeiieeireerenne 49
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position FY 2017 ......ccccocovieviinmnieeiecieeceeeeeeee v, 51
Combining Statement of Cash FIow FY 2017 ......oooieeieiiicieeeeeeeceecvnee 52
Combining Statement of Net Position FY 2016 ........cccoeeevivecieecieieeeceeecee, 54
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position FY 2016 ......ccccoevieevieeiecieneeeee e 56
Combining Statement of Cash Flow FY 2016 ........ccccocevivvevvevveneeeie e, 57
Generation Entitlement Shares...........cccccoveeierieniiecieseece e 59



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Northern California Power Agency and
Associated Power Corporations (the Agency), which comprise the combined statement of net position as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related combined statements of revenue, expenses and change in
net position, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2, State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Agency’s
preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Agency'’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
combined financial position of Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations as of
June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in combined financial position and cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Page 1



To the Board of Commissioners
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations

Prior Period Financial Statements

The combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, were audited by other auditors whose report dated
October 19, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those combined statements.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented
to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the combined financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the combined financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the combined financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the combined financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Agency’s combined financial statements. The combining statements of net position, combining
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, combining statements of cash flows (combining
financial statements) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
combined financial statements.

The combining financial statements are the responsibility of management and are derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial statements. The
fiscal 2017 information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial statements or to the
combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the combined financial statements as a whole. The fiscal 2016 combining statements were subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of those basic financial statements by other auditors, whose report on
such information stated it was fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 2016 combined financial
statements as a whole.

The schedule of generation entitiement shares has not been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.

Bk Telly Yichomsf rousty 112

Madison, Wisconsin
October 17, 2017

Page 2



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The management of Northern California Power Agency (the Agency or NCPA) offers the following narrative
discussion and analysis of its financial performance for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with the Agency’s combined financial statements and accompanying
notes, which follow this section.

BACKGROUND

The Northern California Power Agency is a joint powers agency formed by member public entities under the
laws of the State of California to provide cost effective wholesale power, energy-related services, and advocacy
on behalf of public power consumers. The Agency’s purposes are for purchasing, generating, transmitting,
and selling electrical energy and for providing other related services to its members as each may require. The
Agency provides a portion of certain of its members’ power needs and certain of its members also self-provide
and/or purchase power and transmission from other public and private sources.

NCPA is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission is
responsible for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the
direction of the General Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative,
operating and planning services for the Agency.

The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed by project
revenue bonds that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds
associated with its interest in each project. Each of the Agency's members may choose which projects it wishes
to participate in, and is known as a "project participant” for each such project. Each project participant has
agreed to pay its proportionate share of debt service and other costs of the related project; notwithstanding the
suspension, interruption, interference, reduction or curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that
is, the take-or-pay member agreements). Certain of the revenue bonds are additionally supported by municipal
bond insurance credit enhancements.

Power sales by the Agency to its members for their resale include both sales of power to project participants
generated by operating plants and power purchased from outside sources. Collections for power sales are
designed to recover costs that include budgeted annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts
for operating reserves or cost stabilization may be included in collections under the terms of bond indentures.
The Agency’s collections for electric service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Rather, the
Agency’s collections are established annually in connection with its budget, which is approved by its governing
Commission.

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate not-for-profit corporations
should be delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the
Agency ("the Associated Power Corporations"). The Associated Power Corporations, consisting of Northern
California Municipal Power Corporation Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to
construct, operate, and manage their respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return
for financing the costs of acquisition and construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the
plants.

Because the Agency is a separate, special-purpose governmental entity that serves its participating members,
who are also the’ Agency’s principal customers, the net results of operations flow through to its participating
members as either net revenues or net expenses.

Page 3



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

FINANCIAL REPORTING

For accounting purposes, the Agency is a special-purpose governmental entity that is engaged in a business-
type activity, principally as a supplier of wholesale electricity and transmission to its member participants. As
such, the Agency’s financial statements are presented as an enterprise type fund.

The records of the Agency and the Associated Power Corporations are maintained substantially in accordance
with the FERC Uniform System of Accounts. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America are applied by the Agency in conformance with pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The combined financial statements encompass the Agency and Associated Power
Corporations on an accrual accounting basis. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated from the combined amounts reported.

In accordance with GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use
Proprietary Fund Accounting (GASB No. 62), the Agency has recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities
certain items of expense and revenue that otherwise would have been charged to operations as such items will
be recovered in the future years’ operations. The Agency expects to recover these items in collections over
the term of the related debt obligations it has issued or when the obligation is paid.

Effective for fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Agency adopted GASB Statement of Government
Accounting Standards No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement establishes standards
for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities. The definition of fair value is the price in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. No adjustments were needed as a result of
adopting this Statement.

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION, COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION, AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS

The combined statements of net position includes all the Agency’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position using the accrual method of accounting, as well as
information about which assets can be used for general purposes and which assets are restricted as a result of
bond covenants and other commitments. The combined statement of net position provides information about
the nature and amount of resources and obligations at a specific point in time. The combined statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position report all the revenues and expenses during the time periods
indicated. The combined statements of cash flows report the cash provided and used by operating activities,
as well as other cash sources such as investment income and debt financing, and other cash uses, such as
payments for debt service and capital additions.

Page 4



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following is a summary of the Agency’s combined financial position and results of operations for the
years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015.

June 30,
Con.d'ensed Statement of Net (in thousands)
Position
2017 2016 2015
Assets
Current assets $ 88,453 $ 83,366 $ 81,501
Restricted assets 221,783 211,759 204,769
Electric plant, net 559,841 588,870 618,708
Other assets 236,269 249,574 249,659
Total Assets 1,106,346 1,133,569 1,154,637
Deferred outflows of resources 61,612 63,441 67,424
$ 1,167,958 $ 1,197,010 $ 1,222,061
Liabilities and Net Position
Long-term debt, net $ 737,022 $ 776,982 $ 816,936
Current liabilities 101,550 91,653 93,224
Non-current liabilities 218,427 214,612 199,980
Total Liabilities 1,056,999 1,083,247 1,110,140
Deferred inflows of resources 76,899 85,800 81,930
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets (62,191) (62,193) (60,971)
Restricted 58,269 66,282 64,688
Unrestricted 37,982 23,874 26,274
$ 1,167,958 $ 1,197,010 $ 1,222,061
Years Ended June 30,
Condensed Statements of (in thousands)
Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Ngt Position 2017 2016 2015
Operating revenues * $ 466,738 $ 467,101 $ 423,887
Operating expenses (418,307) (421,507) (378,672)
Net operating revenues 48,431 45,594 45,215
Other expenses (21,561) (38,860) (38,260)
Future refundable costs (13,274) (140) (2,292)
Refunds to participants (7,499) (8,622) (6,905)
Change in net position 6,097 (2,028) (2,242)
Net position, beginning of year 27,963 29,991 32,233
Net position, end of year $ 34,060 $ 27,963 $ 29,991

*A reclassification of $14,457,000 was made for FY 2016 between Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses
for comparability purpose.

Page 5



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current Assets

2017 Compared to 2016 - Current assets increased $5.1 million or 6.1% from the prior year, primarily due to
higher energy sales during May and June. The higher energy sales resulted from increased hydroelectric
generation as a result of a significant snowpack and heavy rainfall during the winter months.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Current assets increased $1.9 million or 2.3% from the prior year, primarily due to
net cash inflow from operating and investing activities offset by decrease in California Independent System
Operator (CAISO) receivables.

Restricted Assets

2017 Compared to 2016 - Restricted assets increased $10.0 million or 4.7% from the prior year. This is
primarily a result of net increase in participants’ General Operating Reserves of $4.7 million and collections
of budgeted reserves and deposits of $5.3 million.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Restricted assets increased $7.0 million or 3.4% from the prior year. This is
primarily a result of net participants’ contributions to their General Operating Reserves of $5.4 million and
collections of budgeted reserves and deposits of $3.6 million.

Electric Plant, net

2017 Compared to 2016 - The Agency has invested approximately $559.8 million in plant assets and
construction work in progress, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2017. Net utility plant comprises
approximately 47.9% of the Agency’s assets. The $29.1 million or 4.9% decrease from the prior year consists
of $30.7 million in depreciation, offset by net capital expenditures of $0.1 million. For additional detail, refer
to Note B — Significant Accounting Policies.

2016 Compared to 2015 - The Agency has invested approximately $588.9 million in plant assets and
construction work in progress, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2016. Net utility plant comprises
approximately 49.2% of the Agency’s assets. The $29.8 million or 4.8% decrease from the prior year consists
of $30.6 million in depreciation, offset by net capital expenditures of $0.8 million. For additional detail, refer
to Note B — Significant Accounting Policies.

Deferred Outflows

2017 Compared to 2016 - Total deferred outflows of resources decreased $1.8 million or 2.9% due to the
scheduled amortization of excess of cost on refunding of debt of $6.2 million offset by increase of deferred
pension contribution of $4.4 million.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Total deferred outflows of resources decreased $4.0 million or 5.9% due to the
scheduled amortization of excess of cost on refunding of debt of $7.8 million offset by increase of deferred
pension contribution of $3.8 million.

Page 6



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

LIABILITIES

Long-Term Debt, net

2017 Compared to 2016 - Long-term debt, net decreased $40.0 million or 5.1% in 2017 as a result of scheduled
principal payments of $37.2 million, net premium amortization of $2.3 million, and a decrease for the net
transfer of the current portion of long-term debt of $2.2 million offset by a net increase of $1.7 million related
to the Geothermal Project 3 Revenue Refunding Bonds 2016 Series A that partially refunded the Geothermal
Project 3 Revenue Bonds 2009 Series A debt. For additional detail, refer to Note E — Projects and Related
Financing.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Long-term debt, net decreased $40.0 million or 4.9% in 2016 as a result of scheduled
principal payments of $35.6 million, net premium amortization of $2.7 million, and a net increase in the current
portion of long-term debt of $1.6 million. For additional detail, refer to Note E — Projects and Related
Financing.

The following table shows the Agency’s scheduled annual debt service principal payments through FY 2041
as of June 30, 2017:

$60,000 -
$50,000
$40,000

$30,000

Thousands

$20,000

$10,000

$- L S B B S i A

BN N (LGN L SN L RIPON S LN C G I LS

B Geothermal ™ Hydroelectric Capital Facilities ™ Lodi Energy Center

Page 7



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Current Liabilities

2017 Compared to 2016 - Current liabilities increased by $9.9 million or 10.8% in 2017. This is primarily
due to increases in accounts payable of $6.0 million, increases in operating reserves of $2.5 million and
increases in current portion of long-term debt of $2.2 million offset by decreases in accrued interest of $0.8
million.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Current liabilities decreased by $1.6 million or 1.7% in 2016. This is primarily due
to decreases in operating reserves of $3.6 million and decreases in accrued interest of $0.6 million offset by
increases in accounts payable of $1.0 million and increases in current portion of long-term debt of $1.6 million.

Other Non-Current Liabilities

2017 Compared to 2016 - Non-current liabilities increased by a net of $3.8 million or 1.8% in 2017. This was
primarily due to increased net pension liability of $6.8 million and increased operating reserves of $4.1 million
for budget collections offset by decreased interest rate swap liability of $7.1 million.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Non-current liabilities increased by a net of $14.6 million or 7.3% in 2016. This
was primarily due to increased net pension liability of $0.5 million, increased interest rate swap liability of
$5.7 million and increased operating reserves of $8.4 million for participants’ budget collections.

Deferred Inflows

2017 Compared to 2016 — Total deferred inflows of resources decreased $8.9 million or 10.4% due to the
recognition of PG&E-CPUC gas pipeline settlement of $4.3 million, deferral of certain revenues related to the
inventory and prepaids totaling $2.5 million and net pension expense amortization of $2.1 million.

2016 Compared to 2015 — Total deferred inflows of resources increased $3.9 million or 4.7% due to the
recognition of certain revenues related to the inventory and prepaids and higher than expected actuarial pension
earnings to be adjusted in future collections.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Agency is intended to operate on a not-for-profit basis. Therefore, net position primarily represents
differences between total revenues collected, using rates based on estimated operating expenses and debt
service, and the total actual expenses incurred. In subsequent periods of operation, excess collections (net of
encumbrances) may be refunded to participants or appropriated for other uses at the discretion of the Agency's
governing Board of Commissioners. In the event the Agency incurs a net expense at year-end, the balance
would be subject to recovery in participant rates under the terms of the related participating member
agreements. See Notes A, B and E to the Combined Financial Statements.

Operating Revenues
Operating revenues consist of Participants Revenue, California Independent System Operator (CAISO)
Energy Sales and Ancillary Services (A/S) Revenues and Other Revenues.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2017 were approximately $.4 million or 0.1%
lower than in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) lower other third party revenues
of $7.2 million due to reduced generation resulting in decreased energy sales into the CAISO market from

Page 8



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

generation plants, and (2) higher operating revenues from Agency participants of $6.8 million due to higher
collections for CAISO costs and energy purchases.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2016 were approximately $43.2 million or 10.2%
higher than in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) higher operating revenues
from Agency participants of $40.2 million or 14.0% due to higher collections for CAISO costs and energy
purchases, and (2) higher other third party revenues of $3.0 million due to higher CAISO energy sales.

OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCES

June 30, 2017
[ Particpant Revenve 72%
I CAISO Energy Sales 21%

une 30, 2016

. Participants Revenue 72%

June 30, 2015

[ Patticpant Revenue 68%
[ CAISO Energy Sales 28%

. CAISO Energy Sales 24%
| CAISO A/SRevenue 1%

. CAISO A/S Revenue 2%
Other Revenues 6%

Other Revenues 2%

CAISO A/S Revenue 1%

. Other Revenues 3%

Operating Expenses
2017 Compared to 2016 - Operating expenses were $418.3 million in FY 2017, a decrease of $3.2 million

from FY 2016. Purchased power expense was $10.2 million higher in 2017 mainly due to increased energy
purchased to fulfill energy requirements. Operations expense decreased $16.5 million primarily due to
decreased fuel usage for the LEC. The LEC generated 300.6 MWh in FY 2017 compared to 1,076.9 MWh in
FY 2016 due to economic reasons. Maintenance expenses were $5.7 million lower than in FY 2016 due to
decreased plant maintenance costs. Additionally, the increase in transmission costs of $5.4 million was due
to increased CAISO wheeling access charges during the year.

2016 Compared to 2015 - Operating expenses were $421.5 million in FY 2016, an increase of $42.8 million
from FY 2015. Purchased power expense was $29.5 million higher in 2016 mainly due to increased energy
purchased to fulfill energy requirements. Operations expense decreased $21.5 million primarily due to
decreased fuel usage for the LEC. The LEC generated 1,076.9 MWh in FY 2016 compared to 1,668.7 MWh
in FY 2015. Maintenance expenses were $1.0 million higher than in FY 2015 due to increased plant
maintenance costs. Additionally, the increase in transmission costs of $38.0 million was due to increased
CAISO wheeling access and transmission access charges during the year.

Page 9



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The following charts compare the components of Operating Expenses in fiscal years ended June 30, 2017,
2016, and 2015:

FY2017 FY2016 FY2015

5% 5% 6%

24% 30% 38%

56%

W Power Supply & Transmisson B O&M and Depr A&G

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

During 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Agency continued to implement strategies to further improve its competitive
position and financial flexibility. These actions included: (1) monitoring current financial market conditions
for financing or refinancing opportunities; and (2) providing rating agencies annual updates on all projects.

In September 2016, the Agency issued Geothermal Revenue Refunding Bond 2016 Series A ($17,530,000) to
refund a portion of Geothermal Revenue Bond 2009 Series A. The refunding was completed through the
issuance of $17,530,000 fixed rate tax exempt debt (2016 Series A) with a yield of 1.67% with varying
principal maturities ranging from $265,000 to $3,425,000 through July 1, 2024. The refunding is estimated
to have decreased project debt service by an estimated $1.69 million over the next 8 years, which results in an
estimated economic gain to the Agency of approximately $1.03 million.

Each year the Agency has either informal discussions or sometimes formal presentations with each of the
credit rating agencies in order to maintain ongoing communications. Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch
affirmed their current ratings on all projects in October 2014, December 2015, and May of 2016, respectively.

Ratings assigned to the Agency’s outstanding project bonds as of June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Debt Credit Ratings: Standard & Poor’s Fitch Moody’s
Geothermal A-, stable A+, stable Al, stable
Hydroelectric A+, stable A+, stable Al, stable
Capital Facilities A-, stable Not rated A2, stable
Lodi Energy Center (Issue One) A-, stable A, stable A2, stable
Lodi Energy Center (Issue Two) AAA, stable Not rated Aa2, stable

SUMMARY

The management of the Agency is responsible for preparing the information in this management’s discussion
and analysis, combined financial statements and notes to the combined financial statements. Financial
statements were prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and they fairly portray the Agency’s financial position and operating results. The notes to the
financial statements are an integral part of the basic financial statements and provide additional financial
information.

Page 10



Agency
Financials

Page 11



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

June 30,
2017 2016
ASSETS (in thousands)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,779 $ 49,642
Investments 24,825 22,209
Accounts receivable
Participants 997 690
Other 5,650 495
Interest receivable 171 120
Inventory and supplies 9,746 9,122
Prepaid expenses 1,285 1,088
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 88,453 83,366
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 80,265 56,669
Investments 141,042 154,757
Interest receivable 476 333
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 221,783 211,759
ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service 1,501,733 1,500,739
Less: accumulated depreciation (942,713) (911,976)
559,020 588,763
Construction work-in-progress 821 107
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 559,841 588,870
OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets 236,245 249,519
Unused vendor credits 24 55
TOTAL ASSETS 1,106,346 1,133,569
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt 48,106 54,348
Pension deferrals 13,506 9,093
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 61,612 63,441
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 1,167,958 $ 1,197,010

See notes to combined financial statements.
Page 12



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

June 30,
2017 2016
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 30,456 $ 24,473
Member advances 993 993
Operating reserves 20,024 17,535
Current portion of long-term debt 39,495 37,250
Accrued interest payable 10,582 11,402
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 101,550 91,653
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 64,589 57,774
Operating reserves and other deposits 138,665 134,577
Interest rate swap liability 15,173 22,261
Long-term debt, net 737,022 776,982
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 955,449 991,594
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,056,999 1,083,247
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 72,439 79,201
Pension deferrals 4,460 6,599
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 76,899 85,800
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (62,191) (62,193)
Restricted for:
Debt service 57,424 55,766
Other programs 845 10,516
Unrestricted 37,982 23,874
TOTAL NET POSITION 34,060 27,963
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,167,958 $ 1,197,010

See notes to combined financial statements.
Page 13



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Years Ended June 30,
2017 2016
(in thousands)
OPERATING REVENUES
Participants $ 334,913 $ 328,101
Other Third-Party 131,825 139,001
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 466,738 467,102
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power 192,806 182,563
Operations 52,558 69,075
Transmission 103,544 98,170
Depreciation 30,749 30,645
Maintenance 16,970 22,675
Administrative and general 21,680 18,380
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 418,307 421,508
NET OPERATING REVENUES 48,431 45,594
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense (34,550) (48,454)
Interest income 60 3,538
Other 12,929 6,056
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES (21,561) (38,860)
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (13,274) (140)
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS (7,499) (8,622)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 6,097 (2,028)
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 27,963 29,991
NET POSITION, End of year $ 34,060 $ 27,963

See notes to combined financial statements

Page 14



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Years Ended June 30,

2017 2016

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Received from participants $ 327,844 $ 329,651
Received from others 135,318 133,087
Payments for employee services (35,930) (33,547)
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (348,243) (346,293)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 78,989 82,898
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 113,772 178,073
Interest received on cash and investments 2,590 2,119
Purchase of investments (105,399) (182,741)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 10,963 (2,549)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of electric plant (1,720) (808)
Interest paid on long-term debt (36,390) (38,231)
Principal repayment on long-term debt (37,250) (35,615)
Proceeds from bond issues 15,416 -
Payments to refund debt (15,705) -
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (75,649) (74,654)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Other proceeds 12,929 6,059
Refunds to participants (7,499) (8,622)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,430 (2,563)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19,733 3,132
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 106,311 103,179
End of year $ 126,044 $ 106,311

See notes to combined financial statements
Page 15



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW-Continued

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Years Ended June 30,
2017 2016
(in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES TO

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 48,431 $ 45,594
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues

to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 30,749 30,645

79,180 76,239

CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN

Accounts receivable (5,462) 966
Inventory, prepaid expense, and unused vendor credits (790) (661)
Operating reserves and other deposits 6,577 4,742
Regulatory credits (6,762) 2,217
Accounts payable 5,983 1,011
Net pension liability and related amounts 263 (1,616)

NET CASH FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 78,989 $ 82,898

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents - current assets $ 45,779 $ 49,642
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets 80,265 56,669
End of year $ 126,044 $ 106,311
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Future recoverable/(refundable) costs $ (13,279 $ (140)
Amortization (6,069) (5,062)
Hydro swap change in fair value 7,089 (5,727)
Gain/loss on investments @) -

See notes to combined financial statements
Page 16



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE A -- ORGANIZATION

The Agency Northern California Power Agency (Agency) was formed in 1968 as a joint powers agency of the
State of California. The membership consists of twelve cities with publicly-owned electric utility distribution
systems, one port authority, a transit authority, one public utility district, and one associate member. The
Agency is generally empowered to purchase, generate, transmit, distribute, and sell electrical energy.
Members participate in the projects of the Agency on an elective basis.

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate Special District Entities should
be delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the Agency
(“the Associated Power Corporations”). The Associated Power Corporations, Northern California Municipal
Power Corporations Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to construct, operate and
manage their respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return for financing the costs of
acquisition and construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the plants. See Note E —
Projects and Related Financing.

The Agency is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission
is responsible for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the
direction of the General Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative,
operating, and planning services for the Agency.

NOTE B -- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Combination For accounting purposes, the Agency is a special-
purpose governmental entity that is engaged in a business-type activity, principally as a supplier of wholesale
electricity and transmission to its member participants. As such, the Agency’s financial statements are
presented as an enterprise type fund.

The records of the Agency and its Associated Power Corporations are maintained substantially in accordance
with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Uniform System of Accounts. Accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America are applied by the Agency in conformance with
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The combined financial
statements encompass the Agency and Associated Power Corporations on an accrual accounting basis. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated from the combined amounts reported.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include all debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of 90 days or less, all investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and cash
maintained in interest-bearing depository accounts, which are fully insured or collateralized in accordance with
state law. Cash balances may be invested in either overnight repurchase agreements, which are fully
collateralized by U.S. Government Securities, or in money market funds invested in short-term U.S. Treasury
Securities. The Agency commingles operating cash for investment purposes only. Separate detailed
accounting records are maintained for each account's related investments. All cash of the Agency is held by
either the Agency’s custodian or its primary bank and revenue bond trustee.

Custodial credit risk for cash deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Agency will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending
on specific types of eligible securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent

Page 17



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

having a fair value of 110% to 150% of the Agency’s cash on deposit. All of the Agency’s deposits are either
insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities held
in the trust department of the financial institutions.

Investments The Agency’s investments are reported at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses
are included in interest income in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

Accounts Receivable Accounts Receivable consists primarily of amounts due from participants and other
governmental entities related to sales of energy and transmission. Amounts are deemed to be collectible and
as such, no allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded.

Inventory and Supplies Inventory and supplies consist primarily of spare parts for the maintenance of plant
assets and are stated at average cost.

Restricted Assets Cash and cash equivalents, investments and related accrued interest, which are restricted
under terms of certain agreements, trust indentures or Commission actions limiting the use of such funds, are
included in restricted assets.

Electric Plant Electric plant in service is recorded at historical cost. The cost of additions, renewals and
betterments is capitalized; repairs and minor replacements are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The
original cost of property retired, net of removal and salvage costs, is charged to accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. The provision for depreciation was approximately 2.0% of the average electric plant in service for the
Agency during both 2017 and 2016. Depreciation is calculated using the following estimated lives:

Generation and Transmission 25 to 42 years
General Plant 5 to 25 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Transportation Equipment 5 years
Computer and Electronic Equipment 5 years

A summary of changes in electric plant for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30,2016 Adjustments Additions Deletions  June 30, 2017

(in thousands)

Structures and Leasehold Improvements $§ 319,127  § 60 $ 203 $ (12) $ 319,378
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways 249,339 ) - - 249,338
Equipment 757,727 (331 630 - 758,026
Furniture and Fixtures 2,601 271 174 - 3,046
1,328,794 ) 1,007 (12) 1,329,788

Accumulated Depreciation (911,976) - (30,749) 12 (942,713)
416,818 (29,742) - 387,075
Construction Work-In-Progress 107 - 714 - 821
Land and Land Rights 171,945 - - - 171,945
Electric Plant, Net $§ 588870 § (1) $ (29,028 $ - $ 559,841

Page 18



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

A summary of changes in electric plant for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
(in thousands)

Structures and Leasehold Improvements $ 319,069 $ 58 $ - $ 319,127
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways 249,339 - - 249,339
Equipment 757,310 898 (481) 757,727
Furniture and Fixtures 2,413 188 - 2,601
1,328,131 1,144 (481) 1,328,794

Accumulated Depreciation (881,412) (30,645) 81 (911,976)
446,719 (29,501) (400) 416,818
Construction Work-In-Progress 44 63 - 107
Land and Land Rights 171,945 - - 171,945
Electric Plant, Net $ 618,708 $ (29,438) $ (400) $ 588,870

Construction Work-In-Progress Construction work-in-progress (CWIP) includes the capitalized cost of
land, material, equipment, labor, interest (net of interest income), certain other financing costs incurred to
facilitate the projects and an allocated portion of general and administrative expenses related to the
development of electric plant. In addition, CWIP ultimately includes costs incurred during the test and start-
up phase of projects prior to commencement of commercial operations.

Regulatory Assets/Credits In accordance with GASB No. 62, the Agency has deferred certain items of
expense and revenue that otherwise would have been charged to operations because it is probable that such
items will be recovered in future years’ operations. For items related to Net Pension Liability, the Agency
expects to recover these items through participant collections as determined by CalPERS actuarial calculation.
For other regulatory items, the Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections over the
term of the related debt obligations it has issued. On an ongoing basis, the Agency reviews its operations to
determine the continued applicability of these deferrals under GASB No. 62.

The items of expense that have been deferred are net pension liability and those originally paid from bond
proceeds, including depreciation, certain bond amortizations, and interest paid from bond proceeds. These
amounts are recorded to future recoverable amounts. Revenues used to acquire electric plant have also been
deferred to future years. As of June 30,2017 and 2016, the Agency had accumulated regulatory assets, net of
regulatory credits, of approximately $163,806,000 and $170,318,000, respectively.

Debt Related Costs Debt issuance costs are expensed as incurred. Excess costs on refunding of bonds are
considered deferred outflows of resources as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 65 and amortized over the
life of the refunding bonds, or the life of the refunded bonds, whichever is shorter. Amortization is computed
using the effective interest method and included in interest expense.

Compensated Absences Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued as the obligation is incurred.
Compensated absences are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Page 19



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Pensions For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Long-Term Debt Long-term debt is stated net of unamortized discounts and premiums. Discounts and
premiums are amortized over the term of the related obligation using the effective interest method.
Amortization of debt discounts and premiums is included in total interest expense for the period. See Note E
- Projects and Related Financing.

Operating Reserves The Agency has established various funded operating reserves, in accordance with
various bond indentures, project agreements, and prudent utility practice, for anticipated periodic operating
costs and related liabilities including, but not limited to, scheduled maintenance other than ordinary repairs
and replacements. Certain amounts funded each year are charged to operating expense because the rates
established by the Agency for power sales to its members include these costs on a prospective basis. Changes
to operating reserve levels are periodically evaluated during the annual budgeting process. A non-project
specific, individual participant controlled, general operating reserve is also maintained for participating
Agency members.

Rates Power sales to participants for their resale include both power generated by operating plants and power
purchased from outside sources. Collection rates for power sales are designed to recover costs that include
budgeted annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts for operating reserves or rate
stabilization may be included in collection rates under the terms of bond indentures. During fiscal years 2017
and 2016, no amounts were specifically collected for rate stabilization.

The Agency’s collection rates for electric service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) or FERC. Rather, the Agency’s rates are established annually in
connection with its budget, which is approved by its governing Commission.

Power, Transmission and Fuel Forward Transactions In the normal course of its business, the Agency is
required to manage loads, resources, and energy price risk on behalf of its members. Consequently, the Agency
buys and sells power, transmission, and fuel in wholesale markets as required. The Agency does not enter into
such agreements solely for trading purposes. All such transactions are normal purchases and sales subject to
settlement at the agreed to contract prices for quantities delivered. While authorized to transact forward
purchase contracts for terms of up to five years, forward contract purchases at fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
were for periods not greater than four years duration beyond the current fiscal year. In the event of default,
undelivered transactions are required to be marked-to-market subject to the following limitations.
If the Agency, as buyer, is the defaulting entity, the Agency’s termination settlement amount is capped at the
agreed to contract cost for all future undelivered commodities. If the selling counterparty is the defaulting
entity, the seller’s termination settlement is not capped for all future undelivered commodities. The defaulting
entity is also subject to resultant transmission charges, brokerage fees, attorney fees, and all other reasonable
expenses. See Note H - Commitments and Contingencies, Power Purchase Contracts.

Page 20



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Fair Values of Financial Instruments The following methods and assumptions were used by the Agency
in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The carrying amount reported in the statements of net position for cash and
cash equivalents approximates its fair value.

Investments - The fair values for investments are based on quoted market prices. See Note C - Investments.

Swaps - The fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment, the specific terms
and conditions of a given transaction, and any upfront payments that were received. All fair values were
estimated using the zero-coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required
by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market’s best estimate
of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current
yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of each future net settlement on the
swaps. While the current net mark-to-market values are negative, this valuation would be realized only if
the swaps were terminated at the valuation date.

Net Position The Agency classifies its net position into three components; invested in capital assets, restricted,
and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
reduced by outstanding debt balances, net of unspent bond proceeds.

Restricted - This component consists of net position with constraints placed on their use. Constraints include
those imposed by debt indentures and other agreements; grants, laws and regulations of other governments
or by the Agency’s governing Board of Commissioners.

Unrestricted - This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment
in capital assets” or “restricted”.

The Agency and the Associated Power Corporations are intended to operate on a not-for-profit basis.
Therefore, any balance of net position represents differences between total revenues collected, using collection
rates based on estimated operating expenses and debt service, and the total actual expenses incurred. In
subsequent periods of operation, excess collections (net of encumbrances) that the participating members do
not direct be held by or released to the Agency, are refunded to the participating members. Estimated
encumbrances at June 30, 2017 and 2016 were $3,257,000 and $2,999,000, respectively. In the event the
Agency incurs a negative net position balance, the balance would be subject to recovery in collection rates
under the terms of the related take-or-pay member agreements. See Note E — Projects And Related Financing.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources The statement of financial position includes a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred Outflows of Resources consist of excess cost
on refunding of debt and pension deferrals. Pension contributions made in the current year are reported as
deferred outflows of resources per GASB No. 71 as the CalPERS’ valuation measurement date is June 30,
2016, those contributions will be expensed in fiscal year 2018.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as revenue at that time. The Agency’s
deferred inflows of resources are comprised of regulatory credits intended to offset the effects of the collection
rate process and pension deferrals projected in the CalPERS actuarial report.

Page 21



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value

Measurement and Application, effective for financial statements for years beginning after June 15, 2015. This
statement clarifies the definition of fair value, establishes general principles for measuring fair value, provides
additional fair value application guidance, and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. This
statement establishes a three-level hierarchy to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Disclosure
is required to be made about fair value measurements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation
techniques.

Accounting Pronouncements Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The objective of the Statement is to replace
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In addition, the Statement requires governments to report a
liability on the face of the financial statements for the Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions
(OPEB) provided and requires governments to present more extensive note disclosures and required
supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities. The Statement is effective for the periods
beginning after June 15, 2017, or the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The Agency has not determined the effect of
the statement.

GASB Statement No. 83 — In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. The objective of the Statement is to address accounting and reporting for certain asset
retirement obligations (AROs) This Statement requires governments to recognize a liability for legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets. The Statement
is effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2018, or the 2018-2019 fiscal year. The Agency has
not determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 84 — In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The
objective of the Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The Statement is
effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2018, or the 2019-2020 fiscal year. The Agency has
not determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 86 — In May 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment
Issues. The objective of the Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for
in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary
assets are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. The Statement is
effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2017, or the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The Agency has not
determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 87 — In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the
Statement is to recognize in the Financial Statements certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The Statement is effective for the periods
beginning after December 15, 2019, or the 2020-2021 fiscal year. The Agency has not determined the
effect of the statement.

Page 22



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform
to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no material effect on net position.

NOTE C -- INVESTMENTS

The Agency is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies and
instrumentalities, in certificates of deposit, commercial paper, banker’s acceptances, repurchase agreements,
passbook savings account demand deposits, municipal bonds, the State Treasurer's LAIF pool, and in other
instruments authorized by applicable sections of the Government Code of the State of California. The
Agency’s investments are stated at fair value.

Investments at June 30, 2017 Witd. Avg
Carrying Fair Maturity
Description Value Value (In years)
(in thousands)
U.S. Agencies $ 167,404 $ 165,867 2.79
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $§ 167,404 $ 165,867
Investments at June 30, 2016 Witd. Avg
Carrying Fair Maturity
Description Value Value (In years)
(in thousands)
U.S. Agencies $ 169,717 $ 176,966 2.75
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 169,717 $ 176,966

The Agency’s investment policy requires investments that assure safety of the principal, liquidity to meet
specific obligations of the Agency when due, and investment quality all in compliance with California State
law and the Agency’s revenue bond indentures. Generally, operating and reserve funds investment maturities
are limited to one and five years, except for Geothermal Decommissioning Reserve and debt service reserve
funds, which are allowed maturities up to ten years and fifteen years, respectively. All U.S. Government and
U.S. Government Agency securities held by the Agency are either in effect or actually AA rated.

All securities owned by, or held on behalf of, the Agency are held by either the Agency’s custodian, Union
Bank of California, N.A., or its revenue bond trustee, U.S. Bank Trust, N.A.

Page 23



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency’s investment policy includes restrictions for investments relating to maximum amounts invested
as a percentage of the portfolio and with a single issuer, maximum maturities, and minimum credit ratings.

Credit Risk To mitigate the risk that an issuer will not fulfill its obligation to the investment, the Agency
limits investments to those rated, at a minimum, A or equivalent for long/medium term notes by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization.

Custodial Credit Risk This is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the
Agency’s deposits may not be returned or the Agency will not be able to recover its deposits, investments, or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Agency’s policy mitigates this risk by
requiring transactions with approved institutions and firms that have one or more of the following attributes:
recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank; regional broker/dealer
headquartered in the State of California; national or state chartered bank that must be a member of the FDIC;
direct issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency; brokers and dealers qualify under SEC Rule
15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
(FINRA) and must be licensed to do business in the State of California. Capitalization, credit worthiness,
experience, reference checks and services offered criteria are evaluated when selecting a custodian.

Concentration of Credit Risk This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s investment in
a single issuer. The investment policy of the Agency contains no limitations on the amount that may be
invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one
issuer (other than mutual funds and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total Agency
investments include the following at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016.

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30, 2017
Reported Percentage
Issuer: Investment Type Amount of Portfolio

Federal National Mortgage Association  Federal Agency  § 59,751,517 36.0%

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency 40,633,931 24.5%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency 30,655,349 18.5%
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency 34,816,372 21.0%

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30, 2016
Reported Percentage
Issuer: Investment Type Amount of Portfolio

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency  $ 65,301,760 36.9%

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency 43,006,478 24.3%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency 53,394,472 30.2%
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency 10,263,961 5.8%

Page 24



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. The Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk by following a hold-to-
maturity investment approach, purchasing a combination of shorter and longer term investments, and by timing
cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly
over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

NOTE D -- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective for
financial statements for years beginning after June 15, 2015. This statement clarifies the definition of fair
value, establishes general principles for measuring fair value, provides additional fair value application
guidance, and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements.

In accordance with GASB 72, Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price). Fair
value is a market-based measurement for a particular asset or liability based on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Valuation inputs are assumptions that market participants use in pricing an asset or liability. The hierarchy of
inputs used to generate the valuation is classified into three different Levels:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

* Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active; quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for an asset, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs from the asset or liability where there is very little market
activity and they should be used only when relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are unavailable.

The Agency’s fair value measurements are performed on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core
part of the Agency’s mission, the Agency determines that the disclosures related to these investments only
need to be disaggregated by major type. The fair value of swaps reflect the nonperformance risk of their client
counterparty relating to that liability, and the nonperformance risk of the bank counterparty relating to that
asset.

Fair Value of Investments under GASB 72 — Debt and other securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Level 2 Securities are valued
using a multi-dimensional relationship model or matrix pricing model utilizing market data including, but not
limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, and broker/dealer quotes.

Fair Value of Swaps under GASB 72 — Fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate
environment and the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction. The valuations of derivatives
transactions provided are indicative values based on mid-market levels as of June 30, 2017. These valuations
do not represent the actual terms at which new transactions could be entered into or the actual terms at which
existing transactions could be liquidated. The valuations provided are derived from proprietary models based
upon well-recognized financial principles and reasonable estimates about relevant future market conditions for
interest rate swaps. The observability of inputs used to perform the measurement results in the swap fair values
being categorized as Level 2.

Page 25



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

Investments by fair value level
Debt Securities
U.S governmental securities
U.S agencies

Total debt securities

Total investments by fair
value level

Derivative Instruments by fair
value level
Swap liability instruments

Total Derivative
Instruments by fair value
level

Fair Value Using
(thousands)
Quoted prices in
active markets  Significant other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
June 30, 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

$ - 95 - 3 - 3 -
165,867 34,894 130,973 -
165,867 34,894 130,973 -

$ 165,867 § 34894 $ 130,973 § -
$ (15,173)  $ - 3 (15,173) § -
$ (15,173) $ - $ (15,173)  $ -

Page 26



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency had the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2016:

Fair Value Using
(thousands)

Quoted prices in

active markets  Significant other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
June 30, 2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level
Debt Securities
U.S governmental securities $ - $ - $ - $ -
U.S agencies 176,966 176,966 - -
Total debt securities 176,966 176,966 - -
Total investments by fair
value level $ 176,966 $ 176,966 $ - $ -
Derivative Instruments by fair
value level
Swap liability instruments $ (22,261) $ - $  (22,261) $ -
Total Derivative
Instruments by fair value
level $ (22,261) $ - $ (22,261) $ -

Page 27



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE E -- PROJECTS AND RELATED FINANCING

Financing Programs The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually
financed by project revenue bonds that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments,
revenues, and proceeds associated with its interest in each project. Each project participant has agreed to pay
its proportionate share of debt service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the suspension,
interruption, interference, reduction or curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that is, the take-
or-pay member agreements).

Certain of the revenue bonds are additionally supported by municipal bond insurance credit enhancements.

Balance Balance Current
July 1,2016  Additions Retirements June 30, 2017 Portion
Geothermal Project (in thousands)
2009 Series A - Original Issue Amount $35,610
Serial, 4.00-5.50% through 2025 $25,645 $ - $ 18,005 $7,640  $2,420
2012 Series A - Original Issue Amount $12,910
Term, 2.289% due 2023 8,875 - 1,280 7,595 1,310
2016 Series A - Original Issue Amount $17,530
Term, 1.670% due 2024 - 17,530 - 17,530 265
Add: Unamortized Premium 74 - 74 - -
Total Geothermal Project 34,594 17,530 19,359 32,765 3,995
Hydroelectric Project - Original Issue Amount $195,610
1992 Refunding Series A
Term, 6.30% due 2019 24,610 - 1,015 23,595 11,440
2008 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $85,160
Term, adjustable rate-weekly
reset, due 2033 85,160 - - 85,160 -
2008 Refunding Series B (Taxable) - Original Issue Amount
$3,165
Term, adjustable rate-weekly reset, due 2021 1,830 - 290 1,540 305
2008 Refunding Series C - Original Issue Amount $128,005
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2025 88,130 - 11,000 77,130 -
2010 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $101,260
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2024 80,360 - 7,745 72,615 9,640
2012 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $76,665
Serial, 5.00% through 2033 76,665 - - 76,665 -
2012 Refunding Series B - Original Issue Amount $7,120
Serial, 4.32% through 2025 7,120 - - 7,120 -
Add: Unamortized Premium, net 11,995 - 1,522 10,473 -
Total Hydroelectric Project 375,870 - 21,572 354,298 21,385
Capital Facilities Project - Original Issue Amount $55,120
2010 Refunding Series A
Serial, 2.00-5.25% through 2026 41,070 - 3,670 37,400 3,760
Add: Unamortized Premium 957 - 194 763 -
Total Capital Facilities Project 42,027 - 3,864 38,163 3,760

Page 28



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Balance July 1, Balance Current
2016 Additions  Retirements June 30,2017  Portion
(in thousands)
Lodi Energy Center, Issue One
2010 Series A - Original Issue Amount $78,330
Serial, 3.00-5.00% through 2020 $23,120 $ - $ 5365 $ 17,755 § 5,630
Term, 5.00% due 2025 36,020 - - 36,020 -
2010 Series B (Federally Taxable - Direct Payment Build
America Bonds) - Original Issue Amount $176,625
Term, 7.311% due 2040 176,625 - - 176,625 -
Lodi Energy Center, Issue Two
2010 Series A - Original Issue Amount $30,540
Serial, 3.00-5.00% through 2019 14,270 - 4,585 9,685 4,725
2010 Series B (Federally Taxable - Direct Payment Build
America Bonds) - Original Issue Amount $110,225
Term, 4.63% due 2020 5,210 - - 5,210 -
Term, 5.679% due 2035 105,015 - - 105,015 -
Add: Unamortized Premium 1,481 - 500 981 -
Total Lodi Energy Center Project 361,741 - 10,450 351,291 10,355
Total Long-Term Debt, Net $ 814,232 $17,530 $ 55,245 $ 776,517 $ 39,495

Debt service requirements for each of the next five years and in five-year cumulative increments thereafter as

of June 30, 2017:

Principal Interest Total

(in thousands)
2018 $ 39,495  $ 41,783 $ 81,278
2019 41,730 39,812 81,542
2020 42,200 37,632 79,832
2021 44,275 35,598 79,873
2022 45,950 33,507 79,457
2023-2027 215,290 133,055 348,345
2028-2032 176,220 83,135 259,355
2033-2037 113,360 35,160 148,520
2038-2040 45,780 6,798 52,578
Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 12,217 - 12,217
$ 776,517  $ 446,480 $ 1,222,997

Interest includes interest requirements for fixed rate debt at their stated rate and variable rate debt covered by

interest rate swaps at their fixed swap rate.

Page 29



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Redemption Provisions As set forth in the bond indentures, the term bonds are subject to redemption prior to
maturity in varying amounts at specific dates. At the option of the Agency, the bonds are also subject to early
redemption at specific redemption prices and dates.

Defeased Debt Various bond refundings were undertaken to defease debt and realize future debt service
savings. Debt was defeased by using the proceeds of the refunding issues and other available monies to
irrevocably place in trust cash and U.S. Government Securities, which together with interest earned thereon,
will be sufficient to pay both the interest and the appropriate maturity or redemption value of the refunded
bonds as required.

Accordingly, these defeased debt issues have been considered extinguished for financial reporting purposes.
At year-end, the following defeased debt remained outstanding:

2017 2016
(in thousands)
Hydroelectric: Project No. One, 1985 Series A $ 12,150 $ 12,150
Project No. One, 1986 Series A 31,360 36,960
Total Defeased Debt Outstanding $ 43,510 $ 49,110

Geothermal Project In addition to a federal geothermal leasehold, steam wells, gathering system and related
facilities, the project consists of two electric generating stations (Plant 1 and Plant 2) with combined 165 MW
(nameplate rating) turbine generator units utilizing low temperature geothermal steam; associated electrical,
mechanical and control facilities; a heat dissipation system; a steam gathering system, a transmission tap-line,
and other related facilities. Geothermal steam for the project is derived from the geothermal property, which
includes well pads, access roads, steam wells and re-injection wells.

Hyvdroelectric Project The Agency contracted to finance, manage, construct, and operate Hydroelectric
Project Number One for the licensed owner, Calaveras County Water District. In exchange, the Agency has
the right to the electric output of the project for 50 years from February 1982. The Agency also has an option
to purchase power from the project in excess of the District's requirements for the subsequent
50 years, subject to regulatory approval.

As part of a refinancing plan in November 2004, the Agency entered into two forward starting interest rate
swaps in an initial notional amount of $85,160,000 and $1,574,000. Payments under the swap agreements
with Citigroup Financial Products, Inc. began on April 2, 2008. To complete the refinancing transaction and
realize the debt service savings under the 2004 swap agreement, on April 2, 2008 the Agency completed a
bond refunding of certain maturities of the 1998 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A bonds totaling $85,870,000
maturing in 2023 to 2032. These fixed rate bonds were refinanced through the issuance of
tax-exempt 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) bonds and taxable 2008 Hydroelectric
Refunding Series B ($3,165,000) bonds. Both issues are variable interest rate bonds bearing interest at weekly
interest rates, payable semi-annually on July 1 and January 1 each year. To support this financing, the Agency
entered into two irrevocable direct pay letter of credit agreements with Citibank N.A. The Citibank letters of
credit were for a period of three years and were scheduled to expire on September 27, 2014. On September
10, 2014, the irrevocable letter of credit agreements with Citibank N.A. were terminated. Substitution letters
of credit with the Bank of Montreal were issued the same day. The Bank of Montreal letters of credit are for
a period of five years and expire on September 9, 2019.

Page 30



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The payment of principal and interest on these issues are not covered by any financial guaranty insurance
policies. This 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding and the associated interest rate swaps are estimated to have
reduced project debt service by $11.8 million over the next 24 years providing the Agency with an estimated
economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of

approximately $5.9 million.

The Agency has entered into two separate pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to produce savings
or to result in lower costs over the life of each transaction than what the Agency would have paid using fixed-
rate debt. While these derivative instruments carry additional risks, the Agency’s swap policy and favorable

negotiations have helped to reduce such risks.

Associated Interest Rate Swaps
starting April 2. 2008

Counterparty to Interest Rate Swap

Notional Value of Interest Rate Swap
Fair Value--Due from (to) Counterparty

Credit Downgrade Required Collateral Posting:

For Counterparty, Fair Value Above

If S&P or Moody’s Credit Rating falls to

For Agency (Credit of Agency’s Insurer
National Public Finance Guarantee
formerly MBIA and NCPA credit),
Fair Value Above

If S&P or Moody’s Credit Rating falls to

Termination Date

Payments to (from) Counterparty

Variable Payments (from) to Counterparty
Net Interest Rate Swap Payments
Variable-Rate Bond Payments

Effective Interest Rate on Bonds

2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds
Forward Starting Swaps

Series A Series B (Taxable)
Citigroup Citigroup
Financial Financial
Products Inc. Products Inc.
$ 85,160,000 $1,142,014
$(15,394,295) $ 221,580
$10 million $10 million

A-/A3 and BBB-/Baa3 A-/A3 and BBB-/Baa3

$10 million $10 million
A+/A1 A+/A1
July 1, 2032 July 1,2032
Terms Rates Terms Rates

Fixed 3.819 % Fixed (5.291)%
54% LIBOR+.54%* (0.936)%  100% of LIBOR* 0.727 %
2.883 % (4.564)%
SIFMA ** 0.640 % SIFMA** 1.072 %
3.523 % (3.492) %

Average to Date: *1-Month London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
**Securities Industry and Financial Market Association Municipal Swap Index (formerly the Bond
Market Association Municipal Swap Index)

Page 31



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The total fair value of outstanding swap instruments was a net liability of $15,173,000 and $22,261,000 at
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, respectively. These amounts are reported as a non-current liability. The
interest rate swaps beginning in FY 2013 are both ineffective hedges and considered investment derivative
instruments. The change in fair value of $7.1 million is recorded as interest expense in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The net settlement payments of interest on these investment
derivative instruments total $2.5 million and $2.6 million, which is recorded as interest expense in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for FY 2017 and FY 2016, respectively. The
value of the swaps noted above reflects the estimated fair value of the swaps at June 30, 2017 as determined
by the Agency’s financial advisor. The fair value of the swaps will change due to notional amount,
amortizations, and interest rate changes.

The following swap agreement risks are common to all the interest rate swaps. The interest rate swaps expose
the Agency to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and SIFMA converge, changing the synthetic
rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the expected cost savings
of the swap may not be realized. The Agency is exposed to interest rate risk on its pay-fixed, receive variable
interest rate swaps. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair values
of the Agency’s financial instruments or cash flows. As the LIBOR or SIFMA swap index decreases, the
Agency’s net payment on swaps increases. In addition, the Agency is exposed to interest rate risk if the
counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is terminated. The Agency is also exposed to market access
risk, the risk that it will not be able to enter credit markets or that credit will become more costly. The Agency’s
financial rating is tied to the credit strength of the major participants of the specific project for which each
financial instrument is issued. The Agency is also exposed to market access risks caused by disruptions in the
municipal bond market.

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the swap counterparties are required by the agreement to post collateral
should the fair value exceed certain thresholds as shown above. At June 30, 2017, credit ratings of the
counterparties to the swaps were as follows:

Swap Counterparty & Agency’s Insurer Standard & Poor’s Moody’s
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A+ Al

National Public Finance Guarantee formerly A A2
MBIA (the Agency’s insurer)

The swaps utilized the International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA) Master Agreement, which includes
standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. However, an additional provision under
the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement allows the swap to be terminated by the Agency if the
counterparty’s credit rating falls below A- by Standard & Poor’s or A3 by Moody’s. If a swap is terminated,
the applicable bonds would no longer carry a synthetic fixed interest rate. In addition, if a swap has a negative
fair value at the time of an early termination, the Agency would be liable to the counterparty for a payment
equal to the swap’s fair value.

Page 32



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Combustion Turbine Project The original project consisted of five combustion turbine units, each nominally
rated at approximately 25 megawatts. Concurrent with the final project bond maturity, two units located in
Roseville were acquired by an Agency member. The remaining project consists of two units in Alameda and
one in Lodi. The project provides capacity during peak load periods and emergency capacity reserves. Excess
capacity and energy from the project are also sold to other entities from time to time.

Capital Facilities Project The project consists of one 49.9 megawatt natural gas-fired steam injected
combustion turbine generator unit located in Lodi, California. Wastewater is reclaimed from the City of Lodi’s
White Slough water pollution control facility, processed to eliminate contaminants, and used in the turbine to
produce steam for power enhancement and emissions control.

Lodi Energy Center (LEC) The project is a 296 MW base load, combined cycle, natural gas-fired,
combustion turbine generating station (one gas turbine and one steam turbine) located in Lodi, California, next
to the Capital Facilities Project discussed above. Pursuant to the Lodi Energy Center Power Sales Agreement,
the Agency agreed to operate the LEC and has sold all of the capacity and energy of the LEC to thirteen
participants (including four non-members) in accordance with their respective Generation Entitlement Shares
(GES). Each participant has agreed to unconditionally provide for its share of the operation and maintenance
expenses and all capital improvements based on its GES. The LEC will be operated and maintained by the
Agency under the direction of the LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement among the Agency
and the LEC Project Participants.

Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One provided financing for 11 project participants with 55.7857%
GES. Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two provided financing for the California Department of
Water Resources 33.5% GES. The Modesto Irrigation District elected to provide its own financing for its
10.7143% GES of the costs of construction of the project. Modesto Irrigation District is not liable for any
Agency debt service obligations for the project.

The Issue One Series B and the Issue Two Series B bonds were issued as Taxable Subsidy Bonds constituting
Build America Bonds (BABs) for the purposes of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The
Act provides for a direct payment to the Agency from the federal government equal to 35% of the interest
costs. The direct payment was reduced by 6.9% and 6.8% in 2017 and 2016, respectively, due to federal
government budget sequestration. Such payments may continue to be affected by sequestrations.

Page 33



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE F -- RETIREMENT PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions The Agency provides a defined benefit retirement plan to all eligible employees under the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit
provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. In 2012, the Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) become law that implemented new benefit formulas and final
compensation period, as well as new contribution requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1,
2013 who meet the definition of new member under PEPRA. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2013, and
those new employees not meeting the PEPRA definition of new member, are considered classic members.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 full-time years 5 full-time years
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 60 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.5% 2.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 6.50%
Required employer contribution rates 30.697% 30.697%

Employees Covered — At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms
for each Plan:

2017 2016
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 119 118
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 27 26
Active employees 150 152
Total 296 6

|

Page 34



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Contributions Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are
determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the
measurement period ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (the measurement dates), the average active employee
contribution rates were 7.866% and 7.881%, respectively, of annual pay and the Agency’s contribution rates
are 29.474% and 28.234%, respectively, of annual payroll. Employer contribution rates may change if plan
contracts are amended.

Net Pension Liability The Agency’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability,
less the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured at year end,
using annual actuarial valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to current year end, using
standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net
pension liability is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liabilities as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

2017 2016

Valuation Date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65% 7.65%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase 3.2%-12.2% (1) 3.2%-12.2% (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (2) 7.5% (2)

Mortality 3) 3)

(1) Depending on age and service.

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

(3) Derived using CalPERS' specific membership data with projected on-going mortality
improvement using Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries.

Page 35



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALJFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the plan,
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore,
the current 7.65% discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long term expected discount rate of 7.65% will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement
Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing
Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50% investment return assumption used in this
accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis
points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65%. For the year ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, using this lower discount rate resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and
net pension liability. This difference was deemed immaterial to the agent multiple-employer plan.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management
(ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. On December 21 2016, CalPERS
announced to employers that the CalPERS Board of Administration voted to lower the discount rate
assumption, net of administrative expenses, from 7.5% to 7.0% over a three year period as follows:

e FY2017-2018: 7.375%
o FY2018-2019: 7.25%
e FY 2019-2020: 7.00 %

There will be a one year implementation delay for school districts and public agencies deferring the first rate
discount decrease to FY 2018-2019. Lowering the discount rate, also known as the assumed rate of return,
means employers that contract with CalPERS to administer their pension plans will see increases in their
normal costs and unfunded actuarial liabilities. CalPERS has estimated that the three-year reduction of the
discount rate will result in average employer rate increases of about 1 percent to 3 percent of normal cost as a
percent of payroll in addition to increases to the current unfunded accrued liability payments.

To mitigate the growing unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding Plan for
NCPA’s Employee Pension Program which includes accelerated funding of the unfunded liability over a
15 year period. The plan includes: 1) a goal for minimum funding level of 80% within 15 years and annual
Commission confirmation of the continued funding of the annual required employer contribution at 100%;
2) shorten the amortization period of the liability to 15 years; 3) research other ways to limit the pension
liability; and 4) annual Finance Committee review in conjunction with annual CalPERS actuarial valuations
and recommendation to the Commission as needed.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block

method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

Page 36



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were
developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as
scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using
a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present
value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10! Years 11+
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.00% -0.55% -1.05%

1 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
2 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Page 37



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The change in the Net Pension Liability for each Plan follows:

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 135,846,223 $ 78,072,198 $ 57,774,025
Service cost incurred 3,152,017 - 3,152,017
Interest on total pension liability 10,328,232 - 10,328,232
Differences between actual and expected
experience 581,539 - 581,539
Change in assumption - - -
Change in benefits - - -
Contributions - employer - 5,406,928 (5,406,928)
Contributions - employee - 1,453,722 (1,453,722)
Projected earnings on investments - 434,144 (434,144)
Differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments - - -
Benefit payments (5,988,393) (5,988,393) -
Administrative expense - (47,581) 47,581

Net changes 8,073,395 1,258,820 6,814,575
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 143,919,618 $ 79,331,018 $ 64,588,600

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2015
Service cost incurred

Interest on total pension liability
Differences between actual and expected
experience

Change in assumption
Change in benefits
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee

Projected earnings on investments
Differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments

Benefit payments
Administrative expense

Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2016

$ 132,170,818

$ 74,910,678

$ 57,260,140

3,256,167 - 3,256,167
9,734,270 - 9,734,270
(2,354,661) - (2,354,661)

y 5,584,985 (5,584,985)
- 1,433,343 (1,433,343)
- 1,754,108 (1,754,108)
(1,437,389) - (1,437,389)
(5,522,982) (5,522,982) -
- (87,934) 87,934
3,675,405 3,161,520 513,885
$ 135,846,223 $ 78,072,198 $ 57,774,025

Page 38



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate The following presents the net
pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.65%) or 1-percentage
point higher (8.65%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2017 (6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability $ 83,586,138 $ 64,588,600 $ 48,792,228
Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2016 (6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability $ 75,790,453 $ 57,774,025 $§ 42,788,940

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions For the years ending
June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Agency incurred pension expense of $6,016,714 and $4,565,372, respectively.
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Agency has deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions as follows:

2017 Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date  $ 6,254,577 $ -
Changes in assumptions - (1,233,393)
Differences between actual and expected experience 439,700 (752,919)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 6,811,477 (2,473,421)
Total $ 13,505,754 $ (4,459,733)
2016 Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 5,906,603 $ )
Changes in assumptions - (1,794,027)
Differences between actual and expected experience - (1,095,154)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 3,185,968 (3,710,132)
Total $ 9,092,571 $ (6,599,313)

Page 39



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date of $6,254,577 and $5,906,603 reported as deferred
outflows of resources for years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Amounts reported as
deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as
follows:

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)

Measurement Period Ended June 30: of Resources
2017 $ (95,749)
2018 (95,748)
2019 1,863,257
2020 1,119,684
2021 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 2,791,444

Payable to the Pension Plan At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Agency did not have an outstanding amount of
contributions payable to the pension plan required for the years ended.

NOTE G -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The Agency contracts with the CalPERS under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act
(PEMHCA) for employee medical insurance. In connection with this plan, the Agency provides medical
insurance to all active employees and their families, as well as all qualified retirees (and spouses), subject to
certain limitations. The Agency has maintained an actuarially based restricted fund for the sole purpose of
paying medical insurance premiums for qualified retired employees (and spouses) participating in the
CalPERS medical plan. In 2007, the Agency became a participant in the CalPERS California Employers’
Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), a pre-funding OPEB plan, which is an irrevocable multi-employer trust and
plan consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans, with pooled administrative and investment
functions. The Agency makes actuarially determined Annual Required Contributions (ARC) to this OPEB
plan. The ARC represents the forecasted funding level required to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years; there were 28 years
remaining as of June 30, 2015, the last actuarial report date. Actuarial valuations of the fund are obtained
every two years, as required by CalPERS.

Page 40



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Summary of certain plan provisions and benefits in effect during fiscal year ended June 30, 2017:

Required service for eligibility Pre-1/1/2009 Hires, 5 full-time years
On or After 1/1/2009 Hires, 10 full-time years
Minimum retirement age 50
Benefit payments Monthly for life
Vesting for eligible employees Pre-1/1/2009 Hires, 100% at 5 years
On or After 1/1/2009 Hires, 50% at 10 years;
5%l/year after
Maximum monthly benefit 90% of Sacramento Kaiser Family rate

The annual required contribution and funded status of the OPEB plan were determined based on current cost
trends of the CalPERS health plans in which the employees currently participate at the time of the actuarial
valuation. The June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was prepared on the basis of the OPEB assumption model,
as prescribed by the CalPERS, in effect at the time of the valuation. At fiscal year-end June 30, 2017, the
Agency had 150 active eligible employees and 119 retirees drawing benefits under this program.

The funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions are subject to periodic revision based on
actual results, changes in assumptions or plan provisions, and new estimates of expected future circumstances.
Future actuarial valuations will be performed every two years, as prescribed by CalPERS.

The Agency’s annual required contribution (based on actuarially established rates) was determined as part of
a June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The primary actuarial
assumptions included: valuation using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, 7.00% annual discount rate, payroll
growth of 0.29% to 10.87%, 2.50% inflation, and maximum employer contribution increases derived from the
Getzen Model for developing long-term health care cost trends.

To mitigate the growing OPEB unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding
Plan for the NCPA Retiree Medical Plan which includes: 1) establish a goal to obtain a minimum funding level
of 80% within 15 years and confirm the policy of funding 100% or more of the ARC each year; 2) reduce
actuarial liability by developing a cap for health care premiums going forward; 3) shorten the amortization
period used in the actuarial calculations from 28 years to 15 years; 4) consider additional funding sources for
increased funding of the ARC, including further budget reductions or new revenues (from members or new
services/customers); and 5) conduct new actuarial studies on a biennial basis as required and review the
updated results with the Finance Committee, who will make recommendations for revision to the Commission
as needed.

Page 41



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE H -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Power Exchange Agreement On behalf of certain of its members, the Agency has entered into a seasonal
exchange agreement with Seattle City Light whereby the companies exchange 60 megawatts of summer
capacity and 90,580 megawatt hours of energy in exchange for a return of 46 megawatts of capacity and
108,696 megawatt hours of energy in the winter. The term of the agreement will terminate in May 2018.

Power Purchase Contracts The Agency had commitments of approximately $12.0 million in connection with
various power purchase contracts as of June 30, 2017. The contracts, extending through December 2019, are
normal purchases at agreed to contract prices for fixed quantities of energy. Certain of the Agency’s members
have individually entered into certain other long-term contracts, which the Agency dispatches and schedules
for them. See Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Fuel Supply Agreements The Agency has entered into the following agreements to provide natural gas fuel
supply for use in its generation resources:

e A 30-year agreement terminating in October 2023 with various natural gas pipeline management
companies under which the Agency has acquired firm natural gas pipeline transportation capacity in four
separate natural gas pipelines between Alberta, Canada and northern California. The estimated minimum
annual natural gas transmission commitment is approximately $720,000. The Agency’s firm natural gas
pipeline transportation capacity is scheduled by Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. pursuant to the term
and conditions of an Asset Management Agreement for Pipeline Transportation Capacity that became
effective on January 1, 2015.

e On behalf of the participants in the Combustion Turbine Project Number One and the Capital Facilities
project, the Agency entered into an agreement with EDF Trading North America, LLC (EDF) effective
January 1, 2013 to provide natural gas supply and scheduling, nomination, balancing and settlement
services. The contract automatically renews each year on January 1, unless terminated earlier by six-
months written notice by either party.

e The Agency and Mercuria Energy Gas Trading, LLC (Mercuria) agreement to provide the gas supply and
nomination, imbalance, and settlement services for the Agency’s Lodi Energy Center project terminated
on August 31, 2016. Effective September 1, 2016, the Agency and EDF entered into an agreement to
provide these services to the Agency’s Lodi Energy Center.

e The Agency had approximately $10.0 million of gas purchase commitments at June 30, 2017. The
commitments, extending through December 2020, are normal purchases at agreed to prices for fixed
quantities of gas.

Western Area Power Administration Base Resource A number of the Agency’s members, who had an
aggregate 18.87957% of the Base Resource Contract with the Western Area Power Administration to receive
electric power from the Central Valley Project in California, have assigned their shares to the Agency in order
to create a power resource portfolio for the mutual benefit of participating Agency members. The assignments
terminate the earlier of December 31, 2024 or 60 days after Western approves a reassignment.

Geothermal Royalties Under terms of federal geothermal leasehold agreements, the Agency is required to
pay royalties to the United States (U.S.) on the value of geothermal steam produced. Currently, the effective
rate of such royalties is 3.6% of an amount based on the Agency’s monthly weighted average cost of
third-party wholesale electricity purchases made by Agency members participating in the Geothermal Project.

Page 42



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The U.S. Department of the Interior, Office of Natural Resources Revenue maintains the right to periodically
review and withdraw their approval or to change this methodology should operations, market conditions, or
Federal regulations change.

Geothermal Steam Production & Decommissioning Steam for the Agency’s geothermal plants comes from
lands in the Geysers area, which are leased by the Agency from the federal government. The Agency operates
these steam-supply areas. Operation of the geothermal plants at high generation levels, together with high
steam usage by others in the same area, resulted in a decline in the steam production from the steam wells at a
rate greater than expected. As a result, by April 1988, for the purpose of slowing the decline in the steam field
capability, the Agency changed its steam field production from base-load to load-following and reduced
average annual generation. These changes were effective in reducing the decline in steam production.

Beginning in 1991, along with other steam field operators in the area, the Agency began implementing various
operating strategies to further reduce the rate of decline in steam production. The Agency has modified both
steam turbine units at Plant 1 and the associated steam collection system to enable generation with lower
pressure steam at higher mass-flow rates to optimize the utilization of the available steam resource.

The Agency also entered into agreements with other producers in the Geysers area to finance and construct the
Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project, which was completed in September 1997 and began operating
soon thereafter. The 26-mile pipeline collects wastewater from Lake County Sanitation District treatment
plants at Clearlake and Middletown and delivers the wastewater to the Agency and the other Geysers steam
field operators for injection into the steam field. A second pipeline enhancement project to further augment
the wastewater injection program was completed in 2004.

Based on current operating protocols and forecasted operations, the Agency expects both the average and peak
capacity to continue to decrease, reaching approximately 66 MWG (megawatts gross) by calendar year 2039.

Under terms of the federal geothermal leasehold agreements, which became effective August 1, 1974, the
leasehold had a 10-year primary term with provision for renewal as long thereafter as geothermal steam is
produced or utilized, but not longer than 40 years. At the expiration of that period, if geothermal steam is still
being produced, the Agency has preferential right to renew the leasehold for a second term. The leasehold
also requires the Agency to remove its leasehold improvements including the geothermal plants and steam
gathering system when, and if, the Agency abandons the leasehold. The Agency obtained an updated
decommissioning costs study in December, 2016. These decommissioning costs are currently estimated to
total approximately $59.3 million. The Agency has been collecting monies to pay the expected
decommissioning costs since 2007 and currently holds approximately $16.2 million in a reserve for such
purpose as of June 30, 2017.

CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

California Energy Crisis During 2000 and 2001, California experienced extreme fluctuations in the prices
and supplies of natural gas and electricity in much of the State. While there has been progress in addressing
these issues, uncertainty remains. As a result, no assurance can be given that measures undertaken, together
with measures to be taken in the future, will prevent the recurrence of shortages, price volatility or other energy
problems that have adversely affected California electric utilities in the past. The Agency has settled with the
plaintiffs in related litigation, and while the settlement has been approved by FERC, there are still some claims
by others that remain ongoing. Although the Agency considers these claims to be lacking in merit, no
assurance thereof can be given until all proceedings are finally concluded.

Page 43



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (also known as
California Assembly Bill 32 or AB 32) requires the gradual reduction of state-wide GHG emissions to the
1990 level by 2020. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the state agency charged with monitoring
GHG levels and adopting regulations to implement and enforce AB 32. The CARB has approved various
regulations, including regulations that established a state-wide, comprehensive “‘cap-and-trade’’ program that
sets a gradually declining limit (or ‘‘cap’’) on the amount of GHGs that may be emitted by the major sources
of GHG emissions each year. GHG emissions are measured in metric tons (MT) of carbon dioxide-equivalent
greenhouse gases (COze) per year.

The cap and trade program’s first two-year compliance period, which began January 1, 2013, applies to the
electricity generation and large industrial sectors. The next compliance period, from January 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2017, expanded to include the natural gas supply and transportation sectors, effectively covering
all the capped sectors until 2020. In July 2017, CARB adopted an updated set of cap-and-trade regulations
that extends the cap-and-trade program to 2030. The updated regulations continue the direct allocation of
allowances to distribution utilities which in turn can be transferred by members to the Agency.

The Agency’s Lodi Energy Center gas plant, Steam Injected Gas Turbine gas plant and electricity imports
(purchased power) are subject to the compliance rules established by CARB for the cap-and-trade program.
As such, the Agency acquires sufficient compliance instruments to cover its compliance obligations or receives
transfers of required compliance instruments from its project participants. At June 30, 2017, the Agency had
a cumulative compliance obligation of 902,456 MT with 1,097,509 MT of acquired allowances to meet its
compliance obligation.

Other Factors Affecting the Electric Utility Industry Electric industry market participants, such as the
Agency and its members, continue to face numerous potential risks and uncertainties including, but not limited
to, significant volatility in energy prices and increased transmission and ancillary services costs; new federal
and state renewable energy, operating efficiency, and environmental standards; and, global pressures on
economic and financial market conditions. The Agency and its members continue to study and to take various
actions in an effort to mitigate and manage these risk and uncertainties. However, the Agency cannot predict
either the ultimate outcome of these ongoing changes or whether such outcome will have a material adverse
effect on its financial position or results of operations.

Other Legal Matters The Agency is engaged in various legal proceedings before federal and state courts and
various administrative tribunals incidental to the Agency’s operations.

Based on its review of the aforementioned proceedings with outside legal counsel, the Agency believes that
the ultimate aggregate liability, if any, resulting from these proceedings will not have a materially adverse
effect on the combined financial position or results of operations of the Agency.

Claims On September 9, 2015, a major wildfire (The Valley Fire) occurred in the California counties of Lake,
Napa, and Sonoma. The fire burned approximately 74,000 acres and destroyed approximately 1,960 structures
including homes, commercial properties, and other minor structures. The Agency’s Geysers geothermal and
effluent projects are located in Lake County, and some of those facilities were damaged in the fire. Damage
and reparation costs totaled $1.74 million in 2015 and 2016. A Presidential Disaster Declaration was issued
on September 22, 2015. Public Assistance was added to the Disaster Declaration on October 9, 2015. The
Agency is seeking cost recovery from its insurance policy and public assistance grants and will record those
proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the fiscal year in which they are received.

Page 44



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

In December, 2015, the Hydroelectric Project Adit 4 Tunnel Spoils incurred water related damage that required
remediation to stabilize the site and prevent further erosion to Clark Creek. The Adit 4 Tunnel Spoils (Spoils)
are located approximately 1.5 miles up canyon from the Collierville Powerhouse in Calaveras County and are
part of the water conveyance tunnel between McKays Point Diversion Dam and the Collerville Power House.
Damage and reparation costs are estimated to be $4.5 million, and construction is projected to be completed
by November 2017, with the exception of minor road repairs that may be deferred until Spring 2018. The
Agency is seeking cost recovery from its insurance policy; however, recovery is inestimable at this time.
NCPA will record any proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the fiscal year in which they are received.

During the period of January 3-12, 2017, severe winter storms caused flooding and mudslides in many
California Counties. As a result of those storms, the Beaver Creek Diversion Dam and McKays Point
Reservoir filled with sediment and debris and Beaver Creek required emergency dredging after the river flows
receded during the summer. Additionally, much of the Project was inaccessible for weeks as a result of
numerous road failures. Repair costs are estimated at $2.1 million and are projected to be completed by
November 2017. On February 14, 2017, a Presidential Disaster Declaration was issued including federal
disaster assistance. The Agency is seeking cost recovery from its insurance policy and public assistance grants.

Page 45



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and
Related Ratios Last 10 Years *

Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Changes in benefits
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net pension liability - ending (a)-(b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

Covered - employee payroll

Net pension liability as percentage of covered-employee
payroll

Notes to Schedule:

FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015

$ 3,152,017 $ 3,256,167 $ 3,220,329
10,328,232 9,734,270 9,285,364
581,539 (1,437,389) -
- (2,354,661) -

(5,988,393) (5,522,982) (5,059,144)
8,073,395 3,675,405 7,446,549
135,846,223 132,170,818 124,724,269
$ 143,919,618 $135,846,223 $ 132,170,818

$ 5,406,928

$ 5,584,985

$ 5,507,642

1,453,722 1,433,343 1,410,488
434,144 1,754,108 10,868,237
(5,988,393) (5,522,982) (5,059,144)
(47,581) (87,934) -
1,258,820 3,161,520 12,727,223
78,072,198 74,910,678 62,183,455

$ 79,331,018

$ 78,072,198

$ 74,910,678

$ 64,588,600

§ 57,774,025

$ 57,260,140

55.12%
$ 18,121,290

356.42%

57.47%
$ 18,365,293

314.58%

56.68%
$ 17,596,462

325.41%

Benefit changes The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes, which
occurred after June 30, 2016. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers to Two Years Additional

Service Credit (aka Golden Handshakes).

Changes in assumptions In 2016, GASB 68 was modified to state that the long-term expected rate of return should be
determined net of pension plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The
discount rate was changed from 7.50 percent (net of administrative expense in 2014) to 7.65 percent as of June 30, 2015
measurement date to correct the adjustment which previously reduced the discount rate for administrative expense.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

Page 46



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Plan Contributions

Last 10 Years * FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015
Actuarially Determined Contribution  $ 5,406,928 $ 5,065,861 $ 5,029,697
Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution (6,254,577) (5,584,985) (5,507,642)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (847,649) $ (519,124) $ (477,945)
Covered-Employee Payroll! $ 18,990,529 $ 18,365,293 §$ 17,596,462

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll! 32.94% 30.41% 31.30%

! Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the
employer. However, GASB 68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of
employees that are provided pensions through the pension plan. Pensionable earnings are
covered employee payroll reduced for earnings and other earnings adjustments not subject to
pension contributions.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

Page 47



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- Continued
(UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Trend Information for the OPEB Plan

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Required Annual OPEB  Actual OPEB Net OPEB OPEB Cost
Ended Contribution Cost Contributions Obligation Contributed
June 30,2013 $ 1,049,873 $§ 1,049,873 $ 1,506,882 $§ (457,009) 144%
June 30,2014 $ 871,135 § 871,135 § 2,094,609 $ (1,223,474) 240%
June 30,2015 $ 889,447 §$ 889,447 § 1,535,620 § (646,173) 173%
June 30,2016 $ 2,301,880 $ 2,306,684 $ 1,486,108 § 820,576 64%
Funded Status of the OPEB Fund
Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liability
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual as % of
Actuarial Accrued Value of Unfunded Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Date Liability Assets Liability Ratio Payroll [(a) —(b)]
@) (b) @-0b)  _(b)/() ©) /(c)
June 30, 2008 $16,114,250 $12,213,980 $ 3,900,270 75.8% $ 15,491,511 25.2%
June 30, 2010 $ 18,936,156 $ 13,975,353 $ 4,960,803 73.8% $ 16,355,901 30.3%
June 30, 2011% $ 21,599,763 $ 14,464,987 $7,134,776 67.0% $16,672,248 42.8%
June 30, 2013 $22,477,396 $17,529,070 $4,948,326 78.0% $17,564,711 28.2%
June 30, 2015%* $ 36,724,032 $ 22,291,159 $14,432,873 60.7% $ 17,941,846 80.4%

* The discount rate was changed from 7.75%, which was used in all prior years’ actuarial valuations, to 7.61% for

June 30, 2011 through June 30, 2014, as prescribed by CalPERS.

** The discount rate was changed from 7.61% to 7.00% for the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation, as prescribed by

CalPERS.

Page 48



61 98eg

uonEmquI0)) uf PIJEUIIILE ¥

856LOTT 1L9°091 § se9%5 TLI'8E - S 88EOIP S 08T s 1T SETTIY $ LLL'O6 $  SEDUNOSHYA 40 SMOTLLNO0 AIVIAATA ANV SLASSV TVLOL
1919 90S°€T - - - - - 7507 €TTYY 1€8°T SADYNOSTY 10 SMOTLLNO AIYVIATd TVILOL
905°€T 90S°ET - - - = - - - - S[ELIP uoIsuUag
9018y - - - - . - 80T €T €87 149p Jo Surpungaa uo 1503 s539xx
SADUNOSTY 40 SMOLLLNO ATINALAA
9PE‘90TT S9TLYT S€9°S TLI‘SE - 88E9IY 0L8°T 651°6€ T10'89€ 94688 SLASSV TV.LOL
697°9€7 06€°9S - - - 75912 - TLVTL 600°9¥1 L¥L SLASSV YAHLO TVIOL
[Z3 o1 N = - - - - < ¥i SHPAID (OPURA POSTIUI)
SPT'9ET 08€°95 - - - 78917 - LY 600°9¥T €€L sjasse LiojemIay
SLASSV YIHLO
TH8°6sS LS9°T S0€ * = 908°95€ 056'T 699°81 TILTYT TWLLE INVTd OTHLOATE TVLOL
178 (s 4 - - - L0 - - - 0L9 ssar3oad-ul-yI0A uonINYSUO)
0Z0°6SS €197 S0E = - 669°95€ 0S6'T 699°8T TILTPL TLOLE
(€1L7TY6) (spL) (gse) - (9gL°L) (Tr6°99) (S6T°ve) (LST'9Y) (2957250 (616°T€S) uonenaadap pajenumde 55T
€ELTOST 85€°S €99 - 9€LL or9‘sTy SYT'otE 978‘v9 YLT'P6E 166°89S 2314395 i yuerd 21103
INVTd OILLDATE
£8LT2T orros - w0 0 opEST s 186 LT€°09 €62°LT SLASSV QALDIMISAE TV.LOL
oLy 78T - - - 2 & o1 ST1 [ eI J5AI)UY
WOTHI LLTTS - 60581 - 161°02 4 800°S 0627°8T LIL9T SpuuISIAUY
§9708 T16°LT - €68°C - por's = LS6 26 1E SL¥ 0T spuageanbs yses pue yse)
SLASSV QALDNISTY
€5¢°88 8LIL 0£E'S 69L'ST - 0651 026 SE0'E ¥96°61 $91°cT SLASSV INZHAND TVIOL
- (628°c9) STTS 056°6 - LYT'OT (spL) LOET T19°81 pecsl »SurgiSoad samo pue LHuagy woay ang
S8TY SSE 3 - - 09z pe ¥ (754 0z sasuadxa predasg
wL's - - - - 1144 SOV°1 w9 6LO°Y 605y sanddns pue Kiopuasug
1y on - 19 - - - - - - I[qEAIIAL JSAINUL
059°s 005 - 0ST‘S - d - = b - 2pO
L66 s 8 809 - - STt ¥9 - - syuedpyasg
J[BAIRNII SHUNOIY
ST8'YT ST8'YT - = - - - - - = spuausIAUY
6LL'SY $99'sy $ 6 - - s $ 1 $ T . $ 1 $ spudpeanbo yses pue ysey
SLASSV INTHAND
ﬁuﬁ_ﬂEeU hummd. SHNIAIRG HOISS[ISuea J, uP "oN ANU) BMLN:....._ U "ON mu_u_—_uﬂwﬂ UEU&—&P—EH—.— [eULIIY}0?D) SLASSV
JQ JIQUISTAT P JaMog UOISSIUSUe.L ], m—uaﬂ .HU —u«_..—unv
PIJEOSS Y paseyang dympy
SIDUNOSTY NOISSTWSNVULL ¥ ONILVIINTD
LY0Z ‘0€ dung
(pantwo s,000)

SNOILVIOJYOD ¥IMOd TALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNIIV HIMOd VINIOATITVI NITHLION

NOILLISOd LiAN A0 INTWHALV.LS DNINITNOD

(@ALIANVNA) NOLLVINHOINI TVIDONVNIA YAHLO



0 98ed

$S6LOI°L § 19091 $ se9% $ 1LT8c S 88colp 0L8T TIc $ sezar $ LLLOG
090€ (909) 6v'r (89L°€) LOT°9 001 S9L L6L'EY €LOEL
T86°LE r60°1) (5342 (89L°¢) 9T'9 001 I8+'T €PYST 8171
SH8 (6v%) - . (6€) - - 708°1 (692)
LS - - - €88°71 - 907‘s SI80¢ 0zs‘s
(16129 L£8 = - (g8L71) - (z26'9) (£96°9€) (09£°9)
668°9L PES'L SOE = 16T [11%3 S66 €20'F 01961
09y 09y - - - - - - -
GEV'TL pLo‘s SO0E - k<xdd 1z $66 €20y 019°61
6669501 €PLEST S€8 6€6°TY 098°L9€ 659 TSH'6E SIFP6E $60'8S
6YV°sS6 LLE'SPT 6€ Yo TS9THE - €OFYE 900°79€ 80S°9F
WOLEL " - - [T 3 - €OVPE €16T€€E 0LL'8T
ELT'ST . - - - B - ELE'ST =
$99°8€1 88L°08 6§ porze 91LT = - 076°St SELLT
685'¥9 68599 - - - - . - -
0SS°T01 99¢'8 66L SLY'61 80T°ST 659 8P0°S 60¥°0€ 98S°TT
785°01 - S - 8€€’T 2] SLL ‘s sy
S6v'6€ - - - SSE°0T = 09L‘c S8E1T §66°€
r20'07 - - . SO¥ZI €9 €IS 0sz €179
€66 B 20z - - = - - 6L
9sp'0E 99¢°‘g $ L6S $ sib'el $ o111 91 - 0€L 91
paulquio)) aun_uue. SNIAIRG UOISSHUSUEI ], JAUI)) .nu._uﬁﬁ sagey u_.u-uo_uc._—v:.— euLRg)odn)
PO JIQuI % Jamog po rende)
P v P adginp
SADUNOSTY NOISSINSNVIL ¥ INLLVYINTD
L107 ‘o€ dunp

NOILLISOd .LAN ANV ‘SIDYNOSTY 40
SMOTINI QIINAIAQ ‘STLLITIEVIT TVLOL
NOLLISOd LAN TV.LOL

syasse [eprded m Juaun)saAul JON

STOUNOSTY A0 SMOTINI ATIALAA TV.LOL

SEANOSTA 40 SMOTINI ATHIFIIAA
SHLLITIEVIT TVLOL

SALLITIAVIT INTYIND-NON TV.LOL

Jou )qap wi)-Suoy
Anpqen dess ajes ysaso)uy
spsodap 19y)0 pur 5341953 SuperadQ
Kmqen voisuad JaN
SALLITISVIT LNTHIND-NON

STILITIEVIT INTHIND TVLOL

sfqeded jsorajur pINIIY
3q2p urR)-3uoj jo uon.iod JudLINY)

SHLLITIG VI'T INTYAN,

(pap1wo s,000)
SNOILVIOJIOD YIMOd AALVIDOOSSY ANV
ADNAODV HHMOd VINHOAI'TYD NYAHLION

NOLLISOd LiAN 40 INAWILV.LS ONINIFINOD

(QALIANVYND NOLLVIWHOANI TVIONVNIA Y¥AHLO



16 d3eq

HoyEMqUIO) UY PAjEUTIILY ¥

090°%¢ s (909) $ Ty S (89L%) - $ L0T9 $ 001 $ S9L S L6LEL $ €Lo'el 3 aea£ Jo puy ‘NOLLISOd LAN
€96'LT 9L6 L9V $86°T - 696C [G31] 907 S€T°6 52K agaf yo SupnmBag ‘NOLLISOd LIN
L60°9 (z85°1) (sen) (z5L's) b 8ET'E (314 658 795y Y6y NOLLISOd .LAN NI (ISVIADT@ ASVIAOINI
(66¥°L) (82) [(7754] (991°T) - (s8¢) €€ L6 (L8L°7) (169) SINVAIDILNVA OL SANNATH
(Lz's) €1 - - s S6¥'T . (909 (g00‘cT) (8L1°T) SINNOWYV AT VHIAODTYH TANLNA
(19512) (opT) LL e - (z61°L) = (ps9) (pz9°ST) {or1) SANNIATY (STSNIIXA) INILVEEIO NON TV.LOL
62671 9€T v LS6T = vE9'8 - 00T 8T €€8 =P
09 (9L€) 9 SST - 601 - € 68 9T WU J5AIAUY
(0s5°v€) - . - - (se6's1) - (s88°D) (IpL's1) (686) asuadxa )saaapuy
SANNIATY (SISNAIXT) ONILVITIO NON
1€b°8p LoD 0967 (869°9) (s) 07€'8 0sZ (2753 9L6'SE £66°9 SANNIATE ONILVYAJIO LIN
LOE'STY LT ¥8L'ST V6T S [E3 LYIY 001°s 06977 96°8T SASNAIXT ONLLVYIIO TVIOL
- B (7] = = 9LT LIt 9§ ST (T09) ¥1ou ‘saseya.and (soqes) Kuedwiodaapuy
08917 WL 96T°L K - 161'v 919 S95 LSS°E €ETY [EOUIE PUE AYEYSIUIIPY
0L6°9T - LOT - - LSO 19€°1 €0L oLI'S US's IDUBLAUB]
6bL'0E L6T Ly - S LO9PL 8LI €177 2856 078°s uoyepdaq
PPS ‘€01 - s 8LE°66 B v8e 9Ll s8 8SLT 8SL UOISSTWISURL],
88578 %4 7088 LSO'S = €€1LY 669°T SLV'T 86€°€ ¥oT'ST suogesdQ
908°Z61 - - 908681 - 000°c - - - - aamod paseqaang
SASNAIXT ONLLVIAIO
SEL'99Y 6I€ Pkl €PS'LET 896°1S L6E'Y 8L 999°09 6L8'SE ATVSIY 404 STTVS TVLOL
STEIET " ST 76715 - €28'ST 86V°T 89% LTTYE 09°LT Kaed-panp 9O
€T6°vEE $ 6I€ $ 6T1'sI $ ISTSET . $ spIoc $ 668 S pSEL $ 6€s'97 $ LTS s syuedpyaeg
SANNIATY ONLLVYIIO
pauiquio)) Hudty SIAIIG ISSH L 1 J9u) Adsuy uQ oN SOMIEL IL2R0IPAH [BuLIdoIn
2y U » 2emog POy 10 fende)
pajeRossy paseyang Jdyn
SADUNOSTY NOISSTASNVIL 3 DNELVIINTD
LI0T ‘0€ dunp papuy Iedx 3 1o
(pan1uio s,000)

SNOILVIOJHOD HAIMOd @ALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNIDV HIMOd VINIOAI'TVD NITHLION

NOLLISOd LAN NI SZONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘STOINTATY 40 INANALV.LS DONINIFINOD

(TALIANVNN) NOLLVIAYOANI 'TVIONVNIA HAHLO



Z6S 98eg

9LSEL $ 6f $ c68°¢ s - § LTS $ 1 $ 856 § 760 $ eLyor
60T°EL €0 6¥ST 7 0208 [ PLYT 06LF%L L£0%9
L9E (Z6D PrET - w87 - (918) TETLT W'y
(Lew) (19v7) €819 - [ITk41 (1ep) 0z8 (759°%) (e0L%€)
(S#9) 0L 769° = 95y ror) (LL¥) (€68%) (s¥8°¢)
82 (zLs?) 991°D) - (s8¢) €€ L6 L8LD) (169)

97 12 LS6°T - $€9's - 00Z°1 8T £€8

(8vD (98) - - {£09°97) - (109°S) LsT’Le) (156'S)
- - - - - - - - (soLsT)
- - - - = - - - 9TH'ST
- - - - (0s6°6) - (0L9°) (0s0020) (08s°‘c)
- - - - (Lor'o1) - (res'D) (698°91) (oz1°n)
@8r1) (98) - - (981) - - (8¢¢) (z96)

(688°7) 9€ 69€ E; (8L8°¢) - (925) 0ZT's1 €L
(€L97E) - (€60°S) = (8Zp'sT) - (150°S) (8LE€T) (oLL’eT)
758 9¢ L8€ - 6£7 - 6 [x45 v0S

7€6'8T - SLO'S - TIE1T - LYy SLE'LE £00°91
ee GIET (805°S) - 9Z8°v1 [33 v6L'Y 1Z6°9% S9ETL
- €L - - L) [/A73) (95) [§74] 109

(L8) (ore's) (898887) - (8s£s0) 992D (0s6‘D) (¥8Z°6) (Zo9'rD)
- (z1s‘or) - - (120°9) 81°1) (8L8) (861°S) (zes‘tn)
TLL'E ST JAVA: - £78sT 86+°T 89 8TH'se 80962
s¥9 § 88¢c'sl $  chobeT $ - $ 8sy'oc $ 00s‘T § 01TL § 015'92 $ 06T'L

Aualdy SINARS UOISSIWSURL ], UOISSIWISUR ], 1))y ABIOUY UQ "oN SaBy AIIPOIPAH [BWLIdY}031)
2PPO quap P Jomog o] ende)
PAIBI0SSY passydang apdynpy

STIANOSTA NOISSTASN VAL ¥ ONLLVIANTD

LT0T ‘0€ dunf papuy Aed X Y3 104

uoyEuIquIO) ux pajEILY «

I83A Jo puy
aeak jo SmumBag

SLNATVAINOA HSYD
ANV HSVD NI ZDNVHD LIN

SALLIALLDV ONIONVNIA CLLVTAY ANV

TVLIAVO-NON WOUA SMOTA HSVD LAN
» sueagoad ayjo (o3)wouy syudmieg

spuedidnred o} spunjay
spaoad Y0
SHILIALLDY ONIONVNIA CILVTII
ANV TVLIdVD-NON WOYA SMO'T4 HSVD

SALLIALLDV ONIDONVNIA QA LV TIY
ANV TVLIdVD WOYA SMOTA HSVD LAN
1q9p punjau o) syudmIAeg

SINSSI pUOQ WOy SPII0AJ
1q3p ui133-Suof uo JudmAedas feddung
1qap wad)-uoy uo pred )sau3uy
yus(d 5113933 JO UGHINIYSUCD pue uoNISINbIY
SHLLIALLDV ONIDNVNIA
JILVTIY ANV TVLIAVO WOHA SMOTAd HSVD

SHALLIALLOV ONLLSAANI

IWOYA SMOTA HSVD LAN
SJUDISIAUL JO ISBYOUNY

SJUIUTISIAUL PUE [YSEI UO PAAIIIA JSIIUY
SJUIWIISIAUI JO SI[BS PUB SINLINJE N WOLY SPIA0IJ
SHLLIALLDV DNLLSHANI WOYA SMOTA HSVD

SHLLIALLDY ODNLLVIAJO

W04 SMO'TA HSVD LAN
¥ swraBoad Jarpgo (03)woy syudmIkBg

531135 pue spoos xo0j sua1pddns 0) syuamieg
s301A13s 3aKojdmd 10§ syuauIkeg
SI3YJ0 WO.Ly PIARIY
spuednied woay pIANRY
SHILIALLDYV DNLLVYAJO WOYd SMOTA HSVD

(pamuio 5,000)

SNOILVIOJIOD YIMO0d AALVIDOSSY ANV
AINTIV HIMOd VINHOAI'TVD NATHLION
MOTA HSVD 40 INTWALVLS ONINIFNOD

(QALIGNVNN) NOLLVINYOANI TVIONVNIA ¥AHLO



€G a8eg

9LSEL 6€ £68°€ § - $ 9IS $ 1 $ 856 § 7T6°1E 6L°01 $ 1eak jo puy
116°LT - €68°€ - POI'S - LS6 61 8LY'0L §39558 pajoLAsa. - sjudjeAmnba ysed pue yse)
S99'sh 6€ - $ - $ $ 1 $ 1 $ - I $ §13558 JUSLIND - SJUS[EAINDD Ysed pue yse))
NOLLISOd L3N 40 SINAWALVLS OL SINATVAINOA
HSVD ANV HSVD 40 NOLLVITIONODTH
8°s 6I€T (805°s) $ - $ 9781 [ $ v6LY $ 169 S9E‘TL $  SALLIALLDYV HONILVYAJ0O WOYI HSVD LN
€97 - x - - - - - - Ssjunowre pajejaJ pue Ajiqer| uoisuad 33N
or9 961 SLES - L) 9L > 52 (on) a[qeded spunoddy
(7] 6€ - - (L8p's) @Lr) (%) (67) (286) spa.d Arojemaay
£7T% (aps) 13 44 - (€z6'D) €68 - 16T°T $00'C spsodap PYJo pue sasas Bugeadg
(67) @ = - (918) @ € (zv) (L6g) SHPILD J0puaA pasnun pu ‘dsuadxa predaad ‘Liojuasuy
(z8) 1744 (€1£°8) - - (s70) 9 - [4 AAQBARN SJUN0IIY
NI STONVHD A9 CALDVAI SMOTI HSVD
(os1'D) LOV'T (869°9) - LT67T 8Ty SE6'Y 8S5°SY €5L°0T
L6T Ly - 3 L09%1 8LT £12°T 7856 0z8'c uoner3deq
:sapiAnae Sunesado woly ysed Jau 0}
$INBAA Sunpeaado Jau a0 0) SHuIUNSnipy
Lzv'D 09€°T (869°9) $ @© $ 058 $ 0sT $ LT $ 9L6'se ££6°9 $ awo>ur Sunesadg
SALLIALLDV ONILVYAJ0 WOHL SMO'TA HSVD LAN
OL SEANTATY ONILVYAIO LAN 40 NOLLVITIONODTY
Auady [ERITEETY HOISSIISUB.LY, UOISSTWISUB.L], I Aruy UQ ON sanIpdR g LNNPOIPAH [CITEETTTERY
HPo JIQUIITA » 1PMmog 1po1 1D —uu_ﬂanv
PAABI0SSY paseypang adynpy

SIDANOSTI NOISSTNSNVIL ¥ ONLLVIINTD

LT ‘0¢ 2unp papuy 183X 3y} 10

(paptuio s,000)
SNOILVIOJY0D ¥AMOd GALVIDOSSV ANV
ADNIAOV 4AMOd VINHOII'TVD NUTHLION
panuguo) - AOTd HSVD A0 INTWALVLS ONINIFINOD

(@QALIAOVYNN) NOLLVINMOANI TVIONVNIA YAHLO



6 a8ed

uogEuIquIo) Uy pajsumILY

010%L61°T § 8SLTSI $ 9.0’ $ 0L [ S sIrisy § 56t S 859FF $ TIcser $ 910°L8 $  SEDUNOSHY 40 SMOTILAO ATAYAITd ANV SLASSY TVIOL
TH'co €606 * - - - - LSTT 16025 = SEDUNOSTY A0 SMOTALNO ATIAAATA TVLOL
€60°6 £60°6 - - - - - = - E S[ELIAJIP UOISUO
SYE'PS - B - - - - LSTT 160°7S E 199p Jo SuipunjoI U0 1503 SSAXY
SADUNOSTA JO SMOTLLNO ATHNALAA
69S°CET‘T S99°€vT 9L0‘9 0zZ¥'LE - SIHIEY ISET 10020 127°€8E 910°L8 SLASSV TVIOL
PLS 6T S9£'95 - - [B] 8ST°61 - LLOET 210'65T L96T SLASSV ¥AHLO TVIOL
sS - - - - - - - - sS S}IpaId JOPUIA pIsnu()
6IS6¥T S9€'95 - = (C] SST'6T - LLOET TI0°65T 6T spasse A1ojemaay
SLASSV YAH.LO
0L8'88S 908°C 997 - S LTTILE 8212 78807 956°05T 009°0F INV'E ORLLOATE TVLOL
LOT S - - - 701 - - - - ssasBoad-ur-.10m uonInysuo))
£9L88S 108°C 997 - S STIILE 144 788°02 956051 0090
(9L6T16) (8¢p7) (e - (TeL’L) (reeizs) LITYe) [ (086°T¥T) (111'828) uoneUdp PAIEmNIIE 55
6EL00S‘T 0TS LLS - 9€LL est'eLy Spz'og 978'v9 9£6'€6€ T1.'89S a31asas m yuepd ppRpy
ANV'Id ORLOATA
6SLTIT £95°9L = 06217 - PLIPT - P6'S Y78 995°ST SLASSV CALOTYISAY TVLOL
€€€ 741 N - - 07 - 91 o1t s9 21quA1IaI Jsataju]
LSLPST 69578 = THL'ST - S0Z'9T - €SPy yIe‘sy S9¥°61 SHUIULSIAUY
69998 U8'€T - 6¥S°T - 6¥6°L . LT 06LYT 9€09 spuaeAmba ysed pue yse)
SLASSV AALOTLLSTH
99€°€8 1€6°L 018°S OET'9T = 658°91 273 0057 620°ST €£88°81 SLASSV INFWIND TVIOL
- rLy'p9) S6T°S w9's1 v 60L%1 (607°T) 0€8'T SILEL 68PYT ¥Surei3oad saygo pue LHHuddy woy ang
880°T 9€€ 91 - - 902 o€ LT (4% 1144 sasuadxa predoag
(44X - - - - 1241 05T w9 6L0°T 0s1‘p saiddns pue L10puaaug
oz1 €5 - 13 - (4 = - - - AQEAIND J5ad)u]
Sev 114 - Sty = - = - B 4 510
069 wy 892 - - - ] - - - syuedpyaeg
JGBAIIA SHUNOIIY
60227 60772 = - - - - - - - SjudUISIAUY
w96y $ Lec'ey $ ¥ $ - $ - s I $ T $ 1 $ - $ 1 $ syuageambs yseds pue yse)
SLASSV INTHHND
pauquio) hu_._u“{ SDIARG UOISSTISuBA ], MU "ON ANUWR) Hmmoﬂm— QY "ON sanuey u_.-aua_ue.-—-hm 1.-.-:2—2.-6 SLASSV
hﬁg JIQUIBJA ﬁ Jdmoqg UOISSIESURA ], _3 LD —No_a—lnv
pajenossy paseyaang qduinpn
SADUNOSTH NOISSTASNVYL ¥ ONLLVIINID
9107 ‘o¢ dung
(payyturo s,000)

SNOILVIOJdY 0D ¥IMOd AALVIOOSSY ANV
AONIDV YIMOd VINIOATTVD NIITHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INTIWALVLS DNINIGNOD

NOILVINMOANI TVIONVNIA ¥AHLO



GG 98eg

010°L6T°T S 8sLasT $ 9.0 0TY'LE S SIVIey $ ST 8S9VY $ zIe'sey $ 910°L8
€96°L7 9L6 LT9% ¥86°T 6967 (€81) 907 S€T6 6v1'8
YLS'ET 9L6 L9 +86'1 9I€'6 (€81 o6t (LETT) TSE°L
9IS‘01 E - - (ze9's) - - PET9T 14
99L°sS s - - L6LZL - SOI°s §99°67 661°8
(£61°29) = - - (z1s‘en) - (6£8'9) (Lzy've) 1)
008°S8 L1L°6 997 - 808°LY S8TT SLO'T 50 L6S°0T
665°9 6659 - - - - - - -
T0Z'6L SITE 997 = 808°LY S8TC SLOT 800 L6S 0T
LPTE80'T S90°THL €81°T 9Ep°SE T$9°08€ 0SZ LLE'SY ST0°7T 0LT'8S
$65°T66 GEEPEL 08 PEETT 9bS'LSE E LSE'SE AT sTL'o¥
T86'9LL - - - 16LISE - LSESE 028°ss€ PI0°TE
1972 - - - N = - 19222 -
LLSPEL S95‘9L 08s PEETT SSL'S - - 6291 yIL'ST
pLLLS PLLLS - - s - - - -
€59°16 9ZLL €09 0151 S60°€T 0sT 0205 STE6T S IL
TOP°TE = - N L€ - L8 8T¥'8 99L
0ST'LE - - - 056°6 - 0Ly'e 05002 085‘
SES'LT - - - 68Z°01 0sT €IS 05T ££7°9
£66 - 707 - - - - = T6L
ELY'PT $ 9TLL $ Tov 20101 $ S8l 7 - $ LSS $ wr
paulquo)) Huady SNNARY uolssnusue.l J, J3yuR)) Ldiauyg sapIpaEy ILNIPOIPIH [BULIDI}0dD)
BRO Jaquipy » Jomog o1 [ende)
poIeROsSY ; adympw
SADUNOSTH NOISSINSNVIL » ONILVHIANID
9102 ‘0¢ dung

NOLLISOd LIN GNV ‘SED¥NOSTY 10
SMOTANI AINYIIAA ‘STLLITISVIT TVIOL
NOLLISOd .LAN TV.LOL

sjasse [epided ur JuaunsaAuy JIN

SIDUNOSTH A0 SMOTINI AU IIAA TV.LOL

SIDUNOSTY A0 SAOTINI AT ATAA
STLLIMEVIT TVLOL

SHLLITIEVIT INTHIND-NON TV.LOL

19U “4qap waRy-uoy
Anpqer dems a)ea jsasapuy
sysodoap J31po pue saAtasaa SunesadQ
Aypqery vorsuad JaN
STLLITIEVIT INTHIND-NON

STLLITIEVIT INTNIND TVLOL

aqe4nd jsarapur panidy
1q9p wL1a)-3uof Jo uontod juarny

sasuadxa panadoe pue Jqesed sjpunoddy
SALLITIAVI'T INTHHND

(pan1wo s,000)
SNOILVIOJYOD YAMOd AELVIDOSSYV ANV
AINITOV HEIMOd VINYOAI'TVD NYAHLION

NOILISOd L3N 40 INTAALVLS ONINITFNOD

NOILVIARIOANI 'TVIONVNIA ¥IHLO



96 a8eq

€96'LT $ 9L6 $ L9y $ ¥86°T § - S 6967 $ (e81) $ 907 § S€T6 $ 6¥1's
T66°6T 18 061'S T8L°L - TESF (6s¥) €91 S60°L 809°S
(820°7) S68 (£95) (LeL's) - (£95°1) 9L [ orI'T ST
(729%8) (ss6) (sLo‘e) (1€8) - 98T'1 8€€ 8 (sLEE) (810°7)
(ov1) (€16 - - o1 LoL'z - (zvsn) s79 (€60
(098°8€) 78V°1 8ST 08y - (99Z°11) 6€ [(441] ¥16°L7) (818)
950°0 617 0zz - - €ISy 6€ 9L [33 [
8€5°C €971 8¢ o8y - ay - hras €8 16€
(pst'sy) - - - . (10z°91) - (£00'7) (oLL'82) (08v'1)
y6S°sy 1871 ¥STT (orp's) (o1) 059°s (T0m) 869 P08°ZE oLY'9
80S°TZY (op1°1) LTF6T S6T'6LT o1 89879 06£°€ 0667 TLTTT 10V°1€
- - (€L) - - Ly SOT oL L6T (ovs)
08€‘ST (1ev'n) SSTL - - Ty s85 8ps €sT'e 810'Y
SLYTT - S6 - - P66°'L €781 888 LESE SEE‘S
sto'0e 167 ve - 91 109°¢1 8LI ure Si¥'e 868°C
0L186 - ¥ 65's6 - s16 @) s L18 088
SLO‘69 - 20120 0£09 - T€0'0¢ 920°1 0zTT 88°€ €ISYT
€95°281 = - 9ELLLY - LI8¥ - - - -
01°LO¥ [ 1L9TT 6P8'ELT 81589 687°€ 889°L SLO'PS ILS'LE
T00°6€T - - 0Z€Ts - 086'8¢ LS 3 666°91 €08°67
T01°82€ s Wi $ 1992 $ 6IsIT s - $ 8£5‘6T $ 8ILT $ 09€L $ 9L0LE $ 890°8
pauiquio) Duady SIS UOISSImSUe ], uoISSImSURA], T Adiauy uQ ‘ON EENTITEE § ANIPOIPAH [BULIdPOIS)
BPO LU » mog pory 1D ede)
pajeRosSYy paseyang adymp

SEDUNOSTY NOISSTNSNVIL ¥ ONILVIINID

9107 ‘0€ dung papuy Je3x 3yj 104

uoPEmqUIO]) U PACUIIIT «
4834 Jo puy ‘NOLLISOd LAN
aeaf jo 3wumdog ‘NOLLISOd LIN

NOLLISOd LAN NI (ASVINDAM) ASVIYONI
SINVAIDILYVA OL SANNITY

SINNONY ATEVIIAODTY TINLAA

SANNIATY (SISNTIXT) INLLVUAJIO NON TVLOL

RO
JuIodUY JSATIU
asuadxa ysatayuf

SANNTATY (STSNAIXT) ONLLVIIIO NON

SANNIATA INLLVIIJIO LIN

SASNIIXT ONLLVIAJO TVIOL
+Jou ‘saseyppand (sofes) Auedwodrauy

[219uUad pUE JANRISTUIIPY
URUNUIBIA
uonendadaq

UOISSTUISUBL ],

suoperRdQ

aamod paseydang
SASNAIXA DNILLVIAJO

ATVSTH Y04 STTVS TV.LOL

Kaed-pagp YO
syuedpnaeg
SANNIATH ONLLVIALO

(pap1wo 5,000)

SNOLLVIOJIOD ¥AMOd TALVIDOSSY ANV
AONTDV HIMOd VINIOII'TVD NIAHLION

NOILISOd LAN NI SIONVHO ANV SASNAIXT ‘STANTAATY 40 INTWALV.LS DNINITFINOD

NOLLVIAIOANI TVIDNVNIA YAHLO



LS 98eq

vonEuUIquO)) uf payEuIIY

T1€°901 $ 60TcL [T S 6vST 3 $ 020%8 s 1 s PLVT $ 06LVI $ LE0'9 2134 Jo puyy
6LI°S0T SLY99 [£q] 699°T [I331 T €66 TL9°91 s aeaf yo wuurdeg
zer's pEL'D LOT 088 #18°€) - £ (188D $79 SINTTVAINDA HSVD
ANV HSVD NI ZONVHD LN
(€957) 8857 (18L77) (es1°D) 9LS'S 701 E] (LZ6%) (€087 SHLLIALLDV ONIDNVNIA QALVITY ANV
TVLIdVO-NON WOYA SMOTI HSVD LAN
- 1Z€E SL (zze) (€£2) GLo) 59 [(50) (950°T) » stes3o1d Jaypo (op)wo.y syudmAeg
(zz9's) (ss6) (sLo‘e) (1£8) 9871 8€€ 8 (sLe'e) (810°7) spuedppaed o) spungey
650°9 444 612 . €TS8y 6€ 9L x4 | 744 spaxoad opo
STLLIALLDV ONIONVNIA QALY TN
NV TVLIdVO-NON INO¥A SMO'Td HSVD
(pso'pL) (zoz7) (Lo1) = (€25°97) - (ppo°s) (svo'Le) (€L0%) SHLLIALLOV ONIONVNLI GALVTIY
ANV TVLIAVD WOYA SMO'Td HSVD LAN
(S19°5€) - - 2 (osv’s) - (s8s°¢) (sor‘er) (stv'e) 1q9p wd)-3uo] uo yudwledas [edrurag
(1£7'8€) % - - (s€6°91) - (650°0) (679°LD) (809‘D 1q2p wLia)-Buo uo pred jsaapug
(308) (200 (L91) - (801) - - (11g) (02) ued 511393)3 Jo uoNINLYSUOD pue uonsIbay
SHLLIALLDY ONIONVNIA
QILVTIY ANV TVLIIVD INOYA SMOTd HSVD
(6¥57) €Is*T 8¢ 33 (09€°T) - 09% (ogg’e) (61Z'D SHLLIALLOV ONILSTANI
NOYA SMO'TI HSVD LAN
(IrLZ8T) (g15°s8) - {061°0T) (801°9¢€) - (z8r'v) (80L09) {opLsT) SJUDUIISIAUS JO ISEYIING
6117 59 8 668 [iI~4 - sy 144 €87 SIUDULISIAU] PUE YSEI UO PIALIIAI JS1U]
€LO'SLI bLE'LS - ovr‘or 86h'PE - 168y 626°9S SETYI SJUIUISIAUL JO S3[BS PUE SHLINJLUI WO SPIN0IT
SHILIALLDV ONLLSTANI WOYA SMOTd HSVD
86828 Se81 L10'E $89°1 €681 ZoD 08y 12v'ey 0zL’6 STALLIALLOV ONILVIAIO0
WO SMO'1A HSVD LAN
- - €L = L) (sor) (o) (L6T1) [ » swes3oad Jaypo (0))mo.y syuemAeg
(0sL09€) (z8s‘n) 9L'8) (6L9YLT) (zrsey) (866°T) (£98°1) LrL'e) (s00°81) 539{A195 pue spoo3 a0y ssorddns 0 spudmkeg
(Lps‘es) - (158°) " (8£9°s) wor‘n) (1+8) (8L6°%) (se11)) 301138 32Lojdwo a0} spudMILB
PPS'LYE ws's - PE8YS 086°3€ s {143 W81 £90°1€ SIDY)0 WOLY PIARINY
159°62€ $ (sog) $ 68817 $ 6Ts1TT $ $ o0ILTE $ PpesT $ 9L $ L6O'LE $ ISTL syuedonaed woay paawRIRY
SHLLIALLDV ONILVYIJO WOUA SMOTI HSVD
[T AMEY SINAIIS ISSI 1L Tl iL ) AZuy uQ ‘ON SRy LIIPOIPAR TRULIDYI0ID)
pauiquio) 2o QU » Jomog 1pog 0 rende)
pajEROssy paseypang adpmpu

SAOUNOSTY NOISSTNSNVHEL ¥ ONLLVIINTD

9107 ‘0 dung papuy 1e3x oy

100

(paprwo 5,000)

SNOILVIOJYO0D ¥AMOd GALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNIDV HIMOd VINHOAI'TVD NUTHLION
MO HSVD JO INAWILVLS ONINIFNOD

NOLLVIARIOANI TVIDNVNIA YAHLO



86 o3ed

TI€°901 $ 60T'€L $ 1€2 $ 6¥ST $ - § 0208 $ 1 $ LYY $ 06LYT $  LEO'9 $ 1824 3o puy
699°95 7L8°€T - 6¥ST - 6¥6°L - €LY'E 06LV1 9£0°9 s1assE PRIOLISAL - pudEAInba ysed pue yse)
w'er $  Legey $ 1€ $ - § - $ $ 1 $ 1 $ - $ 1 $ §)355€ JUI.LIND - SJU[RAMD? YSEI PUE Yse)
NOILISOd L3N 20 SINTWIALVIS OL
SINTTVAINOT HSVD ANV HSVD A0 NOLLVITIDONODTI
86878 § SE8‘T $ LIS $ 1891 $ - $  €6v'81 s (zoD) $ 0€8'y $ I'er $ 0L $ STILIALLDV ONILVEHJ0 WONL HSVD LAN
(919°T) 919D - - - - - - - B spunowre pajeed pue Anpqe| uosuad 3N
1101 @D 1o 919 - (8L6°T) m ()] (617) (S6v) sqqeded sjumoddy
Ak (£2) z€l - - [7AK> [(Z39) (r8) 12 ©L18) supa Liojemsay
WLy 06€°c 95y 10°x - (529D - * LYT'T 91 spsodap Jay)o pue saatasas Sunesadg
(199) (44 (1) « - ((%43] 9 S €5 (965) S)PAID JopudA pasnun pue ‘dsuadxa predaad ‘Aiojuaaug
996 (067) v7) 2081 - - - - - @ 3[qEAIaa1 SUN0MDY
NI STONVHD A9 QALI VAT SMO'TI HSVD
6ET9L Us‘t 8877 (op¥°s) - 157°07 LL 016y 61Ty 89€°01
So‘0e 167 [3 - 91 T09'P1 8LI T STH'6 868°C uogeaadaq

:samanoe Sunesado woay ysed 1ou 03

sanudaal Suneiado Jou {1V 03 sjUUYSHIpY

yessy $ 1871 $ ¥STT s (9pp's) $ (9D $ 0s9's $ (101) $ 869C $ pogee $ oLK'9 $ awoouy Sunessdg
SHALLIALLOV ONLLVIAJO A9 QIAIAQYd HSVD LiIN
OL SIANTATY ONILVIIIO LAN 40 NOLLVITIONOD T

pauiquio)) Buwly SINAIDG UOISSTUISUBI], UOISSIIUSURLY, J3)U3)) AsJouy UQ ‘ON SAIIOE] IIPOIPLH [emIRY)0n
PYo PqUBW » Jamog pog 10 rendey
paredossy paseyang iy

SIDUNOSTI NOISSTAISNVIL ¥ ONILVIINED
9T0T ‘0€ Jung papuy JLIX O 10

(Panuo s,000)

SNOLLVIOJHOD YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AIDNTOV HAMOd VINYOATTVD NITHLYON

panuyuo) - MO HSVD 40 INAIWALVLS ONINITFINOD

NOLLVINHOAINI TVIONVNIA YIHLO



66 98eq

‘sjuswasueste Ajddns [any pue Supueuly patiea 03 anp saJeys 1509 1afoad wouy Atea Aew saleys uoijesauas) 193(old g 910N
‘sjuedioliled Suowe siajsuel) J9)ye ase saleys JUAWLIUT 195(01d 1Y B10N

€ 910N Vv 910N 9 ‘v 910N V 310N
%000°00T %000°007 %0000°00T %0000°00T %0000°00T %0000°00T %0000°00T
%S0€€9
%YC8LY %6499°C
%EVTLOT
%0000°00T %000S°€€
%9€66'1 %LS8L°C
%010C’E %LS8L°T %0060°6 %00t0°¢ %S119°S
%88S1°9F %00S8.°9¢C %0L99°TY %0020°LE %S06€ 7Y
%0005°9¢€ %0000°CT %0€88°L
%8071 %LS8L°0 %0LT8'T %0069°T %0T0L°0
%00C6°CC
%T6v9°E %LSE0C %0€ER'S %0000°S %000€°C %0T89°E
%S6C0°LT %0005°6 %0E6E'ET %0005°6€ %00L£°0T %008¢°0T
%81776°C %8¢V9'T %0EER'S %0099°'T %0VL9°E
%CTCS'E %EVI6'T %00S€°0 %09€E°0
%0810 %6L9C°0 %0L6T°0 %0422°0
%0TER'TT %0009°9
%0078°'T¢ %0000°6T %0000°0T %SC88°9T
g dnouo v dnouo (D31) J91UsD  BUQ "ON BuigIn] 19f04d auQ 'oN W3loid € 'ON 13foid
ainmuapu| D3] 3Jnjuspul HI] A813u3 1po uonsnquio) salM|oe4 [euded 211309|904pAH |lew.sayloan

|  saieysigeadad

SaJeys Jjusawajiiul uonesauan Jo ajqel

1911s1Q uonesiuy| yaopny

A2uaBy Buij00d $921n0S3Y J91BAA 1§ JaMOd

1PLISIQ UonesLL| 01S3PON

$924n0s3Yy J31eM JO "1daQ eluloyie)

eznzy
'syuedniaed 19Y10

yenin

eJep) ejues
9||1nas0Y

D3y eAIBIS-SEWN|d
01|y ojed

sodwon

P07

8ingspjeaH
Asjpuo

s3819

l¥va

epawely
:syuedpiied JAqWaN YdIN

SNOILVHYOdH0OI HIMOd Q3LVIDOSSY ANV
AJNIOV 4IMOd VINYOLITYD NYIHLHON

d3LIANVYNN - SIYVHS LNJNTFTLILNT NOILYYINID



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE



-

BAKER TILLY

The Finance Committee
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP as your auditor.

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of Northern California Power Agency and Associated
Power Corporations (Agency) for the year ended June 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 17, 2017. This letter presents communications required by our professional standards.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are free of
material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. Our audit included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit does not relieve management or the Finance Committee of their responsibilities.

As part of the audit we obtained an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature,
timing and extent of further audit procedures. The audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal
control or to identify deficiencies in internal control.

OTHER INFORMATION IN DOCUMENTS CONTAINING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility does not extend beyond the audited financial statements identified in this report. We do
not have any obligation to and have not performed any procedures to corroborate other information
contained in client prepared documents, such as official statements related to debt issues.

PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our letter
about planning matters dated June 7, 2017.

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by The Finance Committee are described in
Note B to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing
policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2017. We noted no transactions entered into by the
Agency during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we
are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

BAKER TILLY Page 6
INTERNATIONAL



The Finance Committee
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES (cont.)

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

> Management's estimate of other post-employment benefits based on information provided
by the Agency’s actuary. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the other post-employment benefit (OPEB) asset and related deferrals in determining that it
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

> Management's estimate of the net pension asset and related deferrals are based on
information provided by CalPERS. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the pension asset and related deferrals in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

> Management’s estimate of decommissioning costs based on the Black & Veatch draft report
dated December 30, 2016 and DAREnterprises, LLC's Decom Cost and Timing report from
2006. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the decommissioning
cost estimate and have determined that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

> Management's estimate of derivative valuation based on PFM'’s report. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the market valuation in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures
The disclosures in the notes to the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.

A summary of uncorrected financial statement misstatements follows this required communication.
Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that

could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Page 7



The Finance Committee
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations

CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter. This letter follows this required communication.

INDEPENDENCE

We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and the Northern California
Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence.

Relating to our audit of the financial statements of Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations for the year ended June 30, 2017, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP hereby confirms that we are,
in our professional judgment, independent with respect to the Northern California Power Agency and
Associated Power Corporations in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct issued by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We provided no services to the Northern California Power Agency and
Associated Power Corporations other than audit services provided in connection with the audit of the current
year's financial statements and nonaudit services which in our judgment do not impair our independence.

OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Northern California Power Agency and Associated
Power Corporations’ auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

OTHER MATTERS

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the
basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
RSI.

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves.

Page 8



The Finance Committee
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
RESTRICTION ON USE

This information is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee and management and is not intended
to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the information included in this letter and any other matters. Thank you
for allowing us to serve you.

Madison, Wisconsin
October 17, 2017

Page 9



-5

BAKER TILLY

To the Commissioners of
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the combined statement of net position of Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations (the Agency) as of June 30, 2017, the related combined statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position and cash flow for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 2017.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions or conditions of the Indentures of Trust for the bonds described in
Attachment A between U.S. Bank and the Agency, insofar as they relate to financial and accounting matters.
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly,
had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the
Authority's noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the
Indenture, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners of the Agency and
U.S. Bank and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Madison, Wisconsin
October 17, 2017

! BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL



Attachment A

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A, dated March 2009

> Geocthermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A, dated September 2012

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series A, dated September 2016

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 1992 Refunding Series A, dated June 1992

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding Series A & B, dated April 2008

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding Series C, dated July 2008

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2010 Refunding Series A & B, dated April 2010

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2012 Refunding Series A & B, dated February 2012
> Capital Facilities Project Revenue Bonds, 2010 Refunding Series A, dated January 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 2010 Series A & B dated June 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two, 2010 Series A & B dated June 2010



5

BAKER TILLY

To the Commissioners of
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the combined statement of net position of Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations (the Agency) as of June 30, 2017, the related combined statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position and cash flow for the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 2017.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions or conditions of the Agency's Investment Policy insofar as they
relate to financial and accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining
knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may
have come to our attention regarding the Authority's noncompliance with the investment Policy insofar as they
relate to accounting matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of
the Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

N

Madison, Wisconsin
October 17, 2017

2 BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL



10/19/201"

’ " w»inla-_nlt_ ,i.lm.bl..' ‘; BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL

Baker Ty retersto Buker Ty Virchow Krause. LLP. Candor. Insight. Results,

anindepandertly owned and managed merrber of Baker Ty ntematonal

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Audit overview

Required communication to
Governing Body

Discussion




-~

BAKER TILLY

Cendor, Insight. Results.

We view the audit as an opportunity to provide an opinlon on the rellability
of financial reporting to the Committee, Customer-Owners and
Outside Parties and to provide value to NCPA

e

BAKER TILLY

Candor, Insight, Results,

Successful
NCPA
Audit

N

We appreciate the assistance of NCPA accounting staff and management
in preparing for and assisting in the audit!

10/19/201"

NY



y

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Audit assesses internal controls

“....a means by which an organization’s resources are
directed, monitored, and measured. It plays an important role
in preventing and detecting fraud and protecting the
organization’s resources”

Controls must meet the goal and objectives of Operations,
Reporting and Compliance

! BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Controls
in key

areas

reviewed

Expenditures

transaction Payroll

Billing and accounts receivable

Cash, investments and derivatives

Capital assets

Information technology

10/19/2071°



-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Audit objective - reasonable assurance that
financial statements are free from material

misstatement

Financial statements of NCPA and associated
corporations received an Unmodified Opinion

Area to be Communicated

Our responsibility under Auditing Standards
Generally Accepted in the United States and
Government Auditing Standards

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

Accounting Estimates

e

BAKER TILLY
Candor, Insight. Resuits.

Area to be Communicated

Other Information in Documents Containing
Audited Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

Financial Statement Disclosures

10/19/201°



-

BAKER TILLY
Candor. Insight. Results.

Area to be Communicated Area to be Communicated

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Audit

Audit Adjustments Disagreements with Management
Consultations with Other Independent Management Representations
Accountants

Auditor Independence Other Audit Findings or Issues

%

AKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results,

We appreciate the help of the NCPA's Accounting and
Management teams in assisting in the audit!

10/19/201°



-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results,

I i

Discussion

I ]

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results,

Russ Hissom, Partner
D: 608 240 2361
M: 608 628 4020
Russ.Hissom@bakertilly.com

Jeff Stanek, Manager
D: 608 240 2315
M: 608 658 2485

Jeff Stanek@bakertilly.com

10/19/201



10/19/201




S PYBLIC AGENCY

NC

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 26, 2017

SUBJECT:

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

Overview of Budget Process and Approach — Request for Guidance of
FY2018/19 NCPA Operating Budget Directions

FROM: Monty Hanks (U4 METHOD OF SELECTION:
st Serer!
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [X City of Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [
Bay Area Rapid Transit [] City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [] Other [J
If other, please specify

19

SR: 215:17



Overview of Budget Process and Approach — Request for Guidance of FY19 NCPA Operating Budget Directions
October 17,2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Commission provide guidance and direct staff to prepare to the
FY2018/19 Operating Budget in accordance with the accepted directions.

BACKGROUND:

As part of the budget process, staff is seeking Commission guidance of budget directions prior
to budget preparation for the next fiscal year (FY2018/19). Staff discussed the budget review
process and specific budget directions/targets with the Utility Directors at their meeting on
October 12, 2017. While no changes were suggested by the Utility Directors, there were some
concerns with the growing pension funding increases. These concerns will be addressed during
staff’'s presentation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Direction provided in this presentation will provide budget guidance for FY2018/19. Specific
fiscal impact is not known at this time. Actual fiscal impact will be presented at the time of final
approval of the FY2018/19 Operating Budget, currently scheduled for April 2018.
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The requested Commission direction would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable

indirect change in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of
Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respecitfully submitted,

3 (=

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
Operating Budget for FY2018/19 Proposed Process and Recommendations

SR: 215:17



/102 ‘21 48q010Q
sJoyoalig Alnn

SUOI}EPUBWILLOIDY puk $S820.4d pasodo.d
61/8LAd 10} 196png Bunessdo YdON

AON3IOY H3IMOd VINHOLIIYO NYIHLYON




ADNIDY HINOA VINHOHIVD NYIHIHON /

¢ 'SIIUNWWOD ‘_mnEmEd‘n_UZ

O} sanl|in Jamod oljgnd pue V4N 40 anjen ay} ajowoid pue ajejnoie dioH
"S82IAISS JUa.1IND JO uoisuedxas pue sjuedioiled/sisquiaw
mau Buliojdxe Aq s}1s00 Jaquisw 9Npal JO/pUB SNUSASI MOU MOIS)  »

"S}OSSE JO anjeA ay)
Buiziwixew s|iym sysu Sziwiulw pue s}sod |04juod o} saibejelis uielulew;dojensq

‘Sisquisl s, \YdON 1susq
0} aInjonys Ydr jo sjoadse anbiun pue syjbusaiys ay} uo pjing pue aziyn ‘108)0iq -«

‘suoljebijgo Ayoeded pue piepuejs oljojiod ajgemaual
U}im 2oueploooe Ui oljojuod 92inosal uojesauab asiaAlp ulejuiew pue dojoasq .

‘seuale Aoijod AiojeinBal pue anne|siba| |elapa) pue a)e)s
Ul Jspes| pue 1ap|ing UOI}|e0d pajusllo-uoiinjos ‘9|qipalo se uonisod uleyuiepy .
‘yels Ajjenb ybiy ‘leuoissajoid uiejas pue dojonsp ‘Joenly .
S3ID3LVHILS
‘saijjus 21lgnd o} saolnes ABJaus jo Japinoud Jsiwald sy} aq o

NOISIA
‘uonoe julof ybnouy) siswnsuod Jamod 21jgnd Jo jjeyaq uo Aoesonape pue
‘S90IAIBS paje|al-Abisus ‘Joamod a|esajoym SAJOBYS 1SOD S1aquswW Jno apiaold o

NOISSIN
_+c0¢ - 9L0C NV id OI931VHLS




(S]e2s JO selwou0928) S1s09 Jo Buleys
|BUOIJIPPE puB S)}S0D 8|gE||0JIU0D \Y4DN UO SNd0J panuiuo))

pasodolid sabueyd ou — spoyjow

panoidde Ajsnoinaid asn ||Im (SUOIROO||. 108lIP PUB |elaud9g)
pue aAnelisiuiwupy ‘uonoy |enipnpe ‘Aiojeinbay ¥ aAne|sibo
‘Juswabeue|) JoMod ) S}S00 paledo||e ||e 10} UoNeoo||y

siseq weiboidosloid e uo paledalid si jJebpng

ue|d oibajel)s panosdde uo paseq uonoallp d16a)ens |[e1anO

S$S920.d }abpng pasodolid

T



%6’ Sem /10g Isnbny jo se xapu| |dD
sieah omj} jse| 1en0 paonpal syebpng Bunesaedp -
HEIS [EUOHIDPY
¢, W00l |0JJU0D 8y} 0] alepdn
¢Ssaulsng A [euonippy -
ymolb [jewsy el AloAnejal aq pjnoys -
d3d0
pajosloid g A4 WOl 9%/ | JO 9SEaIoUl UKW ' L§ -
%SLE L 0} %0G L WOI} 8}l JUNOISIP JO UOHONPaY -
Sddd
Saijljigel] pspunjufy -
810¢ Joqwaosa( pus S}oBAuUOD uolun -

Jabpng 61/810ZAd Bunoedw) sanssj

. AONIOYV HIMOd VINMO4I1YO N¥IHL¥ON VdOM



s}abpnqg yum juspnud Buieq Je)s
9WOooUI }SaJ8luUl pasealdu|
uondope }obpnq Jaye sbuines wniwaid soueinsu;
saloueoeA wouj sbuines Alejeg
:0} anp Ajuewnd punjoy
WJOU 8y} Jou SI Synsal /LA =

swniwalid
9doueJinsul pue s}S00 Juswade|dal/geysal pasealoul SJusnsld

uonipuoo Bupiom ‘yealb ul sjesse desay 0] asodind
swa)l pahejop Ajsnoinaid Jopisuod o) pesaN
aoueuajule|\ R |eyde) snoinald -

1obpng 61/810ZA4 Bunoedw) senssj

. AON3IOV MIMOd VINYOIITYO NHIHLIYON




sjuedioiied D3/eepwwo) sanijioe4 Aq pamainal Ajjesiyioads aq
0} S9JIAIBS uoljewlojul/sispenbpesH pue sjued 1o} syoafoud jenden

AepnQ |eyiden

pPappe 8q
0} paau Aew (pauyep 194 jou) vidAD Buipiebal juswssasse |e1oadg

196pnq Jeak snoinaid uo
paseq JaA0 pajjol 89 [|Im sasuadxs |ebs) Jayjo |je pue uolnoe |eipnpe

jebo

'0}o ‘sjo8f0id S92IAIBG JaquIB|A JBYl0 pue ‘SIDTHM
‘'S9OIAISS UoIssiwsuel] ‘suonduosqng ‘sanp diysioquiajy -

'SaI|juUs
9pISINO WOJ} UOIeWIOUI U0 paseq Se aq ||IM Buimoj|o) sy} Jo ||V

sybnouyj ssed

61/810Z 10} SuoIlepUaWLLOCIdY }abpng




18bpnq aseq Jeak snoinaid woly asealoul o7 1061e |
sosuadxa Bunesado 1ayjo |1y

palapisuoo Buleq suoljisod mau oN

'0)9
‘suonedlileo ‘sepeibdn ‘suoijowoud ‘Jusw ‘syususnipe Buipueq peouq
10} %G"Z [euonippe spnjoul [lIN\ "9SEea1dul %G 1ob6.e) - sjijsuaq @ Alejeg

sjijouag pue saliejeg

(sjuedidiyed 037 @ espWWOD sonjioe)
sjuedionied yum Ajjeoiioads pamainal — sjosfoid soueusiulew jeioadg

9sealoul %"z 1ebie) — aoueusjuiew ¥ Buneiado Jejnboy

suonesado jue|d pajewss 1o} palinbal se ‘jon

S]S00 dAljeJ]sIUIWIPE @ 93)snJ} sn|d pajnpayos Se 82IAISS 19a(]
S}S09 jue|d

61/810Z 10} suoijepusaiiwiossy 19bpng




J0dai siy} ul paulno se 61/810ZA4 10} sauljepinb
Jobpnq auy} jo |[eaosdde 10} UOISSILIWOYD) 0) PUSWILIOIDY =

uoljepuswonay]

AONIOV HIMOd VINYHOJLIVD NUHIHLYON <QU¥\ :



	Minutes_DRAFT_092917
	Item_5_DRAFT_Facilities_Committee_Minutes
	Item_6_DRAFT_Finance_Committee_Minutes
	Item_10_Financial_Report_September_2017
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_September_2017
	Item_12_2018_Committee_Calendar
	Item_13_EGS_Consulting_Agreement
	Item_14_TRB_Associates_First_Amend_Agreement
	Item_15_Appt_Finance_Committee
	Item_16_Revenue_Allocation_Policy
	Item_17_Employer_Contribution_CalPERS_Medical_Plan
	Item_18_Annual_Financial_Statements_Ended_June_2017_2016
	Item_19_Budget_Process_Approach_FY18_19

